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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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RESULTS
Turnover EHERE

Profit before tax B B B A

Income tax expense FrisfiFA X
Profit for the year AF [ F)
Profit attributable to: FE(SSEF)

Owners of the Company AR A A
Non-controlling FEE R 2

interests

ASSETS AND EEREE
LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities “aE

Total assets less total BEERBEAE
liabilities

Non-controlling interests JE#EfS% %5

Equity attributable to VN/NGIE 2N

owners of the Company {#Ezs

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFUHREE

2016 2014 2013

= —TmF ZF=F

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT
1,412,542 1,072,045 903,974 749,481 537,753
351,493 237,706 196,614 151,957 97,384
(68,411)  (43,002)  (29,512) (26,679 (8,595)
283,082 194,704 167,102 1257278 88,789
129,560 75,998 100,844 53,149 32,531
153,522 118,706 66,258 72,129 56,258
283,082 194,704 167,102 125,278 88,789
2,676,583 2,277,791 1,855,663 1,657,676 1,443,102
(653,772)  (587,576)  (455,921)  (379,060)  (306,456)
2,022,811 1,690,215 1,399,742 1,278,616 1,136,646
(548,174)  (397,686)  (312,213)  (250,283)  (162,268)
1,292,529 1,087,529 1,028333 974,378

1,474,637
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby announce that profit after tax of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) increased by
45.4% to approximately RMB283 million (2015: RMB195 million)
over last year, representing a stable growth for the Group. Profit
attributable to the owner of the Company for the year amounted
to approximately RMB130 million and earnings per share were
RMB10.5cents.

While the Group boosted shareholders’ value through the
operation of core businesses, namely manufacture and sale of
electronic fire equipment and tourism development, it also further
expanded the scope of investment holding business to achieve
the same goal. For the year under review, the Group completed
the acquisitions of equity interests in certain private equity funds
and fund management companies. Its diversified investment areas
covered various promising industries in the PRC, so the investment
holding business of the Group may diversify its assets, dilute the
risks and expand income source at the same time.

The Group’s operation of manufacture and sale of electronic
fire equipment recorded satisfactory growth during the year.
Through measures on active support for quality dealers, the Group
incentivized each dealer to work toward better sales results and
boost sales results quickly, which laid a solid foundation for the
Group’s business expansion. In addition, the introduction of
new production lines and optimization of production process
enhanced the production capacity of the Group to meet market
demands. Electrical fire products were the focus of the Group in
2016. The Group increased the marketing efforts for electrical fire
products and allocated additional capital to the production lines of
electronic fire products, resulting in a more significant increase in
product sales. Adhering to the approach of meritocracy, the Group
concentrated on the promotion and development of outstanding
talents and emphasized on boosting the overall quality of
staff members to improve its human resources structure, thus
facilitating the introduction of new products to the market.
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The Group, together with its subsidiaries and associates, continued
to participate in promising tourism development projects in the
PRC. Located at Hengshan Mountain scenic area, the operation
of environmental bus services and tourist souvenir sales services
of the Group continued to generate stable profits and cash flows,
with its performance linked to the number of visitors at Hengshan
Mountain scenic area. During the year, the number of visitors
taking the environmental bus with full-priced ticket and tourism
service utilization rate both recorded growth.

In July 2016 and February 2017, the Group placed new H shares
under general mandate, with net proceeds from the placing
amounting to approximately RMB81.9 million and approximately
RMB122.1 million, respectively, which will be utilized in potential
acquisitions and/or development of new businesses and as the
general working capital of the Group to prepare for future
progress of the Group.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to fortify the current
business strategies to get ready for upcoming opportunities
and challenges. The fire equipment industry is responsible for
safeguarding domestic citizens. Product quality always comes first
for the Group and it relentlessly improves brand development to
obtain the recognition of the market and society. With regard
to tourism development business, we expect that pilgrims will
continue to make up the majority of visitors with a stable turnout.
In addition, we will be more prudent in the selection of investment
plans to protect the interests of shareholders as a whole.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my deepest appreciation to the management and
employees of the Group for their contributions to the Group
during the year, and offer my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, business partners and customers for their long-term
support.

Ni Jinlei
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
22 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall performance

During the year under review, the Group continued to strengthen
the performance of its main businesses, including manufacture
and sale of electronic fire equipment business, tourism
development business and investment holding business. Total
turnover of the Group was increased by 31.8% to approximately
RMB1.413 billion for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB1.072 billion). The Group continued to maintain a competitive
gross profit margin of approximately 46% (2015: 43%). As a
result of the record high turnover and competitive gross profit
ratio, the Group recorded an improvement in gross profit by
39.5% to approximately RMB647.7 million (2015: RMB464.4
million). The Group’s total expenses, including distribution costs,
administrative expenses and other expenses, were increased by
20.1% to approximately RMB297.1 million (2015: RMB247.4
million), mainly as a result of the continued growth of the Group’s
operations and the acquisition of subsidiaries during the year. The
Group continued to seek potential investment opportunities and
the Group recognised gain on bargain purchase of approximately
RMB8.7 million and approximately RMB26.6 million as a result
of completion of acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
respectively during the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of
the acquisitions are set out in the section “Material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures” below.
As a result of the satisfactory performance of the main businesses
of the Group and recognition of gain on bargain purchase
of subsidiaries and associates for the year, the Group’s profit
attributable to owners of the Company was increased by 70.5% to
approximately RMB129.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB76.0 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current ratio (being the
ratio of current assets and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio
(being measured by total interest-bearing debts to total equity)
was 1.91 (2015: 1.62) and 8.2% (2015: 12.9%) respectively. The
Group’s financial position remains solid.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment

The Group generates revenue from the manufacture and sale of
fire safety systems, with its main production facilities located in
Hebei, Beijing and Sichuan, the PRC. The Group’s main fire safety
products, including fire automatic alarm and control linkage
system, electrical fire monitoring system, automatic gas fire
extinguishing system and gas detection monitoring system, are
designed for provision of a comprehensive and integration fire
safety solution. The Group mainly distributes its products through
dealers across the region in the PRC.

On the back of brand effect and strong customer base, the
Group's manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
business continued to achieve high growth and recorded an
increase in turnover of 34.6% to approximately RMB1.268 billion
(2015: RMB942.3 million). By introduction of domestic and foreign
advanced technology, the Group focused on development of
complete product solutions of fire automatic alarm and linkage
system under the guidance of the new fire safety standards. The
Group further won customer loyalty due to excellent reputation
for top quality and high performance electronic fire equipment
products. During the year, the Group conducted a number of
campaigns to promote its products and solutions and to establish
effective communication channels to its customers. Through
provision of strong supports to dealers and after-sales services
to customers, the Group was benefited from the consistently
satisfactory performance in the manufacture and sale of electronic
fire equipment business.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
1 February 2013 and 17 November 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 27 February 2013 on the proposed spin-off of
Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited
("Jade Bird Fire Alarm”), a subsidiary of the Company, and a
separate listing of the manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment business owned and operated by Jade Bird Fire Alarm
on The Small and Medium Enterprises Board of The Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (the “Proposed Spin-off”). The Proposed Spin-off
constituted a very substantial disposal for the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has fulfilled the requirements
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s
internal policy procedures in relation to the Proposed Spin-off,
including but not limited to obtaining approval from the Board,
informing the Stock Exchange, submitting announcements to the
Stock Exchange to be published on the GEM website and obtaining
the Shareholders’ approval at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 26 April 2013. The Proposed Spin-off is still in
progress. The Jade Bird Fire Alarm’s listing application is in normal
stage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Tourism development

The Group is the environmental shuttle bus operator in Hengshan
Mountain scenic area, and fare revenue from tourists and
pilgrims is the main source of income of the Group’s tourism
development business. The Group is also engaged in provision of
property management services and operation of tourist souvenir
shops in the scenic area. During the year, the Group’s associates
continued to take part in the tourism development projects in
Hunan Province, including the construction and development of
landscape architectures and primary land development of land
around the Sonya Lake region at Changsha County, and the
development of tourist sight project located at Tianzi Mountain.

Turnover generated from the Group’s tourism development
business grew steadily by 15.8% from approximately RMB112.3
million in 2015 to approximately RMB130.0 million in 2016.
Approximately 1.84 million arrivals visited Hengshan in 2016, up
9.9% year-on-year and the service utilisation rate was further
improved from 93% in 2015 to 95% in 2016.

Investment holding

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment holding
business mainly included investments in private equity funds (the
investment areas of which included private enterprises in the
PRC with businesses ranging from the provision of information
technology vocational education, insurance business, baby
products retailing business, manufacturing and sale of light-
emitting diode related products, property development, IT
development and solution business, air transport agency and
provision of technical consultancy services etc.), the equity
interests in listed companies in Hong Kong, and the equity interest
in a private enterprise in the PRC which is principally engaged in
manufacture and sale of light-emitting diode related products.
During the year, the Group completed the acquisitions of equity
interests in certain private equity funds and fund management
companies (details of which are set out in the section “Material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures” below), that further diversified the Group’s investment
portfolio. The total assets of the Group’s investment holding
business increased from approximately RMB902.0 million as at
31 December 2015 to approximately RMB933.1 million as at 31
December 2016, representing an increase of 3.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Outlook

The Group’s manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
business will continue to emphasize on quality service by
strengthening its capacity of research and development and
investing in advanced equipment and human resources. The
Group will penetrate the market and increase its competitiveness
by providing support to the dealers, cooperating with media
in the area of product marketing and promotion, setting up
regional technical supports and obtaining further international
certifications for our fire safety products.

In light of continuous improvement in the living standard at
Mainland China, tourism has evolved from an extravagant
lifestyle for only few people to an activity affordable by mass
consumers. As tourism becomes an integral part of daily life,
development of tourism industry has been high in agenda for many
regions, benefiting tourism industry in the PRC with forthcoming
opportunities.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating
risks and financial risks.

Operational risks

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
intense competition, decrease in customer loyalty, volatile
economy and growth bottleneck. The Board always monitors
market situation in order to react promptly over any potential
risks. The Board meets and discusses with directors of subsidiaries
frequently to keep track of their situations so that it can adjust
segmental strategies timely. The Group has already set out
strategies including quality control enhancement, stringent cost
control and business diversification to deal with different kinds of
operational risks.

Financial risks

The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Financial risks (Continued)

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), US dollars (“USD"),
Canadian dollars (“CAD") and Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group
does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy at present
as turnover and most of the production costs are denominated in
RMB and they are automatically hedged, leaving limited currency
risk. The Group closely monitors its exposure and will take
measures to lower foreign currency risk when necessary.

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. The Group has not mitigated its price risk
arising from the listed equity securities.

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include time deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and receivables. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding trade receivables and
has set up a credit control department to monitor credit terms
of customers. Senior management of each subsidiary reviews
overdue balances regularly. Customers are diversified to minimize
concentration risk. The Group does not develop particular policy
to tackle credit risks from time deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents at present as the major counterparties are either well-
established or having high credit-rating.

The Group's measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in short
and long term.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits. The risk varies with the prevailing market condition but is
limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest environmental
standards and strictly follows the applicable environmental
requirements imposed by the PRC government in its production
and operation. The Group strives to reduce destruction to the
environment by saving energy and encouraging recycle of office
supplies. Besides, the environmental buses operated by the Group
are equipped with anti-smoking devices and do not use heavy-duty
diesel to reduce pollution.

The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC, the United States of America and the
Canada and the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in
2000. The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and
regulations to ensure sustainable development of its businesses.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group has established a comprehensive dealer operation
model for its manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
business and mainly sold its fire alarm products to end customers
through dealers. The Group maintains good relationship with the
dealers. For the tourism development business, the customers
mainly comprised of tourists and pilgrims and the Group is
committed to provide good-quality environmental shuttle bus
services to the customers.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key upstream
component suppliers. In addition, there are a large number of
upstream component suppliers in the market and relatively stable
purchase prices could be maintained when purchasing at large
quantities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 5 November 2014 and 10 September 2016, the Company
entered into the equity interest transfer agreements with a
then connected person of the Company and an independent
third party respectively for acquisition of a total of 60% equity
interest in Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan”) at total consideration of
RMB1,800,000 together with taking up the capital contribution
commitments of RMB1,200,000. Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan is
a company incorporated in Beijing, the PRC and its scope of
business is investment management, corporate management,
asset management, economy and trade consultancy, investment
consultancy, corporate management consultancy, corporate
planning and design, public relation services and innovation
services. Completion of the transfer took place during the year and
Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan became a subsidiary of the Group.

On 13 February 2015, a subsidiary of the Company and a then
connected person of the Company entered into the equity interest
transfer agreement, pursuant to which the subsidiary of the
Company acquired 20% equity interest in Beijing Xinzhongrui
Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (“Xinzhongrui VC”) at a consideration
of RMB50,000,000. Xinzhongrui VC is a company incorporated
in Beijing, the PRC with a registered capital of RMB250,000,000
and its scope of business is venture capital investment, entrusted
agency services for venture capital investment business on behalf
of other venture capital institutional or individual investors,
venture capital investment consultancy, and provision of venture
management services for startup companies. Completion of the
transfer took place during the year and Xinzhongrui VC become an
associate of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

On 10 August 2015, the Company entered into the equity interest
transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) with a then connected
person of the Company to acquire an additional 39% equity
interest in Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment Co.,Ltd.
("Ningbo Jade Bird VC") at a consideration of RMB23,400,000
in cash together with capital contribution commitment of
RMB54,600,000. Ningbo Jade Bird VC is a limited liability company
established in the PRC and is principally engaged in venture capital
investment in companies with innovative and high technology
in emerging industries, such as culture, healthcare, new energy
and environmental protection. The approval of the independent
shareholders’ of the Company in respect of the Agreement and
the transactions contemplated has been obtained at the special
general meeting of the Company on 12 January 2016. Upon
the completion of the transfer taken place in January 2016,
the Company owned a total of 70% indirect interest in Ningbo
Jade Bird VC. Ningbo Jade Bird VC became a subsidiary of the
Company.

On 27 May 2016, the Company and a subsidiary of the Company
entered into the equity interest transfer agreements with
independent third parties for acquisitions of (i) a total of 45%
equity interest in Shanghai Shengjin Venture Capital Investment
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Shengjin VC") at total consideration of
RMB27,000,000 in cash together with capital contribution
commitment of RMB63,000,000; and (ii) and a total of 30% equity
interest in Shanghai Shengyou Venture Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Shengyou”) at total consideration of
RMB300,000 in cash together with capital commitment of
RMB1,200,000. Shanghai Shengjin VC is a company incorporated
in Shanghai, the PRC with a registered capital of RMB200,000,000
and its scope of business is venture capital investment in
companies with innovative and high growth in industries of new
materials, energy saving, environmental protection and high-
end equipment manufacturing, investment consultancy and
provision of enterprise management services. Shanghai Shengyou
is @ company incorporated in Shanghai, the PRC with registered
capital of RMB5,000,000 and its scope of business is investment
management, asset management, corporate management
consultancy, business consultancy, investment consultancy and
marketing planning. Completion of the transfers took place during
the year and Shanghai Shengjin VC and Shanghai Shengyou
become associates of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources, by corporate borrowings and by the net proceeds from
placing of new H shares of the Company during the year. As at
31 December 2016, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB510.6 million (2015: RMB314.9 million), which
were denominated mainly in RMB, HK$, USD and CAD.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB2,022.8 million (2015: RMB1,690.2 million).
The Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB166.4 million (2015: RMB218.1 million), comprising secured
bank loans of approximately RMB121.4 million (2015: RMB218.1
million) and unsecured bank loans of RMB45.0 million (2015:
RMB Nil). The bank loans were denominated in RMB and USD and
bore interest rates ranging from 4.35% per annum to 5.94% per
annum.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued promoters shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 581,760,000 shares respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

On 17 June 2016, the Company and a third party placing agent
entered into a placing agreement, whereby the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent, on a best
effort basis, of up to 96,960,000 placing H shares to not less than
seven but not exceeding ten independent placees at the placing
price of HK$0.99 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.85) per
placing H share (representing a discount of approximately 13.9%
to the closing price of HK$1.15 (equivalent to approximately
RMBO0.98) per H share on 17 June 2016). The placing was
completed on 11 July 2016 raising net proceeds of approximately
HK$95.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB81.9 million)
(representing a net placing price of approximately HK$0.98
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.84) per placing H share). The
Directors expected that approximately 70% of net proceeds of
the placing would be applied to explore acquisition opportunities
and development of new businesses; and approximately 30% of
the net proceeds of the placing would be used to repay existing
indebtedness and supplement working capital of the Group. As
at 31 December 2016, approximately RMB40.4 million was used
for acquisition of equity interests in associate and subsidiary
and the remaining balance was deposited in bank. As a result
of the placing, on 11 July 2016, the total number of issued
H shares of the Company was increased from 484,800,000 H
shares to 581,760,000 H shares, and the total number of issued
shares of the Company (including both the H shares and the
promoters shares) was increased from 1,184,800,000 shares to
1,281,760,000 shares. Details of the above were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 17 June 2016 and 11 July
2016.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2016, which is
measured by total interest-bearing debts to total equity, was 8.2%
(2015: 12.9%). There was an improvement in the gearing ratio as
a result of the stable level of total indebtedness and the placing of
new H shares during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held available-for-sale
financial assets of approximately RMB157.8 million, representing
5.9% of the total assets of the Group, which mainly comprised of:

(i)  18.7% equity interest in Enraytek Optoelectronics (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. ("Enraytek Optoelectronics”) with investment
cost of approximately RMB113.5 million at fair value of
approximately RMB110.7 million, representing 4.1% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2016. Enraytek
Optoelectronics is an unlisted private enterprise established
in the PRC and is principally engaged in LED and related
industrial chain design, development and manufacturing.
There is a decrease in fair value of approximately RMB72.8
million included in the other comprehensive income for the
year; and

(i) 3,916,340 ordinary shares of Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (“SMIC”) with investment cost of
approximately RMB31.2 million at fair value of approximately
RMB42.7 million, representing 1.6% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2016. SMIC is a Hong Kong listed
company with stock code 00981 and is principally engaged
in the manufacture and trading of semiconductor products.
There is an increase in fair value of approximately RMB14.3
million included in other comprehensive income for the year.

The Group considered the optimistic future prospect of LED
and semiconductor industries and expected that the Group’s
investments will be benefited in the long run. In addition, the
Group will continue exploring investment opportunities to diversify
investment business portfolio as well as broaden its income source.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any
significant investment plans as at 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB200 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities
granted to an associate of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most of
its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in
USD, CAD, RMB and HK$. The Group has not formulated a foreign
currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the production
costs are denominated in RMB and they are automatically
matched, leaving limited currency risk. The Group continues to
monitor its foreign exchange exposure and will take measures to
lower the foreign currency risk when necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB72.7 million (2015:
RMB50.2 million) and bank deposit and bank balances of
approximately RMB Nil (2015: RMB15.0 million) were pledged as
securities for the Group’s bank loans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. During the
year, the Group employed 2,256 people at the end of the year,
increased by 19% since the end of 2015. The increase in the
workforce is in line with the growth of the Group. The Group
strictly complied with applicable labour law and regulations.
Competitive remuneration package with medical and travel
insurance are offered to the staff. Adequate retirement funds
and provident funds are contributed on a timely basis. The
Group emphasizes on working safety and sets out proper safety
guidelines and provides adequate training to workers. Staffs are
free to set up trade union according to applicable laws while
the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory
Committee”) had representative from the workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances, and
discretionary bonus determined according to the performance of
individual Director.

The Group's staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB188.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: RMB161.4 million).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, aged 55, is an executive Director and
the president of the Company. Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible
for overall development strategies and the fund and investment
management business of the Group. He was graduated from
Peking University with a Master’s degree in science. He worked in
several administrative departments of Peking University including
the vice president of the Remote Sensing and Geographic
Information System Department of Peking University which
was responsible for the State’s focal science and technological
project. Mr. Zhang is a director of Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-
Tech (Cayman) Development Company Limited, Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investments (USA) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire
Alarm Device Company Limited and Chuangi Tourism Investment
Co., Ltd., which are subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang is
also a director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird International Education
Investment Management Co., Ltd. and a supervisor of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Limited (“Beida Jade Bird”). Mr. Zhang is an
executive director of King Stone Energy Group Limited (a listed
company in Hong Kong).

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 41, is an executive Director. Ms. Zheng
was graduated from the Molecular Biology Department of the
School of Life Sciences at Peking University in July 1997 and
subsequently obtained an MBA degree from the China Centre for
Economic Research at Peking University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng
worked for the Biological Engineering Centre under the Institute
of Chemical Metallurgy (now Institute of Process Engineering) at
Chinese Academy of Sciences, Department of Biology at Shenzhen
University and Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co., Ltd.. She was
also an assistant to the president of SINOGEN (China) Investment
Company, assistant to the head of Genetics Research Institute of
the School of Life Sciences at Tsinghua University, president of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., vice president of Beida
Culture Group, and assistant to president of Beida Jade Bird and
the general manager overseeing major projects. She is currently
a director of Beijing Jade Bird Yuda Information Technology Co.,
Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. She is
also a director of Shenzhen Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Co., Ltd., and
a director and deputy general manager of SBI-BDJB Investment
Consultant Ltd..
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ip Wing Wai, aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director and the compliance officer of the Company on 30 June
2015. Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
in Accounting from the The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since 2004. Mr. Ip possesses 16 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate field. Mr. Ip
worked in an international accounting firm for auditing and Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) as
an accounting manager. During September 2006 to August 2008,
Mr. Ip served as a finance manager and company secretary in a
Chinese coal investment company. He was in charge of financial
reporting, corporate finance, merger and acquisition and company
secretarial matters and he also coordinated the audit work and due
diligence work of a transaction in selling the company’s interest in
three coal mines in Shanxi to Shougang Fushan Resources Group
Limited (“Shougang Fushan”) (a listed company in Hong Kong). He
then worked with Shougang Fushan as a senior finance manager
from September 2008 to March 2010. During the tenure, he was
mainly responsible for the group’s financial reporting, project
evaluation, regulatory compliance and investors relationship. Mr.
Ip is currently the company secretary of Huili Resources (Group)
Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) and the vice president of
King Stone Energy Group Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong)
mainly responsible for merger and acquisition.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ni was
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor's degree in
computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation, founder
and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang Information
Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently the chairman of Beijing
Xizhi Education Technology Co., Ltd..
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Xue Li, aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 30 June 2015. Ms. Xue attended post-graduation level and is a
certified public accountant and a certified auditor in the PRC. Ms.
Xue is @ member of the Chinese Communist Party. She was the
finance manager of finance department of Lenovo Group Limited,
the deputy general manager (finance) of Digital China (China)
Limited, the chief accountant and deputy general manager of
Xinda Real Estate Co., Ltd. (an A share listed company in the PRC),
and the supervisor of Xishui Strong Year Co., Ltd., Inner Mongolia
(an A share listed company in the PRC). She was the executive
Director during the period from 20 May 2009 to 21 June 2012. Ms.
Xue is currently the acting chief executive officer, the executive
vice president and the financial controller of Beijing Aptech Beida
Jade Bird Information Technology Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhao Xuedong, aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Zhao was graduated from the
University of Electronic Science and Technology in Chengdu with a
Bachelor’s degree in electrical technology. Mr. Zhao was the R&D
engineer of the R&D center of Beijing Liyade Electrical Technology
Co., Ltd., the manager of design department of Tongfang
Company Limited (an A share listed company in the PRC), the
general manager of Shanghai Bohai Information Technology Co.,
Ltd., the vice general manager of Shanghai Yanhua Smartech Sci-
Tech Company Limited (an A share listed company in the PRC), the
pre-sales technical director of Schneider Electric (China) Co., Ltd.,
and the vice general manager of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Security
System Engineering Technology Company Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shao Jiulin, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shao is a graduate of Zhongnan University of Finance
and Economics and a member of the Chinese Communist Party.
Mr. Shao is a senior accountant, certified accountant and certified
tax agent in the PRC. He was the head of the finance division and
chief accountant of Wuhan Light Industry Fire Retardant Materials
Manufacturing Company, general manager of Hubei Daxin CPA
Co., Ltd. and independent director of Weifang Beida Jade Bird
Huaguang Technology Co., Ltd. (an A share listed company in
the PRC) and SINOPEC Wuhan Petroleum Group Co., Ltd.. He is
currently the vice president of China Qinlu Industrial Development
Co., Ltd..
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Juncai, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Li was graduated from the Geology Department of Peking
University in July 1983. Mr. Li is a member of the China Democratic
League. He is a senior engineer of geological and mineral
resources, certified appraiser of mining concession and certified
valuer of real estate. He was an assistant to the head of the Fourth
Geological Survey Department under the Jilin Bureau of Geology,
deputy general manager of Tonghua Dongbao Import & Export
Co., Ltd., general manager of Tonghua Asia Shopping Centre
under the Fourth Geological Survey Department under the Jilin
Bureau of Geology, manager of the mining concession appraisal
division of Jilin Dadi CPA Co., Ltd., and the deputy general
manager and principal mining concession appraiser of Wuhan
Tiandiyuan Consultant and Appraisal Ltd.. He is currently the
chairman of Heilongjiang Province Huan Cheng Mineral Resources
Appraisal and Consultant Ltd..

Mr. Lin Yan, aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Lin was graduated from the Peking University Law School with
a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1987 and was qualified as a solicitor
in the same year. He was graduated from the Department of
International Economic Laws, University of International Business
and Economics with a Master’s degree in Laws in 1990. He was
qualified as, among the first batch, a PRC solicitor for securities
in 1993. He worked for Beijing International Business Law Firm
as a full-time solicitor. He has completed the training programme
for independent directors organized by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission. He is a solicitor and a partner of Beijing
Xinghe Law Firm.

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co., Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory
department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.

BMFHTES(H)

FRAKE 555 RBUIFRTESE - F
EE-NN=ZFLAEERILRKRBHER
R -FRESTERIFNBEEE - RAMWE
TR A TAZEM - 5 088 3% 4 &Y 1k B K% = i
FEHEMEN - FEEBRNEMNEHERS
M EAEMAREIE  BEREEEEL
ORAREBEE  EMEHBEREMLER
BB EATESELE MR EET
MEBMAREEARBEERTHMLER
REXMRAAFGEAERAABBLERE
FEREFEET L - RREBRIEATHEE
BRIAHEAEGRARTESRER -

MERE 515 BRBIUFNITES - Mk
ER—NMNEFEERILRKRBERBR -
BEBE2TEM  RFENFRMER - BN
—NMNEFEXEREINEELE I RBERL
BERR  BRZABRLIEMN  R-AN=F
MEEAF - HEFRMER - REEBRN
EREINEBEREEHA - K FFEREM T
fE-RERBTEESEEEERE8H
MBI EEH - WIRSIER™TE AR E
B RERA -

FREXRE 61 R-E-AFRNA=T
BEZRERBUFATES - TRERTHE
HERS - RAMRLEE  KEM - F48
EFNEABREEE - REERERILR
T —REI BB - FartalEEERK
HBET RUAFE-—_BHERAGDESS
WEREFBIE - REERAETPEABHE
EEEZE8S LMAREER-

23



24

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited ~Annual Report 2016

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE EEREAEERE 28

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 83, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 59, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. Mr. Fan was graduated from Zhejiang University with
a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr. Fan worked
in the liaison office of the people’s government of Zhejiang
Province, Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and Zhejiang Qujiang
Industrial Company. He is currently a member of the management
committee of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou, president of Hangzhou
Branch of the School of Chinese Culture and an executive
president of Beida Jade Bird.

Professor Yang Jinguan, aged 54, is an independent Supervisor.
Professor Yang is a PRC Certified Public Accountant. He was
graduated from the accounting department of the Graduate
School, School of Finance of the Central University of Finance
and Economics with a Master’s degree in economics. He has been
teaching at the School since graduation and served as a tutor,
lecturer, associate professor and professor. He had studied at
Asahi of Japan. He is a professor of accountancy and the dean
of the registration office of the Central University of Finance and
Economics. He is the council member of China Institute of Internal
Audit, Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association and National
Higher Education Research Association, a member of Accounting
Society of China and a member of The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing
Pastry Factory, the Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing,
the Audiovisual Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the
Beijing Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of
"RKEEFE", a TV series, and the column director and producer
of " H I T~ &KX", aTV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the
chairman and the general manager of Beijing Evercare Shichiku
Medical Beauty Clinic Company Limited.
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SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lu Qingfeng, aged 36, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Lu was graduated from
the Accounting Department of Tianjin College of Finance
and Economics with a Bachelor’s degree in accounting, and
subsequently obtained an MBA degree from the Oklahoma State
University of the United States. Mr. Lu worked for the finance
department of Motorola, Inc’s branch in Tianjin and was the
associate director of Beijing China Equity Company Limited. Mr. Lu
is currently the director of Beijing Xinzhongrui Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd., the director of Beijing Shengxin Runcheng Venture Capital
Co., Ltd.,
of Enraytek Optoelectronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and a director of

the director of Greengery Capital Limited, the director

Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan Investment Management Co., Ltd..

Ms. Zhou Min, aged 41, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou was graduated
from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University of
International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou joined
Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined the Company
in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for administration
and human resources of the Company. She is the employee
representative of the Supervisory Committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 41,
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor

is the financial controller and

degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 19
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Liu Junjie, aged 43, attended master post-graduation
level. During March 1990 to January 2001, Mr. Liu served in
the People’s Liberation Army Second Artillery Corps as a squad
leader, an assistant and an officer. During July 2001 to December
2016, he worked in the personnel department and internal audit
department of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange as
an officer, a staff member, a deputy director, a principal staff
member, a deputy administrator and an administrator. Mr. Liu
joined the Company in December 2016 and is a vice president of
the Company.

Mr. Ceng Yongheng, aged 47, holds a Bachelor degree in
law. Mr. Ceng has worked in Changsha Blower Factory, Hunan
Hongyi Investment Group, Xiangxi Mengdong Helu Tourism
Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiajie Baofenghu Tourism Enterprise
Co., Ltd., Xiangxi Dehang Tourism Development Co., Ltd. and
Liuyang Daowushan Zhouluo Tourism Development Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Ceng joined Chuangi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. in 2008 and
is currently a director of Chuangi Cultural Development Group
Co., Ltd, a director and the general manager of Chuangi (Hunan)
Enterprise Development Co., Ltd, and a director and general
manager of Chuangi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 40, attended master post-graduation
level. Mr. Wang has worked in Beida Jade Bird. He is currently
an executive director and general manager of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a director of Beida Jade
Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited, the managing
director of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd., an executive director and the general manager of Beijing
Jade Bird Dingsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd., a director
of Enraytek Optoelectronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a director of
Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., a director of Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment
Co., Ltd., an executive director and general manager of Ningbo
Jade Bird Liyuantai Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd, and the
chairman of the supervisory committee of Shengyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong). Mr.
Wang joined the Company in March 2000 and is the secretary to
the Board and the chairman of the labor union of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 50, attended master post-graduation level.
Mr. Hu is a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior
accountant, the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate
of Certified Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in
Beijing Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building
Materials Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and the
finance director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd. as the
finance manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power Engineering
Co., Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the finance manager.
Mr. Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is the person in
charge of finance department of the Company.
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FRAMEWORK

The Company developed a set of documents with reference to
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to govern its corporate
practice.

The documents are as follows:
1. Code on the Corporate Governance;

2. Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors of
the Company (the “Securities Code”);

3. Duties of the Board of Directors;

4. Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the
President;

5. Board Diversity Policy;

6.  Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

7.  Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;

8.  Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee;
9. Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee; and

10.  Written Guidelines for Relevant Employees in respect of their
Dealings in the Securities of the Company.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply with
the Securities Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail
responsibilities of the Board are laid down on the articles of
association of Company (the “Articles”). Major duties include:

1. convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the
Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;

3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;

4.  formulation plans for change in registered capital and
issuance of bond;

5.  formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and
disposal plan;

6. formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the
Company if necessary;

7. employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8.  formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; etc.

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the
purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They
may seek independent professional advice if necessary at the
Company’s cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the
company secretary and senior management of the Company.

The Board delegated the management team with the
responsibilities for the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) EEg(E)
Composition REHRE
As at 31 December 2016, the composition of the sixth sessionof W—-—Z—XF+—-_A=+—H EXE&E=

— =

the Board is as follows: eZREHASNT

Position Gender

56 3]

Age
FiR

Date of first
appointment

BEREZEANY

Date of latest
re-election

RAEEAY

Zhang Wanzhong  Executive Director, President M 55 16/3/2000 30/6/2015
REH HITES - 2

Zheng Zhong Executive Director F 41 21/6/2012 30/6/2015
BE WITE=S

lp Wing Wai Executive Director M 38 30/6/2015 N/A3E FA
KK WITES

Ni Jinlei Non-executive Director, Chairman M 49 30/6/2015 N/ANE A
Re: FERITES  EF

Xue Li Non-executive Director F 58 20/5/2009 30/6/2015
R FHITEE

Zhao Xuedong Non-executive Director M 42 30/6/2015 N/AN3E A
HBR FEMITES

Shao Jiulin Independent non-executive Director M 54 21/6/2012 30/6/2015
AB LR BUIERITES

Li Juncai Independent non-executive Director M 55 21/6/2012 30/6/2015
FEA BUIERITES

Lin Yan Independent non-executive Director M 51 20/5/2009 30/6/2015
wa BUERITES

Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M 61 30/6/2015 N/A 3 A
FRE BUIERITES

EFeEERZEMETMMY X5
BB EMER AR -

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

Profiles of the Directors are detailed on pages 20 to 23 of this
annual report.

EEBRFHHENAFTRE208EFE23E -

All Directors were appointed for a term of three years starting from

PMEEEZEHBRB T —AFA=1
BEH=F  2REFHEEBRERET -

30 June 2015. All Directors are eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition (Continued)

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
expertise. Each independent non-executive Director has confirmed
to the Company in respect of his independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an annual confirmation
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company continues
to consider all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Segregation of duties between the Chairman and the
President

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a balance of
power and authority, the roles of the chairman and the president
of the Company are segregated and performed by Mr. Ni Jinlei and
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong respectively.

Board meetings

The Board convened 6 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2016 quarterly and 2015 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider and
approve important transactions of the Company. The Company
notifies the Directors with sufficient time in advance and provides
them with detailed agenda and sufficient information before each
Board meeting and sub-committee meeting. The Company gives at
least 15 days advance notice before each regular Board meeting.
Individual attendance records of each Director at the respective
Board and sub-committee meetings are set out in the table on
page 35 of this annual report.

Directors’ and senior officers’ liability insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from
their jobs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ training

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to the
Environmental, Social and Governance reporting guidance and the
listing document simplification guide.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reviewing financial information,
and advising the Board on engagement and independence of
independent auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin, Mr. Li Juncai, Mr. Lin
Yan and Mr. Li Chonghua. Mr. Shao Jiulin is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee had convened 4 meetings
to review the three 2016 quarterly results and 2015 annual results
of the Group, issues in respect of annual audits for 2016 and
connected transactions of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible for advising
the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself and senior
management, advising the Board on remuneration of non-
executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management, and review and
approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Juncai and Mr.
Lin Yan and one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Wanzhong.
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. A meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held
during the year to review the remuneration package of the Board,
the Supervisors and the senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) and making recommendations to the Board after
such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for the
Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board has adopted a policy concerning the diversification of
members of the Board. In setting the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the diversification of members of the
Board from various aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments to the Board
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversified categories, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in
various aspects including professional competence, knowledge
and experience. The Nomination Committee considered the
current structure, size and composition of the Board could meet
the business development needs of the Group.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin, Mr. Li Juncai and Mr. Lin Yan.
Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. One
meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year to
review the composition of the senior management of the Group.

EEZE2 (&)

REZEE(E)
EERCRMENETEREZ TILZK
R-MNRIUEFEZKEEAR » AREH
KEEAEEERZ TIEXNBENESTS
BEEBTERRMER - F&  XEERHEEE
BB EEER - RERAB - -EFE
HIRBERABES ZRNREMBKE  ME
BABERERETBER YRIBRES
SZTMLMGEz RS  c EFEHREABR
BRI Z T ERRE  BRETRNKE
A FlR XERBEES  KE  BEK
B BRI R AE o REORTE B REEE RKE
AZTRERBREEEHRZERMESL - 32
HAERBECNREEAERGEEFTE 2RE
RENREKX  BREXESTEH  AENER -
REZEGCLERESEZHERE AR
FEKRAINAARRRIZEHRERTE -

REZEGENA—BATES(AREHE
£) —RBFATES(AREHELE) =
FEIFNITER (ABPAMELE - FTRA K
ERMERE)VEK - REBEERRRBERE
EWNERF - REZEBEENFRERT —XE
& WBRAKERREERE 2HEK -



ERAERBRBFREROBRAT —FT—RFFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN A
1IEXENA -‘F&%

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS #EHESRLHE
Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub- REgz-—T—XE+_A=+—HIIEE
committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year BEHEsEe R/ \EESSURBEAS

ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: JEE  BIEHMT
Attendance
HE=R

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
Esg ERZEES FHzEE REZEE BRRAE

Sixth Sixth Fifth Second

Session Session Session Session

HRE ERE ERE -l

Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong REAKAE 5/5 N/AZNEF 1/1 1/1 112
Ms. Zheng Zhong BEL+ 5/5 N/AT i A N/ATER N/ATER 12
Mr. Ip Wing Wai BXESEE 5/5 N/AT A N/AT N/AT 12

Non-executive Directors FHTEE

Mr. Ni Jinlei FeZitE 6/6 N/ATN i F N/ATN 4 F 11 212
Ms. Xue Li BEZT 6/6 N/ATE A N/ATER N/ATER 112
Mr. Zhao Xuedong HBERLE 5/6 N/AZNEF N/ATN i P N/AZNE P 12
Independent BUINTEE
non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Juncai FEAKE 6/6 4/4 17 (Al 12
Mr. Shao Jiulin AL AE 6/6 4/4 N/ANE A 1/1 112
Mr. Lin Yan o=t 6/6 4/4 1 11 12
Mr. Li Chonghua RELL 6/6 474 N/ATER N/ATER 112

There was one special general meeting held during the yearended #HZ_-_ZE—"F+_A=+—HBIEFEET

31 December 2016. T REEREAE -
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE BExe

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles EE@iZRBERMAET - BOREAEE -
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible for EE&@ X EAEERARRZEEREET
monitoring the operation and management of the Company as {EANEERSREREAE 21T4A © AFHIE
well as the act of Directors and senior management to prevent any JE#E N EZILIRE - AR T RIEE#EZ ©

abuse of power and infringement of interests on Shareholders, the

Company and employees.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members. The
chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are Professor
Yang Jinguan, Mr. Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Lu Qingfeng and Ms. Zhou
Min. Ms. Zhou Min is the employee representative.

All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting
from 30 June 2015. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election.
Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 24 to 25 of this

annual report.

Attendance of meetings
The Supervisory Committee convened 4 meetings during the year.

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in
these meetings:

Mr. Fan Yimin B—REE
Professor Yang Jinguan 15 & BHIE
Ms. Zhou Min Bl

Mr. Ouyang Zishi BRf%F A St
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BREELL

The meetings were convened to review the financial statements of
the Group.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2016, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a
going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are
set out in the independent auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The remuneration paid/payable to RSM Hong Kong (“RSM"),
the Company’s independent auditor, in respect of annual audit
services and non-audit services in relation to potential transaction
of the Company amounted to approximately RMB1,700,000 and
RMB200,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They include:

o right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit distribution;

o right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy;

o right to supervise and manage the business activities of the
Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries;

° right to transfer shareholding in the Company;

o upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and
copy:

—  register of shareholders;

— certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors,
general manager and/or deputy general managers and
senior management members;

— certain information on repurchase of Shares; and

— minutes of shareholders’ meeting

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the
following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Unit 7605, 76th Floor, The Center, 99
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Right to convene meeting

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution(s) to
be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting within
30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders who
give the requests are entitled to convene the proposed general
meeting themselves 4 months after the Board received their
requests at the Company’s expense.

Right to sue

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and
senior management members. A Shareholder can also take legal
action against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted
through court or arbitration authority.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system for the Group,
which covers four main areas namely financial management,
operation, compliance and reporting, and risk management. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Financial management

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary is
responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement
subject to the supervision of the Board.

Operation

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental
destruction incidents occurred during the year.

Compliance and reporting

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company
to monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the
Group. With the assistance of company secretary and financial
controller of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out its
duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws, rules
and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and
reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.

During the year, the Company published announcements and
notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of inside
information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material transaction
especially connected transaction proposed by either the subsidiary
or the Company itself must first be assessed by the compliance
officer of the Company to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The Company
seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as the Stock
Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of conduct to
govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant employees.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Compliance and reporting (Continued)

The Directors often update themselves about changes in applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of the
Company also update any such change to the Board and the listing
supervision division of the Company.

Risk management
The risk management function focuses on market unpredictability
and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2016. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope
of review was previously determined and approved by the Board.
The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board is of the
view that there are no material internal control defeats noted.
All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings.

There was no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

PREAMBLE

Being one of the prominent brands in fire alarm equipment
industry in the PRC, we actively perform the enterprises’
environmental and social responsibilities not only in this main
segment, but also in our tourism development business and
winery business. The Board is ultimately responsible for leading
the Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") works,
including establishing dedicated management teams under the
headquarters to manage ESG issues within each business divisions,
and appointing designated staff to enforce and supervise the

implementation of relevant policies.

The Group is committed to making continuous improvements in
corporate environmental and social responsibility in order to meet
the changing needs of a sustainable society. The Group is pleased
to present the ESG report for the financial year 2016, from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (“FY2016"), to demonstrate
its efforts on sustainable development.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE REPORT
This ESG report covers the operational boundaries including data
and activities of our office in Hong Kong, manufacturing and sale
of electronic fire equipment business mainly in Hebei, Beijing,
Sichuan and Shanghai, tourism development business in Hunan,
and winery business in Virginia, United States. For governance
section, please refer to pages 28 to 40 of this annual report.

The reporting period of this ESG report is for FY2016, unless
specifically stated otherwise.
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RIB - g RERHmE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

To conduct materiality assessment in identifying and
understanding the main concerns and prior issues to stakeholders
in the ESG report, we have engaged our stakeholders, including
employees, suppliers, investors and shareholders through
their preferred communication channels to conduct the ESG
materiality assessment surveys. Stakeholders are selected based
on stakeholder influence and stakeholder dependence on the
Group. Stakeholders with high influence and high dependence
on the Group are selected by the management of the Group. The
selected stakeholders have been invited to express their views and
concerns on major social and environment issues. The stakeholder
engagement has been conducted through online survey.

After assessing the feedback from internal and external
stakeholders through their preferred channels of the materiality
assessment surveys, we have viewed our sustainability strategies,
practices and measures undertaken in FY2016 and highlighted
material and relevant aspects throughout this report so as to align
with the stakeholders’ expectations.

Through the ESG materiality assessment surveys this year, the
Group is paying more emphasis on driving its business to an
environmental friendly manner. The shareholders and investors
even expressed their strong support on using green energy rather
than high pollution energy to help reduce the carbon emission,
to adopt reasonable technical approaches in order to save energy
consumption. They expected to make proper contribution to social
sustainable development and to curb global climate change.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to ensuring effective environmental
management and strictly complies with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations imposed by local government
in its production and operation to strive for sustainable
development. With continuous efforts made on saving energy and
encouraging on 3R Principle — Recycle, Reduce, Reuse, the Group
is expected to achieve the green manufacturing line and to earn
social economic benefit in the long run.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Al.

Emissions

The Group operates its business in compliance with the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise Pollution and
other relevant laws.

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment
business

The Group’s main production plant of electronic fire
equipment is located at Hebei, Beijing and Sichuan, and a
business operating office in Shanghai. The Group conducted
regular treatments on the environmental pollutants
during the manufacturing process, and kept meticulous
monitoring and controlling on the emissions including air
emission, waste water, solid waste and noise, to guarantee
the emissions were all complied with the corresponding
discharge standards of the PRC.

The Green House Gas (“GHG") emission of the Group’s
manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment is mainly
generated from its purchased electricity consumed by the
daily operation. With more and more emphasis on save
energy and curb global climate change by the Group’s
management, along with the effective implementation of the
corresponding policies and measures by the Group's internal
employees, the Group hopes to reach a positive reduction of
the GHG emission from its production line progressively.

Oil fume generated from canteens is the only kind of the air
emission in the manufacturing plant during the operation.
After appropriate treatment by the fume purifier, the oil
fume emission were complied with the PRC fume emission
standard of catering industry, with the oil fume density less
than 2.0mg/m?.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment
business (Continued)

No industrial waste water generated from the manufacturing
process, all of the waste water was domestic sewage which
generated from the daily usage. After our initial treatment
by the sedimentation basin and septic tank in our plants, we
then discharged the treated sewage which meets the local
discharge standard to the municipal sewage treatment plant
for further treatment.

We have been continuously performing the separate
collection method on our daily domestic garbage to ensure
the reuse of the recyclable waste, for example: packaging
boxes, cans, glass and metals, they were collected by the
municipal sanitation department for further disposal. Apart
from the daily domestic garbage, there still existed some
amount of industrial solid waste: the defective equipment
which failed to pass our strict testing procedures. To avoid
unnecessary waste, repair and maintenance works were
conducted on the defective equipment until they reach
the requirement that can be recycled and reused. For the
unrepairable parts, we must guarantee the careful collection
and send them to the qualified recycle company for further
disposing and recycling.

In order to minimise the mechanical noise from welding
process to the lowest degree, we have adopted several
effective measures such as using acoustic equipment, shock
absorption equipment and double soundproof glass. Besides,
with our manufacturing plant already far away from the
residential area, mechanical noise was decaying by the
absorption of greenbelts and natural air, and absolutely
reached the Level 2 of the PRC noise emission control
standard.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

Tourism development business

The Group is the environmental shuttle bus operator in
Hengshan Mountain scenic area in Hunan Province, PRC.
The Group scrupulously choose its environmental shuttle bus
from a number of suppliers, to ensure the vehicle pollutants
meet the national standard.

The GHG emission of the Group’s tourism development
business is mainly from the combustion of fuels by its
environmental shuttle buses and the generation from
purchased electricity that is consumed by its daily business
operation.

Every time when our shuttle bus departs, we have engaged
our bus drivers to do a kindly remind speech in order to
guarantee our every passenger must strictly obey our policies
on protecting the environment at the tourism area:

o Through rubbish out of window is strictly prohibited,;

o Rubbish must be carefully and separately collected; and

° Rubbish will be collected by the Group’s staff when the
trip ends.

Sewage from the daily domestic use of water by the Group's
staff is the only waste water generated, and alike garbage
generated from Group daily operation is the only solid waste
generated. The Group has implemented simple policies to
reduce and manage the amount of sewage and garbage
during our daily operation, by saving water resource and by
separately collecting garbage for recycle and reuse.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Al

A.2.

Emissions (Continued)

Winery business

The Group has business of production and sales of wine and
related products in Virginia, the United Sates. We grew grape
in our own vineyard, we also produced organic fertiliser
by piling the waste material, stirred and mixed with lime,
so that the wastes were all composted on site to reach a
“zero waste” production line. We maintained riparian zones
around our drains for waste water recycling, and we were
using stored rainwater for irrigation during the sunny days in
order to save the amount of fresh water consumed. Besides,
we ensure certified pesticide applicators license for both our
winemaker and the person who sprays the vineyard, so that
it is guaranteed that no hazardous waste will exist in our
vineyard.

The GHG emission is generated from the Group’s purchased
electricity that was consumed during the vineyard’s daily
operation. We believe that as the owner of the vineyard with
large land area covering by green plants, part of the GHG
generated will be absorbed by the photosynthesis, so that to
offset some amount of the GHG simultaneously. We will take
continuous efforts on reducing the carbon emission by saving
electricity and planting more trees.

Use of Resources

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment
business

The Group strives to save energy and resources through
persistent implementation of internal policies and use of
advanced technologies in order to ensure our resources are
fully utilised at each operation procedure.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
A.2. Use of Resources (Continued)
Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment
business(Continued)
Staff daily use of water is the only place of the Group’s
water consumption, there is no water consumed from
manufacturing process. In order to guarantee the best utilise
of water resources and to save water consumption, we have
been continuously execute the following measures during
our daily operation:

o Do regular propaganda and education work on saving
every drop of water among our internal staff;

° Place posters “Saving Water Resource” in prominent
places to encourage water conservation;

o Collect used water if possible for cooling purposes,
floor cleaning and yard washing;

° Carry out regular leakage tests on water tap, washers
and other defects in the water supply system;

o Fix dripping taps immediately; and

o Turn off the water supply system at night and on
holidays.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
A.2. Use of Resources (Continued)
Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment
business (Continued)
We are committed to saving electricity from both our
manufacture line and our office daily operation with the
following measures:

o Turn office lights off whenever and wherever not
necessary;

o Turn office cooling air-conditioners down, or turning
off whenever not necessary;

o Place posters “Saving Electricity, Turn off the Light
when Leaving” in prominent places to encourage
internal employees;

o Clean the office equipment regularly (such as
refrigerator, air-conditioner, paper shredder, etc.) to
maintain they are running efficiently;

o Replace high electricity consumption lamps with
the installation of electricity saving lamps for office
lighting;

° Make good use of the energy-saving features and
options which come with the operating system of the
computers;

o Encourage the use of staircase instead of taking the lift
for inter-floor traffic; and

o Arbitrarily use of heating equipment and other
electricity guzzling appliances are prohibited in the
Group’s operation boundary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

A.2. Use of Resources (Continued)

Tourism development business

We are continuously striving to save electricity and water
resource by the same basic policies described as above. Apart
from the electricity and water resources, we also take proper
usage on the fuel for our environmental shuttle bus.

Winery business

By adopting effective measures on saving the electricity such
as to make sure lights are not left on when it is unnecessary,
to use LED lightening instead of electricity guzzling lights,
we are sure that electricity consumption by our vineyard will
be reduced year by year. With the use of recycled water and
rainwater as the irrigation water, a large amount of fresh
water will be saving by this way, we expect to make more
contribution on water resource conservation by using more
grey water in our vineyard in the future.

We acknowledge that for wine production and sale business,
there can be large consumption of packaging material. In
order to save the amount of packaging materials, we not
only recycle the bottles, corks and cardboard boxes whenever
it is possible, but also persist in using some eco-glass bottles
which are more environmental friendly instead of the normal
glass bottles.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources
The main natural resource consumed by the Group is paper
from its office printing machine. To minimise the use of
paper, the Group has made great efforts from the “starting
point” to the “end point” described as below:

o Choose the more environmental friendly paper source
as the supplier, through which to indirectly reduce the
amount of trees loss while producing the same amount
of paper;

o Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via
email or e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

o Set duplex printing as the default mode for most
network printers;

o To “think before print”: use posters and stickers as the
reminder for office staff to avoid unnecessary printings;

o Place boxes and trays beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse and used paper
for recycle;

o Give a second chance: encourage staff to use paper
printed on only one-side for draft documents or as
scratch paper;

° E-mail tips: to remind staff consider the environment
before printing the email.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY HETRERE
Employment and Labour Practices ERERS Tk
B.1. Employment B.1. 1EfE

We treasure talent as it is the most valuable asset and key
for driving the success and maintaining sustainability of the
corporation. We are striving to provide them a safety and
suitable platform for developing career professionalism and
advancement.

Our human resources policies strictly adhere to the applicable
employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC
and United States, including, the Employment Ordinance,
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Minimum
Wage Ordinance, Fair Labour Standards Act of the United
States, Company Law of the PRC, Labour Law of the PRC,
Labour Contract Law of the PRC, and the social security
schemes that are enforced by the State Regulations of the
PRC to provide employee benefits. Our human resources
department reviews and updates the relevant company
policies regularly in accordance with the latest laws and
regulations.

To attract high-calibre workforce, we offer competitive
and fair remuneration and benefits based on individuals’
performance, education, professional qualifications,
experiences and market benchmarks to attract, motivate
and retain high-calibre workforce. In order to motivate and
reward our existing management and employees, we have
formulated the compensation and benefits system and
conduct regular salary adjustment to ensure that our staffs
are recognised by the Group appropriately with regard to
their working efforts and contributions. Proper incentive
and competitive remuneration packages are greatly help
on retaining the talents. Meanwhile, any termination of
employment contract would be based on reasonable and
lawful grounds. We strictly prohibit any kinds of unfair or
unreasonable dismissals.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
B.1. Employment (Continued)

HETRHERRE(E)
BIERLY T (&)
B.1. {E1E(#E)

Throughout the Group, we arrange reasonable working
hours and leave for our employees which complied with
the legal minimum age and wages and in line with local
employment laws and written agreement with employees. In
addition to statutory holidays stipulated by the employment
law of the local government such as the basic paid annual
leave, employees may also be entitled to marriage leave,
maternity leave and compassionate leave.

In terms of internal coaching and communication, effective
two-way communication between the general staff and
managerial staff is highly encouraged. Employees maintain
timely and smooth communication with the management,
colleagues and partners of the companies within the Group
through bulletin board posting, email, training and meeting.
We have staff union to provide timely recommendations on
quality, environment, and occupational health and safety
management aspects to management. The interactive
communication system benefits the Group’s decision-
making process and results a barrier-free employer-employee
relationship.

As an equal opportunity employer, we are committed to
create a fair, respectful and diverse working environment
by promoting anti-discrimination and equal opportunity in
terms of all human resources and employment decisions, for
instance, training and promotion opportunities, dismissals
and retirement policies irrespective of their gender,
race, age, disability, family status, marital status, sexual
orientation, religion beliefs, nationality or any other non-
job related factors in all business units according to our anti-
discrimination regulations. Our equal opportunities policy
enforces zero tolerance to any workplace discrimination,
harassment or victimisation in accordance to relevant
government legislation, ordinances and regulations such
as Hong Kong's Disability Discrimination Ordinance and
Sex Discrimination Ordinance. The employees have right to
report any suffered discrimination and our human resources
department and staff union will be investigated and
responded to the complaints in an oral or written manner
in a short time. Disciplinary actions would be taken against
any employee if there is any non-compliance or breach of
legislation related to the equal opportunities policies.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

B.1.

B.2.

Employment (Continued)

To cultivate employees’ sense of belonging, additional
employee benefits include medical and accident insurance
and body check. To cater the needs of employees working
at of manufacturing facilities, additional employee benefits
include the provision of working meals allowance, well-
equipped dormitories and transportation between working
sites and dormitories. In FY2016, we hosted a series of
activities for its employees, including a diverse range of
activities such as annual dinner, outing, sport competition
and travels. These events helped our employees to relieve
stress, and served to exemplify the Group’s corporate culture
of the spirit of solidarity and cohesion among its employees.

Health and Safety

To provide and maintain a good working condition and a
safe and healthy working environment, our safety and health
policies are in line with various laws and regulations stipulated
by local government, including Hong Kong’s Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance, the Production Safety Laws of the
PRC, Labour Law of the PRC, Occupational Disease Prevention
Law in PRC, Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance
and Occupational Safety and Health Act of the United States.
In order to ensure the health of employees, we organise
regular staff body check, conduct and pass environmental
and occupational health and safety management for two
consecutive years since 2015 and install exhaust ventilation
system to ensure good ventilation in production. For the
current production lines, we install smoke pipe system and
provide professional masks to workers to prevent lead smoke
hazards. In additions, we provide professional earplugs
and take the work shifting system to protect the health of
employees especially for those workers who test on sound
and light alarms, in accordance with the national laws and
regulations on prevention of occupational diseases. For special
types of operating positions, we regularly organise staff
assessment and training in protect them for health and safety
working environment.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
B.2. Health and Safety (Continued)
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B.2 REHEZ% (/)

We have set up and strictly followed different internal
manuals such as site safety management standards, safety
production accident investigation and management system,
labour protection management system, safety production
management system and other procedures documents in
order to meet the specific safety management and comply
with the related fire safety regulations, labour protection
management regulations and the safety regulations in
production site.

We target to achieve accident-free workplace environment
by prohibiting smoking and drinking liquor in workplace,
carrying out the cleaning of air-conditioning systems and
disinfection treatment of carpets, building up safety warning
signs, and holding regular safety work meetings, emergency
response drill and safety inspection at regular intervals with
an aim to maintain a clean, tidy, smoke-free, non-toxic,
non-hazardous, healthy and safe working environment.
The production director and safety management committee
on production base supervise and implement the health &
safety measures and ensure they are implemented properly.
Besides, we hold regular health and safety work trainings
in emergency management, hazardous materials handling,
machine safeguarding and occupational health and safety
areas to remind employees to minimise the risk of accidents
and enhance the employees’ health and safety awareness.

BAME R W ERBETFZAIFM - 4
(RSRZ2EEEE) (Z2EESFNK
BEHERAEHIE) (BEHHERD
EEEGE) (L2EEBEERES
EYREMBFXH EEMERELX
2ERERRETHAN AR EBERA
L ERmEEERERIREERS
LEAEP o

BPNFERTEINNITIERSE -
%t&lﬁ%%%@@@ HiTzE *A
RBER HWEES  BURREEE
W ARTHERZEIESH® B2
EEER - THLZEREUEFER -

ﬁ@~ﬁ§~ﬁ%~&§&yim1¢
RIE - HEEEMNEETENRTEEE
ZESAREERAITRELRERNE -

WHERE ERRITHZIREE © 1o - B
PRESEE  AEVMRESE  #H%
2 [y I B ZE R R DA e &2 2 SE I8 E B
BEEREZ2TIEE - REREERIK
EHERBEkEREENRRERELEE
& o

%E‘ﬁ

pall}



ERAERBRBEFREROBRAT —F—

NEFH

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

B.3.

B.4.

Development and Training

We have a training centre located at Hebei which offers
different training and development opportunities to our
staff in order to strengthen work-related skills and improve
operational efficiency and productivity. In 2016, we held a
range of regular trainings and development programmes to
encourage lifelong learning. For new hired employees, we
provide comprehensive orientation training to introduce our
corporate history, culture, business policies and procedures
and product knowledge. For experienced staff, we offer
technical and operational training such as production line
training, new product introduction, design of gas fire
extinguishing system and gas detection testing. We also
encourage employees to attend external safety training and
examinations by providing subsidies which aim to enhancing
their competitiveness in working place and expanding their
capacity through continuous learning.

Labour Standards

We strictly abide by the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the
PRC, Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC and other related
labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong, China and other
regions to prohibit any child and forced labour employment.

To combat against illegal employment on child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, prior the confirmation
of employment, our human resources staff responsible
for recruitment requires the job applicants to provide a
valid identity documents to ensure that the applicants are
lawfully employable and ensure compliance of latest and
relevant laws and regulations that prohibits child labour
and forced labour. The Group formulated guidelines such

s “Prohibition of Engaging Child Labour Administrative
Provisions and Remediation Procedures” in order to
completely eradicate child labour, underage workers and

forced labour.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) HEURERRE(H)
Operating Practices EEER
B.5. Supply Chain Management B.5. fRfEHEEHE

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital
to maintain and manage a sustainable and reliable supply
chain. We achieve this goal by conducting comprehensive
evaluation of potential suppliers and thorough investigations
of selected suppliers by site visiting on the production
capacity, price, quality of suppliers’ raw materials and
services, and reviewing the suppliers’ products, on-time
supply record, technology development and customer
satisfaction.

Before we enter into purchase framework agreements,
we maintain close communication and we have a detail
assessment with various suppliers to ensure that they are
complied with local laws and regulations and their social and
environmental responsibility. We require suppliers to provide
business license, tax registration certificate, organisation
code, product production licenses, financial information and
other business certificates such as RoHS Standards, Quality
Management System Certification (ISO9001), Environmental
Management System Certification (ISO14001), occupational
health management system certification (ISO18001) and
China Compulsory Certification (“3C Certificate”) for
internal assessment.

Purchasing and quality control department has performed
annual evaluation by reviewing the performance of suppliers
with regard to the price, quality, on-time delivery, services
and technology and other aspects of suppliers with fairness
and carrying out supervision and inspection in an appropriate
amount of time so as to maintain a good and long-term
relationship with suppliers. Those qualified supplier will
become the “approved suppliers” and actively collaborate
with us to provide high-quality products. To avoid the
disruption in production, we maintain at least three suppliers
for each product to prevent monopoly and reducing
procurement costs. Our procurement department sets out
the purchase forecast and places orders in advance to ensure
timely delivery.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)

B.5.

B.6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

For any non-compliance with our standard, the Group would
urge suppliers to take corrective actions immediately to
rectify the deficiencies in specific of time. The Group would
closely monitor the implementation of the remedial measures
to ensure that they are carried out properly and effectively.

Product Responsibility

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business
In order to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
end-users and consumers and to strengthen the supervision
and control of the quality of products, we comply with
related law and regulations on products safety and health,
advertising and labelling including Law of the PRC on Product
Quality, Fire Prevention Law of the PRC and Metrology Law
of PRC.

Great importance is attached to the product quality and
safety of our fire safety products. As our products are
classified as China Compulsory Certification ("CCC")
products, our quality management system adheres to a
number of national and internationally recognised technical
specifications for different products such as GB/T19001-
2008, GB16808-2008, GB/T24001-2004, CCCF-HZBJ-01
and GA1061-2013 in production on fire equipment.
Our quality control department is responsible for quality
inspection and product testing including leakage test,
basic function test and alarm sensitivity test based on the
product graphs, technical requirement and methodologies.
Following the internal operating manuals such as record
control procedures, product monitoring and measurement
control procedures and production process control program,
we ensure our products are in health and safety used and
meet the needs of customers. The certified products shall be
inspected at least once for every three years.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)

HEAUHERE(E)
CEEE(E)

B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. EmEF (&

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business
(Continued)

By implementing a full range of quality control in production
process and continuous investment on research and
development, we aim to serve the high quality products
beyond customers’ expectation under “Sincere cooperation
with mutually benefits” principle. The Group adopts a
rapid approach in addressing any product deficiencies and
recalling issues especially in fire equipment. The Group has
responsibility to solve the deficiencies and replacement
within 24 hours. Every month, we conduct regular inspection
of the use’s equipment and hear feedback from user to
ensure the fire systems in the best working condition.

Tourism development business

We strictly comply with related law and regulations
in rendering of travel and leisure services including
Regulation of the PRC on Road Transport, Provisions on the
Administration of Road Passenger Transport and Passenger
Stations and Provisions on the Administration of Motor
Vehicle Maintenance. We actively developed tourist sight
project located at the famous scenic area and provide the
environmental shuttle bus for visitors at Hengshan Mountain
scenic area.

The Group has established safety production committee
("Safety Committee”) to lead the overall safety work
in tourism development. We have formulated the daily
quality inspection and reward and punishment standards,
administration of operation service, safety production
management system and daily quality inspection log. The
quality inspection staff have to monitor the quality of
service and prepare monthly service quality analysis in order
to identify problems and implementation of rectification.
Furthermore, the Safety Committee preforms annual
assessment for traffic safety indicators: frequency of general
liability accident, frequency of accidental death, frequency
of accidental injury, direct economic loss on accident and
frequency of minor accident.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

HEAUHERE(E)
“EER(E)
B.6. EmET (&

Tourism development business (Continued)

We set up safety maintenance committee to implement the
safety management system by monitoring and reporting the
vehicle maintenance plan on a monthly basis and perform
the vehicle maintenance task such as annual inspection
and safety technical assessment on time to ensure the
transportation vehicles is in a good condition. Under
the general conditions, our transportation shall comply
with GB7258-87 “Safety Technical Conditions for Motor
Vehicles”, GB4785-84 “"Numbers, Positions and Colours
of the External Lighting and Light Signalling Devices for
Motor Vehicles and Their Trailers” and JT3111-85 “Highway
Passenger Transport General Technical Conditions”.

Winery business

Upholding the core value of “A Taste of History”, we actively
provide good quality wines to our customers. All products
before selling to the customers must be inspected under
Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (“TTB") Labelling
Compliance, Occupational Safety and Health Administration
("OSHA") Complications, Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA") and Food and Drug Administration (“FDA")
Compliance. Wine labels, which must be pre-approved by
TTB, are an important source of information for consumers.
Our products labels have to be approved by TTB and go
through lab analysis to ensure that our alcohol products are
created, labelled, and marketed in accordance with Federal
laws and regulations and distinguish from other competitors.
We shall go through the Federal label certification and
approval process prior selling the wines to the market. In
additions, we monitor the alcohol and acidity level to ensure
that our wine is a healthy and safety product. Our wine is
tested monthly for quality control and is analysed for alcohol,
heat and cold stability, pH and protein stability prior to
bottling.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)

HEAUHERE(E)
CEEE(E)

B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. EmEE(E

The Group

The Group has issued internal guideline to ensure our
marketing department is providing accurate and precise
descriptions and information to our customers that comply
with the relevant laws and regulations for local operations
such as Advertising Law of the PRC. Any misrepresentation
or exaggeration of offerings made by our staffs is strictly
prohibited. We have legal counsel to prevent violations of
our advertising and labelling practices.

We maintain a variety ways to grasp the needs of the
customers with the sales department through weekly
meeting, new product introduction meeting, visiting users
and customer hotline. We conduct the annual customer
satisfaction survey to dealers and customers. Our research
and development department shall promptly deal with the
customer complaints and opinions on quality problems and
shall take appropriate treatment for new product quality
requirements. Besides, our after-sales department and
quality control department will perform the evaluation and
investigation upon receipt of complaints to identify the
cause of problems, record the details of the complaint and
contact the customers to solve the problems. We strive to
ensure improvements on our products and services’ quality
by collecting customers’ feedback and conducting regular
checks throughout all the production stages.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)

B.6.

B.7.

Product Responsibility (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

We strictly abide by the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
Law on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests of the
PRC and related law in other operating regions to ensure
our customers’ rights are strictly protected. Information
collected would only be used for the purpose for which it
has been collected and customers would be told about how
the data collected would be used in business. We prohibit
the provision of consumer information to a third party
without authorisation from the customers. Customers remain
the rights to review and revise their data, and also remain
the rights to opt out from any direct marketing activities.
All collected personal data is treated confidentially and
is kept securely, accessible by designated personnel only.
We emphasise on confidentiality obligations and the legal
consequences for the breaches of obligations.

Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working
environment, we strictly adhere to the laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption and bribery irrespective of the
area or country where the Group is conducting business
such as Law of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering, Hong
Kong's Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and Foreign Corrupt
Practice Act and Money Laundering Control Act of the
United States. We have formulated comprehensive operation
system which prevents any bribery, extortion, fraud and
other illegal activities as stipulated in operational manuals
such as operation services and audit management system
and procurement management methods. All employees are
expected to discharge their duties with integrity and self-
discipline, and they should abstain from engaging in any
activities related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering which might affect their business decision or
independent judgment in the course of business operations,
resulting in exploiting their positions against the Group's
interests.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)

HETRE
EEEE(E)
B.7. RE)T(#&)
Furthermore, we have set up internal whistleblowing policy AN - R R L A ERRE - EE

(&)

B.7. Anti-corruption (Continued)

to enable employees to report any suspicious activities
including any request, receipt or acceptance of any forms
of benefits from any persons, companies or organisations
having conflict of interest with the Group and misconduct
behaviours to the Group. The management would conduct
investigations under confidential, objective and instant
principle to protect the Group’s interests.

We advocate a confidentiality mechanism to protect the
whistle-blowers from fear of threatens and any disadvantage
to the whistle-blowers’ employment relationship. Where
criminality is suspected, a report is made to the relevant
regulators or law enforcement authorities.

Community
B.8. Community Investment

The Group puts high value on participating in the
harmonious social construction both in its PRC business
segment and overseas business segment. The Group’s winery
has been donating its place along with wine tasting at no
cost to local organisations and local non-profit organisations
for hosting many social community events. The Group's PRC
subsidiaries have also been insisting on fulfilling the social
responsibilities for many years and we always believe that the
corporate should do more for the community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERARS

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Community (Continued)

HEUHERE (R
HE ()

B.8. Community Investment (Continued) B.8. #HERE (#E)

The Group's fire system subsidiary has been providing plenty
of jobs to its local community, especially arranging the job
opportunities for the local residents who are in difficulty. We
have been awarded for the provision of jobs and solving the
employment issues by our local community. The Group’s fire
system subsidiary also conducted and participated in the fire
control propaganda activities, with the theme on “Concern
about safety. Caring for life. Caring for the future”, to
educate the local residents and schools with fire control
knowledge. We were also awarded for always making great
contribution on the corporate tax. We have been taking care
of our employment from every aspect by setting finance
reward and continuing education reward for our excellent
employment. We pay high attention on the environmental
protection, we have been insist on the greening actions
within our plant, we have been regularly collecting the
recyclable waste and selling them to the local recycle station
for more environmental-friendly disposal.

The Group’s tourism subsidiary has been awarded as the
excellent company in Hunan Province for several successive
years. The Group’s environmental shuttle buses achieved the
“Pioneer Workers” honorary title by the Safety Department
of Hengyang City, Hunan Province. We are the “AAA"
enterprise in credit quality, “A" enterprise in the tax credit
quality, excellent enterprise in Hengyang City and many
other rewards. We have been offering the free shuttle bus
service for the local students to go to school and pick them
up after school for eight successive years. We organised free
shuttle buses especially during the examinations period for
local students. The winter period is longer due to the altitude
in the scenic area than other places, it is always covered
with heavy snow. In order to ensure the smooth traffic of
the scenic area, the Group volunteering in the cleaning
works every winter. By doing this contribution we have been
praised by lots of tourists. We sponsored the sports games
and other kinds of cultural activities in Nanyue District. We
also sponsored our internal staff with financial difficulties.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of embedded
system products and related products during the year. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of business review of these activities, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found
in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to
19 of this annual report. Such discussion forms part of this report
of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 89.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 90
to 91 and note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2015: Nil) for the year.

No interim dividend was declared in 2016 (2015: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 5. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the Company Law of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, an amount of approximately RMB450.0
million (2015: RMB377.7 million) standing to the credit of
the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount of
approximately RMB76.8 million (2015: RMB76.8 million) standing
to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation issue
in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company had, as
described in note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
retained profits of approximately RMB81.6 million (2015: RMB57.0
million) as at 31 December 2016. Details of the distributable
reserves are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
36.3% (2015: 36.4%) of the total purchases for the year while the
largest supplier accounted for 16.1% (2015: 12.7%) of the total
purchases for the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (CONTINUED)
The Group has sold certain products to related companies
controlled by Peking University. Details of transactions are set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as
aforesaid, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DONATIONS
The Group had made donations of RMB672,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB1,078,000).

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong
Ms. Zheng Zhong

Mr. Ip Wing Wai

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ni Jinlei

Ms. Xue Li

Mr. Zhao Xuedong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shao Jiulin

Mr. Li Juncai

Mr. Lin Yan

Mr. Li Chonghua

Supervisors

Mr. Fan Yimin
Professor Yang Jinguan
Mr. Ouyang Zishi

Mr. Lu Qingfeng

Ms. Zhou Min
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and
Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 20 to 27.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 30 June 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2016, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor of
the company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests (including interests in
shares and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief
executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of
the Company

Number of ordinary shares

EEREE

Interests in
promoters
Shares
(Note)
REBA  Interests in
3% H Shares
Capacity A 5 RHER 2
g% (KizE) #i
Director
B
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong  Beneficial owner and 205,414,000 =
REPEE beneficiary of trust
EafiR ARERXEA
Supervisor
Ex
Ms. Zhou Min Beneficiary of trust 205,414,000 -

EREHA

RAgzL

205,414,000

205,414,000

EE EERESTRAERROR
HERD 2 EHERXR

R-ZT—RE+-A=+—H &% E=Z
MARRREEITHRABRAR B3 H A
E(EEREFRPEHR(IZS KRAEK
Bl EXVER) 2 IR RABERMD T - HHRIE
HH RAE G E3521GE e R AR B B M
HRBAIZEIR LR RIE5. 4616 2 s (BIE
Bt AR )T ¢

AABEBREEERD TR

Approximate
percentage
of the
Company'’s

Approximate
percentage
of the
Company's

Approximate
percentage
of the
Company'’s

total number
of issued total number
of issued  total issued
H Shares
EAAH
BR1T
HR &

BOE

promoters

share capital
AT
BRI
RAEY
BRABAL

Shares

AR ]
BERTREA

Total R EE
a3 BOESKN

29.34% = 16.03%

29.34% = 16.03%
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of

the Company (Continued)
Note:

The above Director and Supervisor are taken to be interested in the
issued share capital of the Company through their respective interests as
beneficiaries, among other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng Huat
Trust”). By a declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on 19 July
2000, Mr. Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and Ms. Liu Yue (who has
been replaced by Mr. Xu Zhixiang since 9 May 2003 as a trustee) declared
that they held the shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (“Heng Huat"”)
as trustees for the benefits of over 300 employees of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Software System Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird Software”), Beida Jade Bird
and Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering Co.,
Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries and associated companies and the
Company. Heng Huat is beneficially interested in the entire issued share
capital of Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic Win"), and is taken to be
interested in 205,414,000 shares of the Company which Dynamic Win is
interested. Mr. Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and Mr. Xu Zhixiang
(who replaced Ms. Liu Yue as a trustee on 9 May 2003 upon Ms. Liu Yue's
resignation as a trustee on the same date) are trustees holding 60, 20
and 20 shares out of 100 shares in the issued share capital of Heng Huat.
Each of Mr. Xu Zhendong and Mr. Xu Zhixiang was former Director who
resigned on 5 May 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and
Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the following interests and short positions
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

e 2 5

Peking University (a)  Through controlled corporations

ERAE BEBXEH AR

Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a)  Through controlled corporations

FIREEREBRRAA BBXEHAR

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software (@) Through controlled corporations
System Co., Ltd. FEBRZEHAR

ERERERBM ZRARLT

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited (a)  Directly beneficially owned

IR ABERERERLTF ERERER

Beida Microelectronics Investment (a)  Interest through controlled
Limited corporations

TANEFREBRAR FRTEHNA B

Sanya Jade Bird Youfu Jidi (@) Interest through a controlled
Construction Service Co., Ltd corporation

SR ERRRENERBERR AR BB EHAR S

FERRRAEMATRRG RBER
Bz EBERKA

R-B—AE+-A=+—0  BEBEE
B IS 336 T AL AARE S Rt B
SR e FHIAR TR BITRA S
HHA -

AN

AATEBRRERERD 2FR

Approximate

percentage of Approximate
the Company's  percentage of

total number  the Company's

Number of of issued total issued

promoters promoters Shares share capital

Shares held {EARAFAERT EARAR2H
FRBEA BEARGEH ERTRA

Reo#E BABAL BRABAL

200,000,000 28.57% 15.60%
200,000,000 28.57% 15.60%
200,000,000 28.57% 15.60%
115,000,000 16.43% 8.97%
85,000,000 12.14% 6.63%
85,000,000 12.14% 6.63%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of

FERRRAEMATRRG RBER
Rz EER KA (E)

RABEBREBERG 2FR (&)

the Company (Continued)

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate

the Company's  percentage of
total number  the Company’s
Number of of issued total issued
promoters promoters Shares share capital
Shares held EAARERT EARDFZH
Name of shareholder Note Capacity FEREA BEARGAH ERIRA
RRAR EI-1)) ReoEE BB BRBAL
Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang Sci-Tech (a)  Directly beneficially owned 85,000,000 12.14% 6.63%
Development Co., Ltd ERERER
BOSEREENRERARAA
Grand East (H.K.) Limited Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 15.71% 8.58%
RE(FB)ERAA EREBHER
Heng Huat Investments Limited (b)  Through a controlled corporation 205,414,000 29.34% 16.03%
BB RXEHRA
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (b)  Directly beneficially owned 205,414,000 29.34% 16.03%
YBEEFRAA ERBHER
Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited () Through a controlled corporation 84,586,000 12.08% 6.60%
ShaRBRAT BR-RXEHNA
New View Venture Limited (c)  Directly beneficially owned 84,586,000 12.08% 6.60%
EREBHER
Asian Technology Investment Company Directly beneficially owned 50,000,000 7.14% 3.90%

Limited
SN EERAR

ERBEHA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of

the Company (Continued)
Notes:

(@) Peking University is taken to be interested in 15.60% of the
total issued share capital of the Company through the following
companies:

(i) 115 million promoters Shares (representing approximately
8.97% of the Company’s total issued share capital) held by
Beida Jade Bird, which is 46% beneficially owned by Jade Bird
Software. Jade Bird Software is 48% beneficially owned by
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary
of Peking University;

(i) 85 million promoters Shares (representing approximately
6.63% of the Company’s total issued share capital) in which
Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang Sci-Tech Development Co., Ltd.
("Haikou Jade Bird”) is interested. Jade Bird Software owns
100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment
Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Sanya Jade
Bird Youfu Jidi Construction Service Co., Ltd which in turn
owns 100% equity interest in Haikou Jade Bird; and

(iiiy ~ Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is a supervisor of Beida Jade Bird.

(b)  The promoters Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is beneficially
wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to the section
“Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above for further details
of Heng Huat.

(c)  The promoters Shares are held by New View Venture Limited, which
is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and
Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,
Supervisors” and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and Supervisors
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group, or may have any conflicts of
interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5
November 2014, the Company and Jade Bird Software entered
into the equity interest transfer agreement on 5 November 2014,
pursuant to which the Company acquired 40% equity interest
in Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan at a consideration of RMB1,200,000
together with taking up the capital contribution commitments of
RMB800,000. Jade Bird Software is a holding company of Beida
Jade Bird, a then substantial shareholder of the Company. Jade
Bird Software is therefore an associate of Beida Jade Bird and a
then connected person of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules. Completion of the transfer took place during the year.

As disclosed in the announcement and the circular of the Company
dated 13 February 2015 and 11 June 2015 respectively, Beijing
Jade Bird Taisheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. ("Jade
Bird Taisheng”), a direct wholly subsidiary of the Company and
Shenzhen Jade Bird entered into the equity interest transfer
agreement on 13 February 2015, pursuant to which Jade Bird
Taisheng acquired 20% equity interest in Xinzhongrui VC at
a consideration of RMB50,000,000. Shenzhen Jade Bird is a
subsidiary of Beida Jade Bird, a then substantial shareholder of the
Company. Shenzhen Jade Bird is therefore an associate of Beida
Jade Bird and a then connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules. Completion of the transfers took place during
the year.

As disclosed in the announcement and the circular of the Company
dated 10 August 2015 and 19 November 2015 respectively,
the Company and Shanghai Xuanbao Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Xuanbao"”) entered into the equity interest
transfer agreement on 10 August 2015, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to acquire 39% equity interest in Ningbo Jade
Bird VC at a consideration of RMB23,400,000 in cash together
with capital contribution commitment of RMB54,600,000.
Shanghai Xuanbao is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Beida
High Technology Investment Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of
Beida Jade Bird, a then substantial shareholder of the Company.
Shanghai Xuanbao is therefore an associate of Beida Jade Bird and
a then connected person of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules. Completion of the transfers took place during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements do
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules, which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are
contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and
contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages
28 to 40 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Environmental, social and governance report of the Company is set
out on pages 41 to 63 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ON-GOING FINANCIAL EXPOSURE

On 31 January 2013, the Company, as a guarantor, executed
a guarantee in favour of two banks (the “Banks”), in relation
to the provision of guarantee by the Company in favour of the
Banks to secure obligations of the Group’s associate, Changsha
Songya Lake Construction Investment Co., Ltd. (“Songya
Lake Construction”), under the facility agreement in respect
of the aggregate principal amount of RMB986,000,000 (the
“Guarantee”). The amount of the Guarantee provided by the
Company is RMB200,000,000 in respect of the principal amount
and the related interest, default interest, compound interest,
compensation, default fine, compensation for damages and
expenses incurred in enforcing the claims. The Guarantor together
with a shareholder’s loan to Songya Lake Construction exceeded
8% of the Group’s total assets value as at 31 December 2016. The
audited consolidated statement of financial position of Songya
Lake Construction and the Group’s attributable interests in Sonya
Lake Construction based on its audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in
the PRC, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, are
presented below:
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of events after the reporting period of the Group are set
out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath”) was first
appointed as independent auditor of the Company upon the
retirement of RSM Nelson Wheeler in 2013. RSM Nelson Wheeler
was appointed as independent auditor of the Company upon the
retirement of Crowe Horwath in 2015. On 26 October 2015, our
auditor changed the name under its practices to RSM Hong Kong
and accordingly has signed its report under its new name.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
22 March 2017

HREHEEREE
AEEREPHERFRIARIARNGAHNT
WRMIFEAT

B Em
HEEE(EE)QMEBMERLDF ([ E
EHEE | RN _E-=FHEIBEELRE
REBREZERRNARBIAZEA - R=
T-hF  PhEELEEESEETRSRE
BEERAABBLIZEAM R _ZT—AF
TAZ+ARB ARRREEM ZAERENH
& RSM Nelson Wheeler # 2 ARSM Hong
Kong - WIALFT B EFH S -

HMEVBRRCKATREEEZ - PiRE
EREREI  UHEERNRABETZARTR
BERBERE LEERE -

FSE

KEE=S

R 4E R
—E—+F=A=-+=H



ERAERBRBFREROBRAT —FT—RFFH

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To the Shareholders:

We have monitored the operation and management of the
Group as well as the act of the Directors and senior management
faithfully throughout the year ended 31 December 2016. We
have discharged our supervisory duties under the general principle
of honesty and integrity and have strictly complied with the
requirements of the “Company Law of the PRC”, GEM Listing
Rules and the Articles. We are accountable to the Shareholders and
have safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders, the Group and
its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin
Professor Yang Jinguan
Mr. Quyang Zishi

Mr. Lu Qingfeng

Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors are
eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, we have held 4
meetings of the sixth session. The following table set out the
attendance of each member in these meetings:

Mr. Fan Yimin B—RESE
Professor Yang Jinguan BB
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BN TR kA
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BEYLE

Ms. Zhou Min A&zt
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EEEHS

We convened the four meetings to review the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015, the three months ended 31 March 2016, the six months
ended 30 June 2016 and the nine months ended 30 September
2016 respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the eighth meeting of
the sixth session to review the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express
our independent opinion in respect of the following matters:

1. The first, second and third quarterly results and annual
results of the Group for 2016 have reflected the financial and
operating positions of the Group on a true and fair basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their
authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders, the
Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and regulations
and the Articles in discharging its duties.

3.  The Group was not threatened with any major litigation
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or
threatened against the Board.

4.  The connected transactions of the Group were fair and
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group has
been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to
our work during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Fan Yimin
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
22 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BEUJING BEIDA JADE BIRD UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
88 to 208, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 12
to the consolidated financial statements. In 2011, a subsidiary
of the Company received an assessment demanding final tax
for the year of assessment 2004/2005 from The Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD"). The amount of this
assessment was approximately HK$47,852,000 (equivalent
to RMB42,804,000) in which approximately HK$47,748,000
(equivalent to RMB42,711,000) relating to a claim for gain on
disposal of long term investment recognised during the year ended
31 December 2004. On 25 February 2013, the IRD issued a notice
to the subsidiary informing that the case has been forwarded to
the Appeals Section of the IRD for further processing. The outcome
of the tax claim cannot be readily ascertained up to the date of
this report. Should the assessment regarding the claim for the gain
be finally judged against the subsidiary, current tax liabilities and
corresponding income tax expense of HK$47,748,000 (equivalent
to RMB42,711,000) will be recognised.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Impairment of goodwill
2. Recoverability of trade receivables

3. Equity method accounting for associates and joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BREITBIR

1. Impairment of goodwill

1. EERE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements
IR AR A RN 19

The Group has goodwill of RMB17,557,000 attributable
to the manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
segment cash generating unit (“CGU"). Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually.
EEEETHIRBOGEREEDHREELEM

([REELEM] ) BEREBR/ARYK17,557,000
T BEESFHREETRENH -

Management has concluded that there is no impairment
in respect of the goodwill of this CGU. This conclusion
was based on the value in use models that requires
significant management judgement in making
assumptions about future revenues, profit margins and
growth rates and in selecting an appropriate market
discount rate.
EREBEZAcELEEMNEEYEHIRRE - %4
mAEAEEEAAER MEAEEEXEELEH
AR -~ MBERLRIERERERR - ARKEEETS
MRERFEZTEREELEARHE -

8 AZBIRD R &

FRFTEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERBITHYHBARENSENEELRR

Our procedures included:
EENRFELE !

— Assessing the integrity of the valuation model;

- AHABEERNR S

— Challenging the reasonableness of management'’s
key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

- BREEFHEBRITENRD  BEEENTIZR
ROABUREER

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
historical accuracy of those budgets;

- WARABRNZFRE - fINEHZRTER - TEE
ZETAE AN ERE

— Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rate
used with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists; and

- EESEABEEERNHH T - SEATARE XN
3Rz Alh | .

HEMN R

— Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
relation to the goodwill impairment assessment.

- AHMEEEEREFEERNESRENTRME
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

2. Recoverability of trade receivables

2. [EWEZRZH AL

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements
IR A R KM 26

The Group has trade and bills receivables with
aggregate values of RMB546,626,000 before the
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB68,677,000 as at
31 December 2016. The Group generally allows credit
period ranges from 3 to 6 months for its customers. As
at 31 December 2016, the trade and bill receivables of
RMB333,684,000 were past due but not impaired. This
has increased the risk that the carrying values of trade
receivables may be impaired.
EEERZZ—AFTZA=T—HIIKRREBRHAR
%68,677,000LAINERESERNERBLEARK
546,626,0007C - EEE—RGETEFPNTF =2/ @A
MEEH R-_EBE—XR"F+-_A=+—H EKREZE
AREEARE333,684,000c B @B RRE - &
I hNFE W B 5 AR R AR TE(E AT A HH IR E Y LR o

During the year, an allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB 10,065,000 was charged to profit or loss.
FA - RIESHNBRREEEBARE10,065,0007T °

Management concluded that there is no further
impairment in respect of the trade receivables. This
conclusion required significant management judgement
in assessing the recoverability of past due trade
receivables.

EREBREREESIRFIMEEMRE ZERHEE
BREAEN AR E SR AU E M E XA
B o

EREFTEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEETPHERETSENEESR

Our procedures included:
EEMRTRIE !

— Obtaining confirmations from debtors on a sample
basis to verify the accuracy of the debtor balances;

- BEHEEBABISER  UZEGEREAGREIER
M

— Re-computing the accuracy of the ageing analysis
on a sample basis;

- BEMEIE ERREKR DR EREE

— Reviewing the receipt of cash after the year end
for significant debtor balances;

- EHFEAREUEXNEFAEHRAMBENRS

— Assessing the impairment allowance made by
management after taking account of the past
collection experience of the Group;

- ZE BEEEBEMNPRRERETHEREFELN
BAER A

— Discussing with management the credit status of
those debtors with overdue balances including
any collection actions planned and loss provision
made; and

- HEREIwARPEREBANEERR 8%
EEtEIBRITE MR BB R G © &

— Assessing the adequacy of the credit risk
disclosures in relation to trade receivables.

- AMHEEKREZEZRAEENEERBREREENE
T o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BREITBIR

3. Equity method accounting for associates and joint ventures

3. BBERFIRAZLRAEm S

Refer to notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements

IR uAr & B R R M at22 k23

The Group has investments in associates and joint
ventures of RMB667,042,000 and RMB286,923,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2016.
EEER T -—RE+TA=1T—HBHREZ
eﬁ%mhé > Bl A AR 667,042,000
286,923,0007T °

#F >

NCIDNE=
RARY

Certain of the associates and joint ventures are
engaged in the investing in unlisted equity securities
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
determination of the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgment
in selecting appropriate multiples from market
comparables and in respect of unobservable inputs such
as discount for lack of marketability.
ETHERAREGECERPEARHKNEA ( FEP
B ) ?fé%&éfitiml&K B 5 o BREIE EMIRAE

NYER - BEEENEEE TS L RES R A&
i A\ BIE (1§Uﬁufa}%zm%mﬁli?ﬁa§) S EHZEL
BARHE -

The Group appointed independent professional valuers
to assist in assessing the fair value of those unlisted
equity securities investment.
EREZEBYEXGEMBBTMEZEIELETRAE
HFREHRTE -

8 AZBIRD R &

REETER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERBITHYHBARENSENEELRR

Our procedures included:

EENREFEE

Evaluating the competence, independence and
integrity of the external valuer;
FHEINIB (L ERTEYRE )~ B R ATSEM

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used by the external valuer;

FHESMNE [ ERD AT R (E AN @M

Considering the appropriateness of the
multiples selected from the market comparables
and the discount for lack of marketability
with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists; and

HHEERNBE T - ZEMEEHT
S REHERRE TS REETENSEN
&

Assessing the adequacy of the fair value
disclosures in relation to the unlisted equity
securities.
FHEEIE EHRARSFEEN A TFEEREEN
FRM -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A EN RS

OTHER INFORMATION AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the Company’s 2016
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of the Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

HERURZBE LB RARE

ESTHHAMANAE -HttERBE =
RAIZF-—AFFRABNEZDER (TR
AR 6 M HRER) REF U3 L R HAD R
==

BEHRAMBERENBRL TREA A
B BEENTHEMBERBERTAPANE
72 AR o

EEFNGREMBRIE  EFNEER
Bl E X AR Bl B E R - e -

EZEHEMENMEEEREMBRRXES
BAHERTATHENBEREERNERE - &
UFBEAR SRR

ERNEBFEHTHNIE MRESRREM
ERAEANERRL  BEEREHREZLE

EofENH BEREEMARSE -

EENGEMBBRARENSE
EFARARBEASGMAERMANC(ER
ISR RBEB (ARSI WK TR E
REEEM AR NEEMBRE - IQMM
RBEEAMBRERNEE N FEHNR

X 85 BR T B BUA BB K85 AR PR %MHWW%
EHAR -

ERBEAMBRERE  EFREANE &
SESEKLENREN  YEERBRATHRE
EBEKLEEHNER  URERAKELE
REFER KRIEZAREN EXKEBR
HFIEE - HHBEMBEROBRIE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

8 AZBIRD R &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

BRBMB B RS MBREARNE
£ (&)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LIU Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2017

8 AZBIRD R &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeREkEMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—ARF —T—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5E AR¥T T AREFT
Turnover [ 2] 8 1,412,542 1,072,045
Cost of sales and services SHE R RIEAA (764,842) (607,692)
Gross profit ER 647,700 464,353
Gain on bargain purchase of associates YZE&E:& A T2 5% B UWzS 26,628 -
Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries!i & [ B A 7] 7 3% B U 36(a) 8,735 -
Other gains and income H b gz MU A 9 27,016 67,199
Distribution costs Pal =1 DN (95,192) (67,355)
Administrative expenses TR (123,144) (102,949)
Other expenses HEmps (78,749) (77,052)
Profit from operations Rl 412,994 284,196
Finance costs b & Bk AN 11 (5,969) (12,332)
Share of losses of associates FE(HES 2N Al B8 (54,748) (12,285)
Share of losses of joint ventures JEihE & ERE (784) (21,873)
Profit before tax RRBE A 28 A 351,493 237,706
Income tax expense PRS2 12 (68,411) (43,002)
Profit for the year REERER 13 283,082 194,704
Other comprehensive income HpRBIEZEBA -
after tax:
Items that may be reclassified to AE T EEEm AL -
profit or loss:
Investment revaluation reserve HEAHEENFEEER
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal FE#FH D EEIEE 2
of available-for-sale financial assets KEEGFEE - (1,808)
Investment revaluation reserve B BE B W HE — R P BB A B
reclassified to profit or loss on ENBEEERIRES
step-acquisition of a subsidiary {hFE R (7,260) =
Fair value changes of available-for-sale ]t &M EEE 2
financial assets NEEED (58,601) 15,432
Exchange differences on translating ~ #HREGINERVEH ZR
foreign operations 22,335 20,884
Share of other comprehensive income #{FEt & AR 42 m
of associates A (36,584) 53,069
Share of other comprehensive income #{E& & ¥EEMEE
of joint ventures WA 26,435 51,538
Income tax relating to change in HEAEHEEEE
fair value of available-for-sale NHEEZEEE
financial assets FriSHi 16,713 (9,697)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEBA
for the year, net of tax B R (36,962) 129,418
Total comprehensive income REEZHEWRZEEE

for the year 246,120 324,122
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBREkEMEEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—RF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pl & ARBT T ARETTT

Profit for the year attributable to: FE{AARFEERER :

Owners of the Company ViN/NETE SN 129,560 75,998
Non-controlling interests FEIE R RS 153,522 118,706
283,082 194,704

Total comprehensive income for BERFE2HER RS

the year attributable to: o
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZE DN 100,369 205,000
Non-controlling interests IR = 145,751 119,122
246,120 324,122
RMB RMB
AR AR
Earnings per share BRER

Basic and diluted (cents per share) — EANEE(ZES) 17 10.5 6.4
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At 31 December 2016 R=—Z— X F+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Biological assets

Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Available-for-sale financial assets

Deposits paid for potential investments

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bank loans

Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
RN G
5k

Hip LB E
EMEE
REEE R B ZIRE
RELERZIWE
AHHEMHEE

WEERESINZES

ERERIAE E

RBEE

FE

B 5 & E A B UFIR

AMEEBR=EA
EHEFER

ReMReFEY

HEE

RBRE
B 5 M AR FR
RITER

IR AR

RBEEFE

REERABAE

18
19
20
21
22
23

32

25
26

28
28

29
31

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
260,460 210,460
17,761 20,404
6,638 7,363
1,267 4,602
667,042 646,601
286,923 243,478
157,829 143,000
19,888 58,000
11,272 9,931
1,429,080 1,343,839
155,436 126,797
581,492 492,245
1,234 1,150
509,341 313,760
1,247,503 933,952
2,676,583 2,277,791
441,030 328,210
166,356 218,099
44,770 31,570
652,156 577,879
595,347 356,073
2,024,427 1,699,912
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ra IR R

At 31 December 2016 R =Z—~"F+=-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B F 32 1,616 9,697
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,022,811 1,690,215
Capital and reserves EARRFEE
Share capital A& X 33 128,176 118,480
Reserves B 1,346,461 1,174,049
Equity attributable to owners RNARIER AEIS
of the Company s 1,474,637 1,292,529
Non-controlling interests AR 548,174 397,686
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,022,811 1,690,215

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2017 and are W-_ZT—+@F=A -+ _HAEZEETSHER

signed on its behalf by: HUATATRAESE :
NI JINLEI ZHANG WANZHONG
Rez: REH
Director Director

EF BEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
RAAFBARE
Foreign
currency  Investment Non-
Share Capital Reserve translation revaluation Other  Retained controlling Total

capital reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
R&  EAdf BEEE  ENGE REEMGBE  HHRE  SREW A FEREER 4RE
RIB'000 RIB'000 RIVB'000 RIVB'000 RIB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL  ARBTE
Hf5E35(0)()

t 1 January 2015 R=5-15-A-A 118,480 317,720 108,954 (76,323) 49,051 12,552 497,095 1,087,529 312213 139,78
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ AEE2 AWHLE - - - 20,468 108,534 - 75,998 205,000 119,122 324,122
Transfer & - - 4,844 - - - (4.844) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR = = = = S S = = (11,557) (11,557)
Dividend paid to non-controling interests 2 i3 MiEz 2R & - - - - - - - - (22,09) (22,09
Changes in equity for the year TERELEY - - 4844 20,468 108,534 - 71,154 205,000 85,473 290473
At 31 December 2015 R-F-1%+-A=1-A 118,480 317,720 113,798 (55,855) 157,585 12,552 568,249 1,292,529 397,686 1,690,215
At 1 January 2016 R=E-7~E-A-B 118,480 377,120 113,798 (55,855) 157,585 12,552 568,249 1,292,529 397,686 1,690,215
Issued of shares 1kl 9,696 72,206 - - - - - 81,942 - 81,942
Capital contribution from SRR TR

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - 3,691 3,691
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ AEE2AUEEE - - - 2,671 (51,868) - 129,560 100,369 145,751 246,120
Transfer &5 - - 19,832 - - - (19,832) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) WERBRA(H3136) - - - - - - - - 25,850 25,850
Disposal of a subsidiary without HE-FRERA(LEER

Joss of control eEee) - - - - - - (203) (203) 4,584 4,381
Dividend paid to non-controling interests B ft3ERER RS = = = = = - - - (938 (29389
Changes in equity for the year TEEESEY 9,696 72,246 19,832 2671 (51,868) - 109,525 182,108 150,488 332,59

At 31 December 2016 RoF-RETA=1-8 128,176 449,966 133,630 (33.178) 105717 12,55 677,774 1,474,631 548,174 2,002,811
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Allowance for doubtful
other receivables
Allowance for doubtful
trade receivables
Allowance for deposits paid for
pontential investments
Gain on bargain purchase
of associates
Gain on bargain purchase
of subsidiaries
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets
Gain on disposal of
investment property
Impairment loss on goodwill
Loss on disposal and written off of
property, plant and equipment
Loss from changes in fair value less
cost to sell of biological assets
Interest expenses
Interest income
Net foreign exchange gain
Realised gain on reclassification from
investment revaluation reserve on
step-acquisition of a subsidiary
Reversal of allowance for
doubtful other receivables
Reversal of allowance for
doubtful trade receivables
Share of losses of associates
Share of losses of joint ventures

Operating profit before

working capital changes

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and
bills receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

nv—_R Eﬁ'ﬁ/ﬂbgi

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

2016
—E-—REF
RMB’000
AR®T T
RETH 2 HESHRE
B T4 B A 351,493 237,706
5 %E
b fE UG FRTE R BR
Bt 3,893 25,196
EUE 5 RFRE
B iE 10,065 14,848
MBERES N2
bS] 1,000 -
Mﬁzﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁz
B (26,628) =
BB A E 2 % (B
Wz (8,735) =
PrEs I B 5 14,745 19,987
HEMB AR Z U - (26,050)
HEAHEEMBEAE
gz - (2,004)
HEREE KRS
= (1,526)
e 2 AR E 2,701 -
LEME BEK&
AR B 18 R 85 3,319 64
EMEENTEES
BB A 2 BB 3,113 86
MERX 11,776 15,744
A B U A (1,170) (993)
P& 5 U5 F5E (5,807) (3,412)
o P BR W B — 1 B B A )
iR & B EERN
DEHEIR U S (7,260) =
18 (o) At fE Uk R0IE
REREE (1,397) (18)
Bl fEUE BRI
ERREEEE (1,375) (6,326)
FE(LEE N R EE 54,748 12,285
& & EEIE 784 21,873
Rt EESBEA
eyl 405,265 307,460
FEEM (28,639) (35,330)
FEWE SRR M =
30 (82,494) (129,620)
FEMFIE - e REM
JE WS R IELE N (13,469) (44,582)
B 5 & E fib e R IEE N 109,088 137,355
EEQ%«%/EEJZEEJ—: 389,751 235,283
BB (56,552) (40,684)
EXERKEEE
He F58 333,199 194,599
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nVT\ Eﬁ:ﬁ/)lb%%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

Note
B aE

2016
—

RMB’000
AR®T

2015
—h4F
RMB’000
ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM BETHCELRE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1L0)-=pNC] 36 (13,565) -
Deposits for investments EES (19,888) (57,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEREAR 36 4,381 79,418
Increase in time deposits with FEA AR =1E A

original maturity of more than ZEEATE RGN

three months when acquired (84) (72)
Increase in amounts due JiE Wt 2 R B FRIE L BN

from associates (2,347) (9,350)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMHEENBEE

available-for-sale financial assets Frig k| - 10,186
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BERE&HE

property, plant and equipment FriS /I8 2,480 125
Proceeds from disposal of HEREVMEFBSRIA

investment property - 7,477
Purchases of property, plant BEME  BEMEE

and equipment (65,826) (124,255)
Purchases of other intangible assets B EfEFZ&E (840) (173)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEEHEEMBEE

financial assets = (8,182)
Investments in associates HEENRIRE (40,800) (122,500)
Investment in a joint venture H-—REELERE - (1,859)
Loans to others BT HMALTER = (1,846)
Repayment from loans to others ETEMATERER - 3,000
Interest received 2 U & 1,170 940
Net cash used in investing activities AR E &S 237 ¢ 558 (135,319) (224,091)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nv"ﬁ }Eﬁl)lbg%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—AhEF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P& AR®T T ARETTT

CASH FLOWS FROM METHCEERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank loans raised FILRITE R 115,000 145,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (167,153) (134,653)
Repayment of finance lease payables (EEEMNEERE = (59)
(Increase)/decrease in amount e — BB R A

due to a shareholder (i“bl])/ﬁ’l\ (24) 74
Increase in amount due to FERTREE A 5K

related parties 20 1,696 51
Interest paid EARFE (11,776) (15,744)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN 2 T8 F0E 81,942 =
Dividend paid to BT EERER 2

non-controlling interests A% B (29,388) (22,092)
Capital contribution from FE R IEE

non-controlling interests 3,691 -
Net cash used in from ArmEES R e

financing activities R (6,012) (27,423)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERRLEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in Gl ) FEE 191,868 (56,915)
Effect of foreign exchange G [ R ) 2 R

rate changes 3,713 4,075

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNzHEERERE
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR EEY 313,760 366,600

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXCELRES
AT END OF YEAR £EY 28 509,341 313,760
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade
Bird Building, Yanyuan District Area 3, No.5 Haidian Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100080, the PRC. The addresses of
its principal place of business in the PRC and Hong Kong are
3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100871, the PRC and Unit 7605,
76th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong respectively.

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of
embedded system products and related products. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to
the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS");
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2016:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify, rather than
significantly change, existing HKAS 1 requirements. The
amendments clarify various presentation issues relating
to:

o Assessment of materiality versus minimum
disclosure requirements of a standard.

o Disaggregation of specific line items in the
statement(s) of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the statement of
financial position. There is also new guidance on
the use of subtotals.

. Confirmation that the notes do not need to be
presented in a particular order.

o Presentation of other comprehensive income
items arising from equity-accounted associates
and joint ventures.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments simplify the accounting for bearer
plants (such as palm oil plantations or vineyards) by
including bearer plants in the scope of HKAS 16, such
that entities can elect to measure bearer plants at cost.
The produce growing on bearer plants will continue to
be measured at fair value less costs to sell under HKAS
41. These amendments had no effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016. These
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on
or after

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative

1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes:
Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses

1 January 2017

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

1 January 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment: Classification and
measurement of share-based payment
transactions

1 January 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 4: Applying HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

1 January 2018

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated  To be determined
Financial Statements and HKAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures: Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its associate or

joint venture
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due
course.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the
classification of financial assets which is based on cash
flow characteristics and the business model in which
the asset is held. A debt instrument that is held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and that has contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding is measured at amortised
cost. A debt instrument that is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
the contractual cash flows and selling the instruments
and that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Equity
instruments are generally measured at fair value
through profit or loss. However, an entity may make
an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis to measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at fair value through other comprehensive
income.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities are carried
forward largely unchanged from HKAS 39 except that
when the fair value option is applied changes in fair
value attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in other comprehensive income unless this
creates an accounting mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment
model to replace the incurred-loss impairment model
in HKAS 39. It is no longer necessary for a credit
event or impairment trigger to have occurred before
impairment losses are recognised. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, an entity will generally
recognise 12-month expected credit losses. If there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, an entity will recognise lifetime expected
credit losses. The standard includes a simplified
approach for trade receivables to always recognise the
lifetime expected credit losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are
carried forward largely unchanged.

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge accounting
requirements in HKAS 39 to align hedge accounting
more closely with risk management and establish a
more principle based approach.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets that are currently classified
as available-for-sale include certain listed and unlisted
equity securities. The Group expects to irrevocably
designate these equity securities as fair value through
other comprehensive income. This will give rise to a
change in accounting policy. The listed equity securities
are currently measured at fair value with fair value
changes recognised in other comprehensive income
until disposal or impairment at which point the fair
value gains or losses are recycled to profit or loss.
Under HKFRS 9 recycling of the fair value gains and
losses is not permitted. The unlisted equity securities
are currently measured at cost less impairment with any
impairment losses recognised in profit or loss. HKFRS 9
requires fair value measurement with fair value changes
recognised in other comprehensive income without
recycling.

The new expected credit loss impairment model
in HKFRS 9 may result in the earlier recognition of
impairment losses on the Group's trade receivables
and other financial assets. The Group is unable to
quantify the impact until a more detailed assessment is
completed.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and
interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity
recognises revenue to depict the transfer of goods and
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to become
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the
core principle by applying a 5-step model:

Identify the contract with a customer

2. ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

3.  Determine the transaction price
Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure
requirements relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 15 on the consolidated financial
statements and has identified the following areas that
are likely to be affected:

The Group currently recognises revenue from
construction contracts over time by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity
in accordance with the requirements in HKAS 11
Construction Contracts. Under HKFRS 15 revenue is
recognised over time only if specific criteria are met
otherwise revenue is recognised at a point in time
which may not be until completion.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces new requirements on
accounting for contract modifications (variations) and
variable consideration (such as claims and incentive
payments) which may impact the timing of revenue
recognition over the contract period.

In addition, certain costs of obtaining construction
contracts which are currently expensed may need to be
capitalised.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the new
standard on the consolidated financial statements until
a more detailed analysis is completed.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS
16 carries forward the accounting requirements for
lessors in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors
will therefore continue to classify leases as operating or
financing leases.

3. &
P==3
=

(b)

MFATREBITNERBUBR
ZRKHRE (&)

C AR E 8 R A R HTRT R AEMER
BB B HREER (&)

BB BHREEREISHERER
FEHWA (&)

TR REERF 1555 A
BERATFER A HHRAERK
BZENER(EFT) KAl ZK(E
(WEHRRED) ZFHRE °

BEAN - REEUGRERHMIRD
ZETRASFERL -

AEBEFRTKE B2 hE
AR TR SR A MR 2

By 488
FEo

BBUBHEERF165HE
FRMBEREEYNF16RBMRE
BErERIE 175 [HE I REME
AR o AR ERISI AR AR
ANEBE—&5tRERN - AHE AR
FTEOKENMENE - BFne
HMEERAERREELREERR
(CHHEEREEEEECHER
BERENERE)  BAMBHRESR
AIF 16 ABIRE BFE SR
F1TRERLEANSTRIER
o Et - HEAFEESEED
BREEIMENRE -



ERAERBRBEFREROBRAT —F—

NEFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group’s office property leases are currently
classified as operating leases and the lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need
to recognise and measure a liability at the present value
of the future minimum lease payments and recognise a
corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases. The
interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation
on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or
loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and
the timing of expense recognition will also be impacted
as a result.

As disclosed in note 39, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
for its office properties amounted to RMB9,109,000 as
at 31 December 2016. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed assessment in order to determine the
new assets and liabilities arising from these operating
leases commitments after taking into account the
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the effects
of discounting.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. biological
assets and certain investments that are measured at fair
value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.
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BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TES:HE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Associates () E2n7
Associates are entities over which the Group has BENRAASEHEBEATE
significant influence. Significant influence is the power ZER EATEREHAER

to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In accessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associates in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investments over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments.
When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals
or exceeds its interest in the associates, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and
determined them to all be joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint ventures in acquisitions are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint ventures’
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of the joint ventures’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses
in the joint ventures equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the joint
ventures subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHKBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture
that results in a loss of joint control represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the
Group's entire carrying amount of that joint venture
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in
a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of jointly
controlled entities have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi ("RMB"), which is the
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

(CONTINUED)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited ~Annual Report 2016

(CONTINUED)

TESTTBER(E)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as

follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land 70 years
Buildings 20 years

Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements, furniture

and office equipment 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5to 10 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at

the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Operating leases

The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets which represent transportation
operation license, rights and patents, copyrights,
computer softwares and customer list are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
ranging from five to ten years.
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

()

Biological assets

The Group is involved in the agricultural activities of
the transformation of biological assets (vines) into
agricultural produce (grapes). The biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value of biological assets is determined based
on the present value of expected net cash flows from
the biological assets with reference to their growing
conditions. Gain or loss on initial recognition and from
subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sell is
included in profit or loss for the period in which it
arises.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at its
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The
fair value of agricultural produce is determined based
on market prices in the local area. Gain on initial
recognition at fair value less costs to sell is included in
profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

The fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest
of the agricultural produce becomes its cost for the
measurement of inventories. Such inventories are
subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

G

(k)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

0]

(m)

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it
is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. The accounting
policy for contract revenue is stated in (r) below.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.
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BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the financial assets within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. The directors
determine the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method (except for short-term receivables
where interest is immaterial) minus any reduction
for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash are
classified in this category.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHKBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments
or financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired,
at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified from equity to profit
or loss. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit or
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

4. FESTHERE)

(p)

(a)

RERRELSERE

PREREXME - RERBELF
BERBEBTHEFLRE  B/ITR
Hib & BHIE 2R MEFR - UK
BREAACHBRASBEES
BRBTITAZEHARRBMERE
AREREER/ASREREER
— B ZRITEZININER S MR
EEERBZ D -

BBEERRATA

MR ERRATATIREMAIL
BHLHZBERNRRRIEEEY
BHEEMBEEBENRATAZ
EENE - RATATNERAANEHE
REHRAERBRZEETHSE
RitpiEam 2 ERAH - LT AR
EMBABEMRATERA S
BUR e

BE
EENTRATFENRAEE 2R
DIATER - WHAIRIZE A ANE

REBRNZEE -

BEREDAEREBERE  BRIEAE
BREEKEBEEEEZERE
EREHERDI2MEA -

B mf

[

125



126

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited ~Annual Report 2016

B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair value and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the guarantee
contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of embedded system
products and related products are recognised, when
the installation work is completed, the customer
has accepted the systems and the products and the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the customers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the embedded systems and related
products sold.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract
is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the percentage of
contract costs incurred to date to the estimated total
contract costs for the contract; and revenue from a
cost plus contract is recognised by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the period plus an
appropriate proportion of the total fee, measured by
reference to the proportion that costs incurred to date
bear to the estimated total costs of the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are probable to
be recoverable.
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenues from rendering of travel and leisure services
are recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenues from sales of wine and related products
are recognised on the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered and the title has
passed to the customers.

Management fee income is recognised when services
are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets, which

are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of

time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until

such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the

temporary investment of specific borrowings pending

their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHKBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(t)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.
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(u) Government grants (u) BUFHEED

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHKBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(v) Taxation (Continued) (v) FHIE(E)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this
is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit
and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition, the
estimated future cash flows of the (group of) financial
asset(s) have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered also to be objective
evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade and other receivables, the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if
the amount of the impairment loss decreases in a
subsequent period and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables) through
profit or loss. However, the reversal must not result in
a carrying amount that exceeds what the amortised
cost of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(z) Events after the reporting period (z2) WEHEESIE

RHBEBREEN RS BRESR
AFEHNER Z REHRFEEARER
THRHELSERRITEEERAE
FIE - WK B HREK o WIEH
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial BEHHEHRERE  WEEX
statements. Events after the reporting period that are B - BRI IS SRRMIFEARE -
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are

financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

ERHABFREZMF

FERE R 2 B XA E
HEEAESFTHRRZBRET  EECHFH
NTHRGEEVBRRERCSEESE
REAZEZHE (TEEY RERZ
ZEHE - B ) -

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

H =5

(a) Joint control assessment (a)

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
arrangements. The directors have determined that the
Group has joint control over the arrangement as under
the contractual agreement, it appears that unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreement
for all relevant activities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for
the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2016 was RMB260,460,000 (2015:
RMB210,460,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made. During the year,
RMB68,411,000 (2015: RMB43,002,000) of income tax
was charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
profit.

In 2011,
assessment demanding final tax for the year of

a subsidiary of the Company received an

assessment 2004/2005 from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD") relating to a claim for
gain on disposal of long term investment recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2004. The case
was forwarded to the Appeals Section of the IRD, the
outcome of the tax claim cannot be readily ascertained.
In cases where the taxes charged by the IRD are
different from the estimated amounts, a material tax

charge may arise.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. The carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
RMB17,761,000 (2015: RMB20,404,000). Details
of the goodwill are provided in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts, in particular of a loss event, requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2016, accumulated impairment
loss for bad and doubtful debts amounted to
RMB98,413,000 (2015: RMB&87,241,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31 December 2016, allowance for slow-
moving inventories amounted to RMB2,869,000 (2015:
RMB2,869,000).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets
The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of certain available-for-
sale financial assets. In determining the fair values,
the valuer has utilised methods of valuations which
involve certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the methods
of valuations are reflective of the current market
conditions.

The carrying amount of the available-for-sale financial
assets as at 31 December 2016 was RMB157,829,000
(2015: RMB143,000,000).

Valuation of biological assets

The Group's biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less
costs to sell of the biological assets, the directors and
the vineyard expert have applied the income approach
which requires a number of key assumptions and
estimates to be made such as discount rate, harvest
profile, costs incurred, cultivation area, and expected
yield of the biological assets. Any change in the
estimates may affect the fair value of biological assets
significantly. The directors and the vineyard expert have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
valuation is reflective of their fair value.

The carrying amount of biological assets as at
31 December 2016 was RMB1,267,000 (2015:
RMB4,602,000).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), United States dollars (“USD"), RMB and
Canadian dollars (“CAD"). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2016, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 7% (2015: 3%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been RMB2,999,000 (2015:
RMB6,974,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and cash
equivalents denominated in HK$.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group's listed equity securities included in
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Group has not mitigated its price risk arising from the
listed equity securities.

At 31 December 2016, if the share price of the equity
securities listed in Hong Kong included in the available-
for-sale financial assets had increased/decreased
by 10% with all other variables held constant, the
consolidated investment revaluation reserve would
have been RMB4,712,000 (2015: RMB3,019,000)
higher/lower.

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. Amounts
due from an associate is closely monitored by directors.

The credit risk on non-pledged time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with high
credit-ratings.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities is as follows:

At 31 December 2016 R=—Z—XRF+=AH
=+-H

Trade and other payables 2 5 R E M R FRIR

Bank loans (note) RITEF(HTEE)

Financial guarantee BT HELR

At 31 December 2015 RZZ-—RF+_H
=t+-8

Trade and other payables 2 5 K H A FE R 5RIR

Bank loans (note) RITEFR(HTFE)

Financial guarantee BA TSR

Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
RMB51,356,000 and RMB96,099,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment.
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—RHE+-A=1+—0 %58
TERNARBERSBES R A
AR #51,356,0007T & A R ¥
96,099,000t ° &5t kA KL E
MBS - EERBRITET
AATREATE B IS Bk ARS8

o
A °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate

principal and interest cash outflows are as below:

6. MBEMREE(E)

(d)

RBEEER (&)
EXREABRITENBREER
WA EIERAMEE -
JERF - A RBE NN SRS H N
T~

Total

Repayable Between Between undiscounted

within 1and 2 2and5 Over  cash flow

1 year years years 5 years AEH 2

—FRHEE —EZmE MERE BALE RERELH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBTT ARETT AR%®Tn ARETRT

2016 —E-RE 54,224 - - - 54,224

2015 1% 38,585 43,260 21,093 - 102,938
Interest rate risk (e) FIZEmEB

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits
and borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied
with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMB388,000 (2015:
RMB205,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result of
lower/higher interest income from bank deposits.

A EEFEE 2 FIRERRA BT
ERRBITER RS FRRER
R T ERRTTRMENIHE

R-Z—XNFE+-A=+—08 " 4
ERZMETRR,/ EFA10EER
M EmERERTE - RFEAR
ZERA BB R DA
K#388,000L(=ZE—H%F : A
R #¥205,0007T) + FZHNIETT
BFRZHMBWAR LD,/ INFTEL -



ERAERBRBFREROBRAT —FT—RFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

MBEE :

Financial assets:
Loans and receivables (including cash

BA R AR MY RE

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

6. HXKEKREEE)
) HNT+=ZA=+t—HHEBMIEER

2016
—g—xE

2015
—HEF
RMB'000
ARBTIT

RMB’000
ARBT T

ERkEEGR(EREES

and cash equivalents) MReEEY) 1,074,755 791,255
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHEM B EE 157,829 143,000
Financial liabilities: MEEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  LAESEKAETHEZ B EBE 568,883 512,236

(g) Fair values (9 2¥ME

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

AR B RIS ARR 3R [R BR 2 7K 5= [
BEENRYBREREEELAR
RFERE

7. DFESE
AFEATHLAERHEAMETY
AFR I EAEMKBR S RE
M 2 B8 « W AT E R RER
B EREEARE - BATERES
R=AZEMERATEE :

F1ESAKSE : AREARHERH
BUBREER A EER NS BB
(ReEAE) -

F2BBARE : F1EMBREIMEN
oh - BERABEERAMEEHERSH
ZBARIE -

FIBBARE  BEXRBEZIELE
RZHABIR -

145



146 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited ~Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEFEE)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers REB 7 R TP E 1 3 A4 o) B B 1

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or ZERNEER  mREANBHER

change in circumstances that caused the transfer. —EERER—EEFR -

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (a) RTZA=+—HAFESHZHK
December: = .

Fair value measurements using: Total
AVFEFERAZER : BE
Description i Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016

B $=E $=ZE =T-XE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®MTRT AR®TR AR%T:R

Recurring fair value REEQNTE
measurements: 5TE
Financial assets BkEE
Available-for-sale financial ~ A[ £ $4 & B 7%
assets BE
Listed equity securities EFIRAES 47,122 - - 47,122
Unlisted equity securities  3E_FHRRAREH - 110,707 - 110,707
47,122 110,707 - 157,829
Biological assets ENEE
Vines BE - - 1,267 1,267

Total Bt 47,122 110,707 1,267 159,096
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRy e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T — "XF+_-_A=+—HILLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. ATV {EFE(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (a) ®t+=H
December: (Continued) # . (&)

Description

Recurring fair value
measurements:
Financial assets
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Listed equity securities
Unlisted equity securities

Biological assets
Vines

Total

Fair value measurements using:

=t+—-BAFEERZE

Total

RNEEERAZER ek
Rt Level 1 Level 3 2015
- F=E =
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT ARETTT
REMDFE
iTE
BREE
AJ {88 B 7
BE
ETRAES 30,193 = 30,193
I IR AR = 112,807 112,807
30,193 112,807 143,000
EYEE
BEs = 4,602 4,602
Bt 30,193 117,409 147,602
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. DVFEFEGHE)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b)

based on level 3:

Description

At 1 January
Total gains or losses
recognised
in profit or loss *
in other comprehensive
income
Purchase
Transfer out of level 3
Decrease due to harvest
Exchange differences

At 31 December

#Include gains or losses for
assets held at end of
reporting period

W—A—8

T BIBER 2 e 5

EReE

iy E

WE M2 ER

W

AZZEEH

BB T

X 2

Wt=A=t+—H

o BFERFE IR
BEZEEY
WA

Available-
for-sale
financial assets

REF=EBRLAVEFEZEEY

unlisted equity Biological 2016
securities assets Total
At &
BMKEE —E-XE
FLHRAEES EYEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARET R ARETR
112,807 4,602 117,409
- (3,113) (3,113)
70,729 - 70,729
(183,536) - (183,536)
- (378) (378)
- 156 156
- 1,267 1,267
- (3,113) (3,113)
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.

NEFIR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —ZF—

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b)

based on level 3: (Continued)

Description

At 1 January

Total gains or losses
recognised
in profit or loss *
in other comprehensive

income
Decrease due to harvest
Exchange differences

At 31 December

® Include gains or losses for
assets held at end of
reporting period

Bt

r—A—H
AN
ERAE
RIRE()
REM2E RS

R i Ak Tk 2
EHER

R+-—A=+—H

® BERERE R
RAZEEZ
Weas sk R

R Wam

INENEIEE
for-sale
financial assets

SRy e

NETZA=T—BILEE

ATEH B ()

REF=EBRLAVEFEZEEY

iRk (&)

unlisted equity Biological 2015

securities assets Total
Al &

BB EE —RE

FLEMRAES £ EE mEt

RMB"000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T ARET T

95,823 4,646 100,469

= (86) (86)

11,403 — 11,403

- (229) (229)

5,581 271 5,852

112,807 4,602 117,409

- (86) (86)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, unlisted

equity securities included in available-for-sale financial
assets amounting to RMB183,536,000 (2015: RMBNil)
were transferred from measurement based on level 3

to level 2 as the current year valuation was based on a

recent market transaction in the securities.

The total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive

income are presented in other expenses in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

REBEE_ZT—-—RF+_A=1+—
HEFE AIHEBEEVBEE
BRIZFLTREAZFLFARE
183,536,000 (=T —HF : A
REZET)HE-EBFEBAE -
B2 R AFEENGHET
ERFHFHAHATISRS

RE A 2 E U et A FERR 2 Wt 3K &S

BREINEABEaREM2EK
@R N2 EMASXAZY -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December 2016:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial controller
reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair
value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the financial controller
and the Board of Directors at least once a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

F=ELVEE

Unobservable
inputs

Valuation
techniques

Description

i fhERE FUBRRRAYE

Private equity investments ~ Market comparable  Discount for lack of
classified as available- companies marketability
for-sale financial assets

ARRIHLENKEEL, THATHRARA Rps a2
LERARE ViE

Financial multiples of
public companies

FiRE RS
Biological assets Discounted cash flows Risk-adjusted
discount rate
EMEE ERRER RRRREARE

Growth rate

5%
Gross margin

M

During the two years, there were no changes in the
valuation techniques used.

Annual Report 2016

7. DVFEFEGHE)

(9]

AEEBR-_ZE—AR"E+=ZA=1+—
BAHEAGREEFREAFETZ
it A 2 ERERE A 2
&

REBE VB BEaaERYFERR
ETHREZATEE  BREE=
EBRATETE - UBREEERZ
ERNVEFEANESSER - %
pEmEEeR PEFHBERT
MAERET IR ©

IWFE—ERFEFEMS  AKH
BEEREAGBRUIERER RO
HIE B SN EESETIAME -

Fair value
AP
Effect on
fair value
for increase 2016 2015
of inputs “E-XE -B-1%
EYIEPN
HAYE RMB'000 RMB'000
ZEE ARBTR ARET
= Decrease = 112,807
(2015:30%)
(ZB—1%:30%) FL
= Increase
(2015: 3.87)
(ZZ-0F:387) #h
13% Decrease 1,267 4,602
(2015: 13%)
(ZZ-8F 13%) R
2% Increase
(2015: 2%)
(ZZ-RF 12%) #m
43% Increase
(2015: 45%)
(ZZ—0F . 45%) i
REEA - PR 2 HEREE
23 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

8. TURNOVER 8. HEXH
The Group's turnover which represents the net invoiced AEBEZEEFREETRFPZER
value of goods sold and services rendered to customers, after BRETFREFZIREIGESENE S
allowances for returns and trade discounts and net of sales MEEEREER cBEFE - FHA0M
tax are as follows: S8

2016 2015
N

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Sales and contract works of embedded $§EHRAREZGE DL

system products and related products HEERLREDNTRE 1,268,479 942,455
Rendering of travel and leisure services 32 iR %% & K B AR 7% 130,043 112,311
Sales of wine and related products SHEBE A RABEE R 10,150 11,146
Management fee income EIRBIA 3,870 6,133

1,412,542 1,072,045
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND INCOME

9. HftmRWA

2016

2015

Bank interest income
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Gain on disposal of investment property
Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Government grants (note)
Interest income from loans to others

Realised gain on reclassification from
investment revaluation reserve on
step-acquisition of a subsidiary

Rental income

Reversal of allowance for doubtful
other receivables

Reversal of allowance for doubtful
trade receivables

Others

—B-RF

RMB’000
ARET T

—T—AF
RMB’000
ARETTT

HRITHEWA 1,095 940
HERHEEMBEE

Wz - 2,004
REREMERE - 1,526
HEWME - BKERERE

Wz - 124
LEMTB ARG - 26,050
T A B (BT 5E) 10,232 22,838
MEMATREERZ

FEWBA 75 53
7 B B LA B — I Bf 8 X R B |

RESHERBEN S ENE

R as 7,260 =
A A 2 840
1 [ H At FE R IE

REREE 1,397 18
B[Ol fE W B SRR

RO 1,375 6,326
HAth 5,580 6,480

27,016 67,199

Note: Government grants represented subsidy to the Group by the
PRC government as incentives primarily to encourage the
development of the Group and the contribution to the local
economic development.

et BB EPRBN X TASE 2B
P ZFREPEERELAEEER
REBFLBER -

o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
strategic business units that are managed separately by the
chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit requires
different technology, development and marketing strategies.

During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,

which were managed separately based on their business

nature:

Manufacture and sale - research, development,

of electronic fire manufacture, marketing,

equipment contract work and sale of

electronic fire alarm systems

and related products

Tourism development — development of travel and leisure

business

Investment holding — holding of fund, debt and equity
investment

All other segments — business activities and operating
segments not separately
reported, including production
and sales of wine and related

products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not include
bank interest income, unallocated other gains and income,
finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses. Segment
assets do not include unallocated corporate assets. Segment
non-current assets do not include available-for-sales financial
assets and deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sale or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current
market prices.

/'\s‘zlgﬁﬂ

AEERBIEEERRABILEEN
REXGEMMETEL D8 - FRE
EBEMFEARRM - HRNMHIHR

B o

RER - NEEH M {ER %ﬁv‘%ﬁ g2
RERENEBEE R %

BUERNE  —ff3E  FE - -&E ™
ES =]l BEE  AHNIRER
B HEEFHMMER

S R BB E R

IRBEEER - BERERKEER

AR —RBEEESAEREE

FriE A — ETEE) R A E DA
Va1 IEBIME - BREE

EREEEEBE XA
R M

RED 2 G R AR A B 5 R MY
AR — 3 - D ER A BB E
RRITHBWA ~ KD @Eﬁﬂﬂﬂ& & & W
A BERARRARDEEEFR - 28
BERTERADELREE - AR
BEETBRAKLENBEERELT
HIAEE o

AEBARD BMEHEE REZEE B
F=HENERE - BIRBEITHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. EE R (4)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: AR EDHRFREE2ER !

Manufacture
and sale of
electronic fire
equipment

REREE
ETERRE
RMB'000
ARBTR

Tourism
development
REXRR
RMB'000
ARETT

Investment
holding
REER
RMB'000
ARETTL

All other
segments

FrEEMDE

RMB'

000

ARETT

Year ended 31 December BE-_E-~F+ZR
2016 =+-HLEEE
Revenue from external customers RENAEE Z WA 1,268,479 130,043 3,870 10,150 1,412,542
Segment profit/(loss) AEbEF/ (B8) 341,342 61,752 (18,892) (9,566) 374,636
Interest income FEMA 747 188 45 190 1,170
Finance costs Ei§&$ (5.969)
Unallocated corporate expenses AP B ER S (18,344)
Profit before tax BRI AR 351,493
Other segment information:  Ht2HEH
Allowance for: AN RI5 2 i f
deposits paid for potential RBEREY N
investments ®e - - 1,000 - 1,000
doubtful other receivables ﬁ’gﬁ“uﬁmlﬁ%ﬁﬁ 2,783 1,110 - 3,893
doubtful trade receivables Fﬁuﬁz%%ﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁ 10,060 - - 5 10,065
Interest expenses FlEBHY 6,151 5,280 - 345 11,776
Depreciation and amortisation ﬁ% B 11,062 3,639 33 1" 14,745
Share of profit/(losses) of associates JE{f & A =% /
(B#&) (3.873) 2,438 (53,313) 5 (54,748)
Share of losses of joint ventures  JEIEAE P EFE - - (784) - (784)
Income tax expense/(credit) FREREY /(%) 52,618 15,684 116 (7) 68,411
Year ended 31 December BZz-F-1F+=A
2015 =t-HLEFE
Revenue from external customers R ESNREE Z WA 942,259 112,311 6,133 11,342 1,072,045
Segment profit/(loss) AEER/ (BR) 249,601 50,843 (34,493) 861 266,812
Interest income HEMA 436 323 34 200 993
Finance costs BEKK (12,332)
Unallocated corporate expenses  RAFA%H T (17,767)
Profit before tax BRE AR A 237,706
Other segment information: ~ Eti5H&ER
Allowance for; AN RIS 2 #if
doubtful other receivables Hip WA R R 643 24,553 = = 25,196
doubtful trade receivables B E 5 EHRIE 14,848 = = = 14,848
Interest expenses FlEkY 4,787 10,627 - 330 15,744
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& &4 10,193 6,525 24 2,036 18,778
Share of losses of associates gg1ggﬁFMA SERE = (1,968) (10,317) - (12,285)
Share of losses of joint ventures  JE/EAE P EERE - - (21,873) - (21,873)
Income tax expense ﬁﬁ%%}‘éf‘aﬁi 35,885 6,785 1 331 43,002
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about reportable segment assets:

At 31 December 2016

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Property, plant and equipment

Cash and cash equivalents
Others

Total assets

Segment assets including:
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Additions to non-current assets

At 31 December 2015

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Property, plant and equipment

Cash and cash equivalents
Others

Total assets

Segment assets including:
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Additions to non-current assets

R=ZB-AE+=H
S=F

APELREE
nE - BERRE
RERBESEN
At

BaE

AREEESE !
REERRZRE
REERECRE
AEFRBAE

R=®-5E+=f
=t-g

NHEE

ROMEREE
nE - BE k&R
RERBESEN
E4

BaE

IBEERRE !
REEREZRE
REELEZRE
REFNPEE

Manufacture
and sale of
electronic fire
equipment

RERHE
BT RIRME

RMB'000
AEBTT

1,337,270

10. 2 EER(FE

AHRESMEEZEN :

Investment
holding
REEZR
RMB'000
ARETT

Tourism
development
REBRRRE
RMB'000
ARETT

273,841 933,083

All other
segments

iR 25
RMB'000

ARETT

Total

@t
RMB'000
AREFTL

30,692 2,574,886

6,627

92,557

197,934 462,481
- 286,923
3,046 88,415

7,17
81,299
12,627

101,697
2,676,583
- 667,042

- 286,923
336 184,354

991,691

292,856 902,045

31,489 2,218,081

130,534

195,496 451,105
= 243,478
122,807 51,939

5,352
47,313
7,045

59,710
2,277,791
= 646,601

= 243,478
369 305,649
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T — "NF+_-_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. oHER(E)
Geographical information: HWEEEL :

Revenue Non-current assets
WA FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015

—B-A"F ZTHF =B-—R"E —THF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTRE ARBTT ARWTR ARETET

PRC except Hong Kong PR (TBIERE) 1,402,392 1,060,899 1,201,930 1,152,780
Hong Kong B8 - - - 1
The United States EH 10,150 11,146 15,911 22,303
Canada nEx - = 42,138 15,824

1,412,542 1,072,045 1,259,979 1,190,908

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based ERBEERE - WATIRERFPATE
on the locations of the customers. Hh o
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, revenue REBEZ2-_ZT—RNEA-_FT—HFE+_-A
from any single external customer does not attribute to 10% —t+—HItFE  #E—INBEFES
or more of the Group'’s revenue. 2 MW as N R AN &R a2 10% 31 A
Fo
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BMERE
2015
—EB-RE —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Interest on bank and other loans RITREME KA B 11,776 15,744
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE B 5 e (5,807) (3,412)

5,969 12,332
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax RVERF IR
Provision for the year N
PRC -
Hong Kong B
Under/(over)-provision in prior year BAFERETR
(FRFEREE)
PRC =8
Hong Kong e
Deferred tax (note 32) EREFRIE (FH5E32)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required for the
year ended 31 December 2016 since the Group has no
assessable profit for that year. The amount provided for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was calculated at 16.5%
based on assessable profit for that year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Three subsidiaries of the Company had been certified by
the relevant PRC authorities as high technology enterprises.
Pursuant to the Income Tax Law in the PRC, the three
subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
at a rate of 15% effective for three years within 2018.

12. FiEBiRAX

2016 2015
S

—E—RF
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARET T

68,045 49,640
= 331
1,714 (53)
(7) =
69,752 49,918
(1,341) (6,916)
68,411 43,002

BMERBEZE_T—A"F+_A=t—H
IFEAREEBNEVESG  ARAE
BN ZFRELEERTZN - BAEMNE
BEBE_E-AF+-_A=+—H1t
FEZ AT R MR E16.5% B
o

H i 77 FE AR B A 2 HIB IR B AL
BEEXBAEBRRZRITEN - 28
KBHRZE 2 RITHEAE

RRB =AM E X B &+ A AR
EREHMREE - RETEMEHR
% =B RRERI5% 2 TR
RPBEERSHR(EEMER]) - R®
“E-N\FRIZ=AFEER -
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

One subsidiary of the Company had been certified by the
relevant PRC authorities as software enterprises. Pursuant to
the Income Tax Law in the PRC, the subsidiary is subjected to
EIT rate of 12.5% effective for five years up to 31 December
2016.

Other subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
generally subject to income tax on their taxable income at a
tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%).

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an assessment
demanding final tax for the year of assessment 2004/2005
from The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD"). The amount of this assessment was HK$47,852,000
(equivalent to RMB42,804,000) in which HK$47,748,000
(equivalent to RMB42,711,000) relating to a claim for gain
on disposal of long term investment recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2004. On 25 February 2013, the
IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary informing that the
case has been forwarded to the Appeals Section of the IRD
for further processing. No provision was made as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 as the directors opine that the
subsidiary has strong grounds and sufficient evidence to
defend the capital nature of the gain. Moreover, the IRD
regarded the assessment as protective action and allowed
those part of tax relating to the contended capital gain to be
held over unconditionally pending the outcome of objection.
The directors opine that the action of the IRD highly
correlates with timing factor because the year of assessment
2004/2005 became statutorily time-barred by the end of
March 2011.

Should the assessment regarding the claim for the gain be
finally judged against the subsidiary, current tax liabilities
and corresponding income tax expense of HK$47,748,000
(equivalent to RMB42,711,000) will be recognised.

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

12.

Annual Report 2016

$A E—FEEJWJ% NEVER B AR
BRUMEE - RETPBEMETE %

MTJE BIZB1212.5% 2 R B RF
X REBE_T-—RF+_A=+—

E IERBEFEER -

KRB BEK Lz HMHE AR EE
ARERBRWMALRE25%(ZE—F
F 0 25% ) BURFTISEL ©

RZE——F KRR —KMWEBEAQF
WHEABER(IRERN_ZZF
M/ —ETAFEETIHEEMNRRE
ME - FHA© E R 47,852,000 %
7T (& W AR ¥ 42,804,000 7T ) -
H #h 47,748,000 7L (FBE RN AR
42,711,00070) BB E =TT WHF+=
A=+—HLEFEERRHLERBAR
B2WBEZHRREE R —=F=
AZ+HA  BBRRZMEATED
B ASEBARGERIBHEBLF
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EERZEEN T RIAMRFE
RZE——F=AREBEETHKR -

fini 75 8 B 2= U 5 B9 5T 5 A 4% R 3 5% B
B AR A - %R 47,748,000 7% 7T
(HERARKA2,711,0007T) 2 BNEAF
BRBEREEMEHAX



ERAERBRBEFREROBRAT —F—

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the

NEFIR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

product of profit before tax multiplied by the PRC Enterprise

Income Tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax rate
of 25% (2015: 25%)

Tax effect of share of losses of
associates

Tax effect of share of losses of
joint ventures

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
not previously recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Over-provision in current year

Under/(Over)-provision in prior year

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of tax concession

Others

Income tax expense

BR B A A

RBRMEHE25%
(ZZ—A1%F :25%)
FEZIE

Km%%@T%EZ
M e

EEEEREEBEZ
MBTE

TRERTA 2 R 2

TAHB S 2 B2

mhm mnm

FABTARERBEEEEZ
%ﬁi%%ﬁ# 288
RERBBER 2 RBE
NS BRERE
BEFEBERBETE
(HBRERE)
REMEEREREE 2
B AR TRME 22
MIBR R 2 B8

Hftb

PSR

Fﬁ ﬁﬁﬁﬁi(nﬁ)
B 1554 B9 S B8 Tt BT R 96 o B 2 S
SRR AR HERINT -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA R AR MY RE

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —h4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
351,493 237,706
87,873 59,426
13,687 3,071
196 5,468
(13,948) (8,900)
6,230 8,031
(75) (1)
9,104 5,854
(46) (587)
1,707 (53)
570 (170)
(36,887) (29,660)
= 523

68,411 43,002
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. XEEER

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

AEBAFEHEMNE MR, (GEA)AT
KIF :

2016
N

2015
—E—RF

RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARET T

Allowance for deposits paid for potential FL/BERE X 2 & B

investments 1,000 =
Allowance for doubtful other receivables X ftb [ Ui 3k 78 R BR #4445 3,893 25,196
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables  EURE 5 BR AR ER B 10,065 14,848
Amortisation of other intangible assets — H fib /2 & Z= 8 £ 1,734 3,794
Auditors’ remuneration 1% E0AN BN 1,700 1,470
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAR 723,218 567,951
Depreciation e 13,011 16,193
Loss from changes in fair value less EMEENTEEBRHBEE

costs to sell of biological assets A2 &8 3,113 86
Loss on disposal and written off of HEME  BENMXEEE

property, plant and equipment S&E! 3,319 64
Operating leases charges in respect of  tHI RIEF 7 K&EHE

land and buildings 53 11,959 8,325
Research and development expenditure #f3% & 5355 X 53,214 38,352
Reversal of allowance for doubtful 1 (o] L b & MR IE R BR

other receivables B4 (1,397) (18)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful B O Y E 5 IRFIR AR

trade receivables B (1,375) (6,326)

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation
of approximately RMB50,034,000 (2015: RMB45,816,000)
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately

above.

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

14.

BEEGEXNABTEE IR ARITELNA
R ¥50,034,000L(ZT—HF : AR
#45,816,0007T) * ZEMANET AR L
AR TR 2 58 o

BERBAFX

2016 AONES)

—EB-AF —T-RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ JEALNRERL 149,509 130,190
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R {KIEFIEH 21 3% 36,158 28,722
185,667 158,912
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year did not include (2015: nil) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 15. The
emoluments of the five (2015: five) highest paid individuals

14. EEREREX(E)
FAN - AEEBREHESTHEATRE
AT EEE HMEFEEH
RHFIS2 2o - AR (ZE—H
F:AR)ESTHEAZHMSAT

are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonus
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to RMB895,000 to
RMB1,342,000) (2015: RMB838,000
to RMB1,257,000)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,342,000 to
RMB1,789,000) (2015:
RMB1,257,000 to RMB1,676,000)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,789,000 to
RMB2,236,000) (2015:
RMB1,676,000 to RMB2,095,000)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
(equivalent to RMB2,236,000 to
RMB2,684,000) (2015:
RMB2,095,000 to RMB2,513,000)

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

B & RER 4,582 4,448
BIFTEAL 3,150 1,600
RRAE T B R 499 458
8,231 6,506

MemEWT :

Number of individuals

2015

1,000,001/ L2 1,500,000 7T

(FERNAR-95,0007TE

AR#1,342,0007T)

(ZZ—h%F . AR¥838,0007T

= AR#¥1,257,0007T) 2 3
1,500,001 %2,000,0007% 7T

(HHERAR1,342,000E

AR#1,789,0007T)

(ZE—Hh%F : AR®1,257,0007C

= AR®1,676,0007T) 1 1
2,000,001 7C%22,500,000 7T

(FHERNAR1,789,000TE

AR#2,236,0007T)

(ZE—h%F : AR™1,676,0007T

&= AR¥2,095,0007T) 1 1
2,500,001 L. 23,000,000/ 7T

(FHENAR2,236,0000E

AE#2,684,0007T)

(Z2—1%F : AR%2,095,0007T

= AR2,513,0007T) 1 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS 15. EEREERE

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EEREEME
The remuneration of every director and supervisor in EEERESHEETES(TH
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of RARIIHEMBAR) 2MEMAT -

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out
below:

Retirement

benefit

Salaries scheme
and  Discretionary  contributions

Fees  allowances bonus RIKER Total

e HeREH MiERA SR Sh
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HieE ARETR AR%TT ARETRT ARETT ARETR

Name of director EERE

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong ~ REHLAE 250 557 - 37 844
Ms. Zheng Zhong HBEL L 220 400 - 106 726
Mr. Ip Wing Wai 9§ ht 220 - - - 220
Mr. Ni Jinlei fie@EsE 80 537 - - 617
Ms. Xue Li BELT 80 - - - 80
Mr. Zhao Xuedong HERLE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shao Jiulin BAmEE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Juncai BRARE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lin Yan WELE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua TRELE 80 - - - 80

1,250 1,494 - 143 2,887

Name of supervisor ~ EEft#

Mr. Fan Yimin B-REE 50 - - - 50
Prof. Yang Jinguan BeBHK 50 - - - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BHTREE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BELZRE 50 - - - 50
Ms. Zhou Min Bl 50 - - - 50

250 - - - 250

Total for 2016 —E-AE4H 1,500 1,494 = 143 3,137
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRy e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T — "XF+_-_A=+—HILLFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS 15. EEREEM$ (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’' emoluments (Continued) (a) BEEREEM<E(E)

Retirement

benefit

Salaries scheme
and  Discretionary  contributions

Fees allowances bonus &7
e  HekEH BT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00
ARBTT  ARETRT  ARETR AER®TT

Name of director EERS

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong ~ REH 4 220 547 - 35 802
Ms. Zheng Zhong gErt 150 100 - 27 277
Mr. Ip Wing Wai 9 110 - - - 110
Mr. Xu Zhendong ARREE (i 73 361 - 24 458
Mr. Xu Zhixiang BEREE (i 73 60 - 24 157
Mr. Ni Jinlei fie@is 40 - - - 40
Ms. Xue Li EBIL 40 - - - 40
Mr. Zhao Xuedong HERLE 40 - - - 40
Mr. Zhang Yongli RxFNEA (ii 7 24 = 1 32
Mr. Shao Jiulin BhmtE 80 = = = 80
Mr. Li Juncai BRI RE 80 = = = 80
Mr. Lin Yan waktE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua FRERE 40 - - - 40
Mr. Cai Chuanbing ZEMEE )] 40 - - - 40

1,073 1,092 - 111 2,276

Name of supervisor ~ EZft%

Mr. Fan Yimin E-REE 50 = = S 50
Prof. Yang Jinguan BEBHE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BGFREE 25 - - - 25
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BELLE 25 - - - 25
Ms. Zhou Min Bsrt 50 = = = 50
Mr. Chen Shunxin BRi LA (il 25 = = = 25
Mr. Li Chonghua TEEgL 25 = = = 25
250 - - - 250
Total for 2015 “E-REAH 1323 1,092 = 11 2,526
Note: (i)  Resigned on 5 May 2015 MeE: () R-ZE—RAERARAE
£
(i)~ Passed away on 24 January 2015 (i) R=ZFE—RAF—HA=+MW
HEt
(iii)  Retired on 30 June 2015 (i) R=—FE—RAFA=+H

RIE
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
Pursuant to the service contracts entered into
between the Company and its executive directors,
the Company’s executive directors are entitled to an
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses of not
more than 5% of the consolidated profit after tax but
before the provision of such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company and the director’s connected party
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

15. EEREEME (F)

(a)

(b)

EEREEHE(E)
REBEARBEERNITESRII LR
BEK  ARARTEFTHRER
RETBBERR (ENMEHRELZ
Al #R B 5% 2 BIBTEAL

HE-T— A FR-F-AFI=
A=+—ALEE BREFN
EFNEARERREAME 2 2
o

HE_Z—RFER_ZT—hF+=
RA=+—BILFE  AEEWER
ANZEESEEINERME - (F
AR S| HIAAER B 3 F B RS 2 5%
Bk /E A REBR RS (E o

EERRZ RSN ZEXRE
=

ZAUNCIL RN SETE 2 BVAER T
RERSFAERFRFEMAR
AEEREEZHAEALIRNETE
BEAED(TwERXERNE
ARG~ ZHEREHK
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

17.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and
vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The Group is required to contribute certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central pension
scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to
contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB129,560,000
(2015: RMB75,998,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,230,896,000 (2015: 1,184,800,000)
in issue during the year. No adjustment has been made to the
basic profit per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015. Therefore, the calculation of
the diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share.

16.

17.

EBAREHETE
AEERBEBREMRE ST ENED
HATEREEEREEER BRI
AEEFTE([RBETE]) - AEEY
BRESHEZERIBEFERIEY
5%:TE  RETIBGARSSETIHB
1,500 7T - MEAREBFARESET
ElvEREHRZK—MBEFEESNE -

AEETEEE N2 EAEWTHRA
BT 2P RERAREEE - AEEART
REARSFHEBNEEEAFERTE
ZETHHIREBRAKBEH o EHHER
FasRERSBMERE RAFERAK
BEZERBEMZH - Lz F RENRE
AEME  AREZEEERBEZ
EINGIE N

AEETEREHNMEEERES -

R HMRKENEE - WARAEE
REFMEBRZNERNEBEFHFENETH

DR -

BRER

BREXRBERR

RATHEE ABIEERERBF TIRIE
RAARBEEANEBERFERANARE
129,560,000 L(ZF—HF : AR
75,998,000 T ) K F A E 1T E @A
T 9$01,230,896,000( —FE—F 4 ¢
1,184,800,000) IR 5t & - I ER B =
—E—RNER-E-—RAFE+-_A=+—
HIEFE 2 EREARRMNIEDLFHE o i
b FrEEREER R IR E AR AR
EIES
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. 1% BMERRE

Leasehold
improvements,
Machinery ~ furniture
Freehold  Leasehold and  and office Motor Construction
land land  Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
| RENEES:
KAER il BRE
it 1# Br HERRE ERIR it
RMB'000 RMB’ RMB'000 RM‘B’OOO | RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTn ARETR ARETT
Cost A
t 1 January 2015 RZE-1E-A-H 7433 5917 59,534 29,550 16,018 70,99 694 190,140
Additions AE 12,674 9,703 29,461 9,009 858 2,693 59,257 124,255
Disposals ik - - - (172) 92) (1514) = (1,778)
Exchange differences EizE (646) = 40 19 9 0 ) (140)
At 31 December 2015 and RZF-RE+2A
1 January 2016 St-BRE-7E
-A-A 19,461 15,620 89,396 39,006 16,879 72,166 59,949 312,477
Additions HE - - - 14317 858 3,706 46,945 65,826
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-HHELT = - - 2 10 - - 12
Transfers Bh - - 68,758 3114 3471 - (75,349) -
Reclassification BHNE - - - (620) 620 - - -
Disposals and written off HE R (3,267) - - () (53) (1,002) (2.432) (6,976)
Exchange differences EfzE 1,698 - 41 301 35 45 M3 3,269
At 31 December 2016 RE-ET2A
=1+-A 17,89 15,620 158,631 55,898 21,826 74,915 29,826 374,608
Accumulated depreciation  Z3H7E
At 1 January 2015 R-S-1%-A-H = 823 15,064 11,016 10,169 50,183 - 87,255
Charge for the year Emx i - 103 3,120 4,040 3,650 5,116 - 16,029
Disposals e - - - (141) (3) (1,181) - (1.410)
Bxchange differences EiZZ - - 3 67 39 - - 143
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RE+ZA
1 January 2016 Zt-BRZE-1E
-A-A - 926 18,21 14,982 13,770 54,118 - 102,017
Charge for the year ERg - 292 3,021 3,028 1312 4,458 - 13,011
Reclassification R - - - (788) 1,058 (270) - -
Disposals and written off ﬁﬁwﬁﬁ = - - (201) (24) (952) = (117
Bichange differences Eiz2 - - 57 199 19 2 - 297
At 31 December 2016 R-E-~ETZR
S8 - 1218 21,299 18,120 16,135 51,376 - 114,148
Carrying amount EAE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZA
=t-A 17,89 14,402 131,332 31,178 5,691 17,539 29,826 260,460
At 31 December 2015 el
:1’ = 19,461 14,694 ARYE 24,024 3,109 18,048 59,949 210,460
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2016 the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank
loans amounted to RMB72,676,000 (2015: RMB50,213,000)
(note 31).

19. GOODWILL

Cost R

At 1 January R—H—H
Disposal of a subsidiary LE—FERB AR
Exchange differences EHER

At 31 December w+=—A=+—8
Accumulated impairment losses it EEBE

At 1 January n—H—H
Addition NE

Disposal of a subsidiary & —HEK B AR
Exchange differences EHER

At 31 December R+—A=+—H
Carrying amount BREE

At 31 December R+-_A=+—8”

18. 1% - RERXE (&)
R_ZE—RNE+_A=+—8 Y%
BMEIEEZEEEDER  EAAE
BRITER2ER  BESEAAR
#72,676,000C(ZE—HEF : ARK
50,213,0007T) (FF&E31) °

19. &

2016 2015
N

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

20,404 21,184
- (933)

180 153
20,584 20,404
- 933
2,701 =
- (933)

122 =
2,823 =
17,761 20,404
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19. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGUs") that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

Manufacture and sale of electronic

fire equipment segment PaN:i
Production and sales of wine and SERBEEEEBR
related products FERE M

Multiple units without significant
goodwill

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are referred to past experience and current
market expectation and/or demand or based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is
applicable. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for
the next five years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment segment and the production and sales of wine
and related business are 17% (2015: 20%) and 13% (2015:
13%) respectively.

At 31 December 2016, before impairment testing, goodwill
of RMB2,823,000 was allocated to production and sales of
wine and related business within the other segment. Due to
a slow-down in the wine business, the Group has revised its
cash flow forecasts for this CGU. The CGU has been reduced
to its recoverable of RMB9,000,000. An impairment loss of
RMB2,701,000 has been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2016.

19.

SLERHEBFHIRE

WEEBREE 2 ZEEM

Annual Report 2016

e (&)
REBAHESHEENKRBR KRS
BHNZEBEHTEENRSELS
f([ReELEM])  BHEREEDR
BTG AN :

2016
S

2015
—ET—RF

RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBT

17,557 17,557
- 2,643

204 204
17,761 20,404

ReELEBEMZr Bl eRIREES
BEFEDZEZEE - #REAEZIE
REDANRMEE BEX - IR A
BEMRZEXERE - ARERAA RBRE
FhMEHEEKEEENMESELEN
ZH5TE B 2w AR B BR B AT L &R DA S 5
BRI R - BRERERDERELBRERH
RIBHL,/ RFRABBEREELEM
REXBAEE 2 FHAREEERER
ZAE(RAUEER)  BEEMNRE
XBEARBBERREMEERENE

Eo

AEERBEESH A RRAFRIE
HIF R RRER S RIEA -

AU R AEE R EREEE T ED
REDERAEEREERE B MIEEE
AR TEAR SR ZBRBRAILEE17%
TE—RF:20%)R13%(ZZF—F
F13%) e

R_ZE—R"F+=-—A=+—8  #&7TR
BRI AT - AR2,823,0007T 2 79 &
ENEEEHEMSTANEEREERTE
EMARREER - EREEEESRE
REBBEIERZREEEEMNE
SHREBA - ZREELEENE R E
H a] Ug B 5 58 A R #9,000,0007T ° &
E-E-—RE+-ZA=+—HILEER
HRREEEARE2,701,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. HhEFEEE

Transport
operation Rights and Computer Customer
license  patents Copyrights software list Total

REER  WER HEL

rERR g7 i B EFZE &%

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTTE ARBTTL ARBTL ARBTL ARBTI ARKTE

Cost A

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-—H%—f—H 30,000 80 3,208 1,685 6,720 41,693
Additions #1n - - = 173 = 173
Exchange differences EHZER - - - 28 423 451

At 31 December 2015and  R-ZT—AF+=-A

1 January 2016 =t-HRZZE—REF
—A—H 30,000 80 3,208 1,886 7,143 42,317
Additions =0 - - - 840 - 840
Exchange differences EHZER - - - 15 488 503

At 31 December 2016 R=B-XE+=A
=+-H 30,000 80 3,208 2,741 7,631 43,660

Accumulated amortisation Rt

At 1 January 2015 R-_E—HE—A—H 27,844 38 214 130 2,690 30,916
Amortisation for the year REFEHH 2,156 15 321 207 1,095 3,794
Exchange differences BHER - - - 32 212 244

At 31 December 2015and  R=FT—HE+=A

1 January 2016 =+-ARZE—RE
—A—H 30,000 53 535 369 3,997 34,954
Amortisation for the year — ZNF[EHEE - 14 320 232 1,168 1,734
Exchange differences EHER - - - 8 326 334

At 31 December 2016 R=B-XE+=A
=Ch=H 30,000 67 855 609 5,491 37,022

Carrying amount IREE

At 31 December 2016 R=B-XE+=A
=+—H - 13 2,353 2,132 2,140 6,638

At 31 December 2015 RZE-—RF+=H
=1—FH - 27 2,673 1,517 3,146 7,363
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

21.

The Group’s transport operation license represents a public
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the
Group's Tourism development segment.

The customer list represents customer relationship acquired
through business combination. The remaining amortisation
period of the customer list is 3 years (2015: 4 years).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of wine
and related products. At 31 December 2016, the Group owns
7 acres (2015: 7 acres) vines. During the year, the Group
harvested approximately 31 tons (2015: 20 tons) of grapes,
which had a fair value less costs to sell of RMB378,000
(2015: RMB229,000) (determined at the time of harvest)
with reference to their market prices. The fair value of the
Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2016 has been
determined based on income approach and taken into
account the adjustments to harvest profile, cost incurred,
cultivation area, and expected yield of the biological assets.

Reconciliation of carrying amount of vines:

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

20.

21.

At 1 January n—H—H

Loss from changes in fair value less NEZ R IHE AR
costs to sell Z BB

Decreases due to harvest W RIS A Y R

Exchange differences ME =R

At 31 December RNt+=-—A=+—H

m/mﬁ/ﬁg (nﬁ
¢%IZXL@% R R IR AR P B4
EBRZRSARIRER L E 2 BREGZE
o ZIREETANANEE 2 ik 5 3%
BAH -

EEPEZBERNEGEHMESNERH
R BEFREZHRTHIENRIF(ZE
—FE  4F) -

EYEE
AEBRSFSHELERBEHRERZEER
HWEER HRZE—R"F+ZA=1+—
B AEEFEGIAE(ZE—H4E 7
REB)EER - FA - 7&%@%%4&&
BA31IME(—ZE—R%E : 200) » EAF
Tﬁ/aﬁﬁ%ﬁkm%/\EMW&OOOE(_;
—HRF : ARM229,0007T ) (FAUAK B
MEE)  EF2ZHENME - £A&
EEMEER_T—~"F+-_A=1+—
BZAFERBRAEETE - WEFTA
HAEMEENKEMAS - TEEXZK
AN - Bk ERERE R AE -

BEREE 2 R -
2016 2015
—E-AF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
4,602 4,646
(3.113) (86)
(378) (229)
156 271
1,267 4,602
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22.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. £YEEE)
The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to its AEBEEUREMNESEHEBNEM
vines: [y
Climate and other risks SIR R H A3 ks
The Group's vines are exposed to the risk of damage from AEBZABHEEEAREELE &K
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces. The F NEREHMBARNEEKEBE 2R
Group has extensive processes in place aimed at monitoring R AEBEREZAEEF  BEEBEIER
and mitigating those risks, including regular vines health ,JX/J\‘ZSH - BLIE TE BRI A A R Y
inspections and industry pest and disease surveys. BEBAMETEEHERREKERA
% o
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REtENRIZRE
AN RS
—E-RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥ET T
Unlisted investments: EETHRE :
Share of net assets ERFEE 667,042 646,601
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest- FEUEE & N RIFRIBTEER B RE
free and have no fixed repayment terms. [EEERNE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December

22. RBHEDRTZRE(H)
AEMR-T-AF+-A=+—BZ

2016 are as follows:

TN
incorporation

o AR 37 3t

Registered
capital

R

TEHENT

Percentage of
equity interest
iR AR E DL

Direct Indirect

Principal activities

e+ 4

B &

Beijing Jade Bird Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000,000 40% 1% Investment in unlisted
Hengsheng PRC enterprises or
Investment Fund growing entities
(Limited Partnership)

("HS Fund")

LRERERRE LR AR HepBIIE F
E$(BRAE) 1,000,000,0007C BEPEBZKRE
(MemE£])

Changsha Songya Changsha, the PRC RMB105,150,000 - 28% Land development and
Lake Construction urban infrastructure
Investment Co., project development
Ltd. (“Songya Lake
Construction”)

ROMIERZER FERD AR TR R RER
RERBRAA 105,150,0007C BE#ER
R =)

Legend (Hunan) Hunan, the PRC RMB250,000,000 - 29% Project development
Industrial
Development
Co., Ltd. (“Hunan
Development”)

BEx(im) BXERE T ENE AR EHER
RAR([HMEER]) 250,000,0007T

Beijing Xinzhongrui Beijing, the PRC RMB250,000,000 - 25% Investment in unlisted
Venture Capital PRC enterprises or
Co., Ltd. growing entities
(“Xinzhongrui VC")

EREPRAERE FEIER AR HpBIIE F
BRAR 250,000,0007T BRPERZKE
([fEHmel&])

Shanghai Shengjin Shanghai, the PRC~ RMB200,000,000 25% 20% Investment in unlisted

Venture Capital
Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Shengjin

PRC enterprises or
growing entities

vVC")

FERSAERE HE e AR YB3 ET sk
BRAT] 200,000,0007T BRPERIEE
(TEem5SaIE

®E])
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22.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

NEFIR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F

The following table shows information on the associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

% of ownership interests/voting AEEHE 2 EHE
Bn/ REEADLL

rights held by the Group

At 31 December
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets
Less: Non-controlling interest
(“NCI")

Net assets attributable to
the owners

Group's share of net assets
Goodwill
Other adjustments

Group's share of carrying amount

of interests

Year ended 31 December:
Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends received from associates

W+=-A=+—H
ERBEE
MEAE
ERBEE
mEEE

FHEE
W SRR AR
([ SRR R )

BEADEFEE

EAEFEE

o Bt
&= I

B

e

N
/

REBE D BHES
REE

BET=A=1-A

IEEFE -
WA

REREF/ (BE)

Hip2Eias
FEWEBE

BB R AR

22. REEE

BA R AR MY RE

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

[NRZRE(R)
TRINSEHAKTEMSTBERZBZR
BlZER - REMERRNEFEE MR

KU EAR - T27 BB ERTE
TR B & A B 2 BB 15 RS R8T
HRE -

HS Fund Songya Lake Construction
EEES IR

2016 2016 2015
—h%F

41%/41% 41%/41% 47%147 % 47%/47 %
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARKTT ARETR AR%T:E
305,979 500,101 663,006 412,908
4,241,817 3,495,793 1,750,684 1,682,793
(751,225) (1,058,738) (400,000) (400,000)
(2,685,180) (1,626,151) (1,868,174) (1,557,909)
1,111,391 1,311,005 145,516 137,792
(250,662) (254,048) - -
860,729 1,056,957 145,516 137,792
352,899 433,353 67,811 64,211

- - 9,310 9,310

15 58 3 3
352,914 433,411 77,124 73,524
768 755 14,308 5,454
(130,477) (29,106) 7,724 (1,671)
(69,137) 129,439 - -
(199,614) 100,333 7,724 (1,671)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. REtERNRIZRE(E)

Xinzhongrui VC Hunan Development

EHRAR MR

2016 2016 2015
—g-x%E -3 A% —T-If

% of ownership interests/voting AREEEE 7 EHRE
rights held by the Group B/ BEEANL  25%/25% - 49%/49% 49%/49%

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR®TRT AR®ETT AR®TR ARETRT

At 31 December Rt+t=ZB=1+—H
Non-current assets FREEE 248,522 = 212,784 172,817
Current assets RHEE 107,902 = 171,686 192,375
Non-current liabilities ErEBAGE (35,418) = (2,000) =
Current liabilities mEBE - = (136,071) (122,281)
Net assets FEE 321,006 = 246,399 242,911
Add: share capital not injected  #i : A ERAREA

by other shareholders Z IR = = = 5,000
Net assets attributable to wAE AR

the owners FEE 321,006 = 246,399 247,911
Group's share of carrying amount RN&EE {51+

of interests BREE 80,252 = 120,735 121,476
Year ended 31 December: BZ+=-H=1+—H

LFE:

Revenue N - = = -
Loss for the year rEEER (2,422) = (1,513) (2,088)
Other comprehensive income Hpth 2 Wz (18,575) - - =
Total comprehensive income PHEWGEE (20,997) = (1,513) (2,088)

Dividends received from associates £ U4 A &R & - = = =



TREAERBFRERAERLIE —ZT—~FFIK 175

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS Rk MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. REFE DB 2RE(E)

Shanghai Shengjin VC
LEBBRSAXRE

2016 2015
E—XEF —E—hRF

% of ownership interests/voting rights ~ A&EEEH 2 HEEHE
held by the Group Bw/RERAED T 45%/45% -

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
At 31 December 2016 —E-RE+=HA=+—8
Non-current assets EREEE 52,291 =
Current assets REEE 2,961 =
Non-current liabilities EREFAE (950) -
Current liabilities mBaE (3,000) =
Net assets attributable to the owners HEADIEFEE 51,302 -
Group’s share of carrying amount REED(HERKREE
of interests 23,086 -
Year ended 31 December: BE+t-—A=t—BLEE:
Revenue WA = =
Loss for the year NEEEE (1,989) =
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk (15,460) -
Total comprehensive income FHEHR B (17,449) =

Dividends received from associates [SAL QNS #S) - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share

of the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that
are accounted for using the equity method.

RBE R T 2 RE(R)
TRIBAEESEENBTERRE
PR AR B A AR 288 -

2016 2015
—E-ARF —_ZT—h%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARETTT
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—-8:

Carrying amounts of interests E=EEE 12,931 18,190

Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=+—HLEFE:
Loss for the year NEFEEE (11,888) (1,070)
Other comprehensive income HEh2mas (4,761) =
Total comprehensive income 2EW LT (16,649) (1,070)

At 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB689,168,000 (2015: RMB555,474,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

R_ZE—X"F+-—_A=+—8 " &X&H
PEEE AR AARKEEECRITRIR
B A AR 689,168,000 (==&
—HR&F : AR¥S555474,0007T) ° # A
R H M INE R (P E AR LTS
EBEGRO) RCEE - SERMNEERE
FTE DR °
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23.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23.

Unlisted investments:

Share of net assets

—B—NEEH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMERE :
FEIEFEE

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2016

are as follows:

SBI & BDJB China Fund,
L.P. (“SBI China")

SBI & BDJB China Fund,
L.P. ([SBI Chinal)

SBI' & BDJB Management
Limited

SBI & BDJB Management
Limited

Place of
incorporation

a1 AL it B

Cayman Islands

FEHS

Cayman Islands

FEHS

Capital
contributions/issued
and paid up capital

TR/ BETRBERA
USD73,436,598

73,436,598% T

100,000 ordinary

shares of USD1 each

100,000/ FAXAEE1ETT
ZEBR

SRy e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T — "XF+_-_A=+—HILLFE

NEELECRE

RMB’000
ARET T

286,923

2016
—EB-AF

2015
—E—RF
RMB’000
AREFIT

243,478

rEBEAED

ER-_ZT—XRF+=A

=+—BZEEmT

Percentage
of ownership
interest
Efh R e
BEASE

Principal activities

FEXREK

50% Investment in

unlisted companies
and real estate
assets and companies
in the PRC

REFLMRBARTERE

WEEENRAT

50% Provision of investment

management and
advisory services

REREEE RERERY
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 23. REE ¥ CRE(HE)

The following tables show information on the joint venture TRINSEAEEMEBEAZA LD
that is material to the Group. This joint venture is accounted ETER c ZAEDLERGAEUTBBRE
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity EZEAR - 25 HBEERBMETD
method. The summarised financial information presented is BREBEAECEZETBMBRE LT
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint venture. H|/FE o

SBI China

2016
e Al

% of ownership interests/voting rights REBEEZHEARE

held by the Group Eaw RERESL 50%/50% 50%/50%
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETFIT
At 31 December: BR+=—A=+—8":
Non-current assets EMENEE 704,771 579,775
Current assets mENEE 3,046 3,694
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,885) (12,961)
Current liabilities mEaE (458) (417)
Net assets REE 690,474 570,091
Less: NCI B SRR (119,071) (86,093)
Net assets attributable to the owners BEADIEFEE 571,403 483,998
Group's share of carrying amount REES(GEREREE
of interests 285,394 241,736
Cash and cash equivalents included SIARBEECRe KRS
in current assets EEY 3,046 3,657
Current financial liabilities STARBEBEZRBITHE

(excluding trade and other payables and  E(TE#EE 5 M E M FER
provisions) included in current liabilities 218 K& &) = -

Non-current financial liabilities FTAEREBBEZIERBE
(excluding trade and other payables BaB(TEEES REM
and provisions) included in FERTFRIE R B )

non-current liabilities - =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA R AR MY RE

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December:

Revenue

Depreciation and amortisation
Interest income

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Dividends received from joint venture

The following table shows the Group's share of the amounts
of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using

the equity method.

At 31 December:
Carrying amounts of interests

Year ended 31 December:

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

23. REBELECZRE(R)

SBI China

BZE+-A=+—HLEE:

WA =
I E R =
FLEKA _
FERE -
FriSfimX -
RNEEEE (872)
Hih 2 Mz 78,793
S HEW LR 77,921
BREEDERE -

2016
—E-XF
RMB’000
AR¥ T
R+=A=+-R8:
B AREE 1,529
BZE+=-A=+—HLEE:
RNEEEE (349)
Hith 2 E WS 31
ZHIKRLETE (318)

PAONES

—E—RF
RMB'000
ARET T

(66,208)
146,899
80,691

TRINEAKESEERNBEIER R fE
REDEANR B LR B -

2015
—E—RF

RMB’000
ARETTT

1,742

(2,127)

(2,124)
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B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 23. REE ¥ CIRE(E)

At 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of the RZE—RNF+_A=+—H8 "  &x&EH
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB TEREEPENUARBKHFEZRITR
amounted to RMB39,000 (2015: RMB257,000). Conversion Re#BRRARKE39,000n(ZF—1
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's F . AR®257,00070) - AR H iR
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration FRONEE 2P EE A R TN SNE & 1B 1%
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange BYRGEE - EERMEEEHRTEYH
Regulations. R -
24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24, AIHEEMBEE
2016 2015
—B-REF —ZE—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Equity securities, at fair value RAFES - AT E
Listed in Hong Kong (note (i) A L (EE®)) 47,122 30,193
Market value of listed securities rhEEZTE 47,122 30,193
Equity securities, at fair value RAFES - BATE
Unlisted outside Hong Kong (note (ii)) EEBEIINEET
(B X)) 110,707 112,807

157,829 143,000




ERAERBSRBEFRERDBRLT

—B—NEEH
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BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. At HEMKESE(E)

25.

(CONTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

following currencies:

A ERBEENATIIESE !

RMB AR
HK$ BT
Note:

(i) The fair values of listed equity securities are based on current
bid prices.

(i) The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference to
the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
a firm of independent professional qualified valuers, derived
from estimations of the equity value by using market approach
which makes reference to market transactions (2015: market
multiples of comparable companies in relevant industries and
markets). The change of the approach was because there was
a change in valuation technique as new information became
available in current year due to the occurrence of the market
transactions.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials REME
Work in progress & m
Finished goods RUAY

25. 7

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AREFTT
110,707 112,807
47,122 30,193
157,829 143,000

EHRAEBESFZATENRERBER

FELETRABHR 2 A FEDNZEBL
BEXMEMEEFEERAAETZ
fiE - Y ENERTIS ARG HE R
REEGF  EF2ETHERH(ZF
—hFMHBATERTSNAELR
RETISEE o ) ERIZ AN EE) o
KM ZERFERSHERTR
BEETRPTE

2016 2015
—E-AF -
RMB000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
56,027 37,055
22,346 19,303
77,063 70,439
155,436 126,797
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. EZREMEWRE

2016 2015
—E—RE

—E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT

Trade and bills receivables FEWE SRR N EE 546,626 464,132
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T SRR (68,677) (59,987)
477,949 404,145
Advances to staff BB T A 2,557 2,729
Deposits e 2,869 2,167
Due from associates (note 22) R B & AT E(MEE22) 64,195 61,848
Loans and interest receivables EUREREFE 1,000 2,982
Other receivables H fth fE U 3R TE 45,346 29,728
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREME (29,736) (27,254)
86,231 72,200
Advances to suppliers AR HERERIE 6,238 6,800
Prepayments TE T RRIE 8,425 3,802
Gross amount due from customers JEUGEE TR P RIAEE
for contract work (note 27) (BF5E27) 2,649 5,298
581,492 492,245

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is sometimes required. The credit period generally
ranges from 3 to 6 months, starting from the date on which
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of products
are transferred by the Group to customers or the date of
completion of services provided or the payment due date
as defined in the contracts, whichever is the latest. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise the credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforesaid and the fact that
the Group'’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

REAEEZESGR BRI EFHE
ARENFIN  ARERFPRZZER
R - REH-—RE=2EATE
HASERERREREZEARREM
BEEEP 2 HSRHRBZ KB
HEKRE 2 NREIE B (AR R B
EERE)EFE BREEPHERS
EER -  AEEBOBBIENEREER
FEWGRIR - WRBEEEHIE - B3R
EERRRERE SREEAEETE
Mm@ RR - AR Ll &IE - ik
AEERBESERKXBERZTRAE
F - #EERRYEBS KT - BEE
PRRALF LS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— XF+_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based
on the date on which the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of products were transferred by the Group to
customers or the date of completion of services provided or
the payment due date as defined in the contracts, whichever

is the latest, is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0£90H

91 to 180 days 912 180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days HiEH365H

As at 31 December 2016, an allowance for estimated
irrecoverable trade and bills receivables was RMB68,677,000
(2015: RMB59,987,000), in which included an allowance
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivable from a related
company controlled by Peking University, a substantial
shareholder, of RMB68,000 (2015: RMB65,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables:

At 1 January n—H—H
Allowance for the year NG i
Reversal for the year AEFEHE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

26. EZ R EAMBWKRIEGE)
R E 5 RRERRERR DT (IREA
SERNEFERERNEARAEAR
KBk AR HERE K B B%E
KRN RBIBRBE)T

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AREFTT
322,037 309,850
72,075 55,595
53,638 26,542
30,199 12,158
477,949 404,145

R-ZE—XNFE+-_A=+—8 ' st
TR E  BIE ZERA R 2 BE
B ARH68,677,000C( T —FHF : A
R#59,987,0007T) * B BERMEFTT
A YzEl 7 e E AR ER AL R R
FER AR 2 B SR EE AR 68,000
T(ZT—ARF : AR¥65,0007T) °

EWE ZERARERZ BREHIRNT

2016 2015
—EB-AF .
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
59,987 51,465
10,065 14,848
(1,375) (6,326)
68,677 59,987
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26.
As of 31 December 2016, trade and bills receivables of
RMB333,684,000 (2015: RMB241,252,000) were past due

but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

B RHEHMBWRIEE)

RZE—RNE+_A=+—8 AR¥
333,684,000L(ZF—HF : AR
241,252,0007T) 2 B 5 R FH R E K
E@HEWRRE B AWELRE
HEBHNBIEFPER - ZERWES

Less than 3 months LH3EA
3 to 6 months 3Z6fEH
6 to 12 months 6= 1218
Over one year 1A

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables are all denominated in RMB as at 31 December
2016 and 2015.

GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS 27.
FOR CONTRACT WORK

IR ZREBROTIAT -
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AREFTT
178,547 146,991
71,300 55,561
53,638 26,542
30,199 12,158
333,684 241,252

W_F—AER-_F—HEF+_-A
=+—B  AREEKEDERRER
BREER HAARAEE -

W EREEIREFREL
H

2016 2015
—E—XF —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AR¥ET T
Contract costs incurred plus EEATRKANESERE
recognised profits less recognised o MR E HERR g 18
losses to date 18,317 19,818
Less: Progress billings W EERR (17,158) (15,837)
1,159 3,981
Gross amounts due from customers JRUWGEL TIRE P RIEAARE
for contract work (note 26) (FFzE26) 2,649 5,298
Gross amount due to customers MEETIREENREFE
for construction work (note 29) @ (ME29) (1,490) (1,317)

1,159 3,981
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27. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK (CONTINUED)
In respect of construction contracts in progress at the end of
the reporting period, retentions receivable included in trade
receivables is RMB4,144,000 (2015: RMB5,495,000). The
amount of retentions expected to be recovered after more
than twelve months is RMB992,000 (2015: RMB3,930,000).

Advances received in respect of construction contracts
amounted to RMB5,169,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB6,077,000) and is included in trade and other payables.

28. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Less: Time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when
acquired — Non-pledged

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

RMB AR
HK$ BT
usD e
CAD o

e RIRITIFK
E HE R

REeMREFEY

27.

28.

Bl ENEEIREFREA
(&)

AR REBRNER TINEEALM
T ATARKEZEZRZREEAAR
¥A4144,000(ZE—FHF : AR
5,495,000 T ) - THHAA BB 1218 A &
WEIMREBE A AR, 000 (==
—FR4% : AR¥3,930,0007T) °

R-B-RET-A=+—HHRES
HIBFK A ANREES,169,000c(ZF—FH
F: AR#6,077,0007T)  ;FAB S K
EMpERIE -

FRREERBEEEY

B BIEEBE=EAZ
EMFER—RTHEM

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ET T
509,341 313,760
1,234 1,150
510,575 314,910
(1,234) (1,150)
509,341 313,760

AEB2EFARRERREFEY 2
FREETIATIIESEHE

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—TE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR¥ET T
399,881 272,542
70,248 34,813
2,478 3,014
37,968 4,541
510,575 314,910
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28. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. B RESRELZEY (&)
(CONTINUED)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRESBBFRARITTFRELRZER
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for a term of six BFE - ERERERERREA
months (2015: three to twenty four months) and at fixed (ZE2E—hE: =Z2=_+m@EAR) » Wi
interest rates of 0.5% (2015: 0.5% to 1%) per annum and FEROSE(ZE—HF : 05EE1E)
are therefore subject to foreign currency risk and fair value EE B RETB - Utk 28 A N & f AN
interest rate risk. N EFERR o
The Group’s pledged bank balances of RMBNil (2015: AREBBEEBREITESRAREBZ L(Z
RMB15,001,000) are secured to a bank for a bank loan T—FE: ARM15,001,0007T) 23K
granted to the Group as set out in note 31 to the financial HFPRT USSR TAEEZIRTE
statements. ;o FBEHR U B RRME3 -
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. EZ R HEMEBNRE
2016 2015
ZE-ARF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Trade payables JERTE SRR 263,175 203,394
Gross amount due to customers BEEIERENEFPZKEA
for construction work (note 27) @z (fisE27) 1,490 1,317
Accruals and other payables FEET B A KR HE fh fE T IR 89,146 52,111
Salaries and staff welfare payables ENHFeME TER 45,894 35,992
Due to shareholders (note 30) FEAT AR SRR E (FT5E30) 848 872
Due to related parties (note 30) FETREE A T3k IE (F95E30) 3,464 1,768
Advance from customers AR PR 37,013 32,756

441,030 328,210




ERAERBSRBEFRERDBRLT

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date
on which the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
materials were transferred by the suppliers to the Group, is as

follows:

0 to 90 days

91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

—B—NEEH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ T — "XF+_-_A=+—HILLFE

0Z90H
91£180H
181%365H
BiA365H

30. DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS/RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due to shareholders/related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

31. BANK LOANS

Bank loans
— Secured
— Unsecured

RITER
— DA
— IR

SRy e

29. EZREAMBAREGE)

REHERBOHEEE ZEXNER R
EfRETFTAEEZAHREETCRNES

RBRE DT -

2016 2015
—E-AF —THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
219,734 185,833
33,025 8,967
856 1,057

9,560 7,537
263,175 203,394

30. BARER BEATRE

JEATRAR R, BAE A TR IR - &
EREREZERY -

31. RITER

2016 2015
= —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
121,356 218,099
45,000 -
166,356 218,099
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31. BANK LOANS (CONTINUED) 31. SRITER(E)

The bank loans are repayable as follows (note):

RITEREERNT (GE)

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Within one year R—FANEE 166,356 157,144
Portion of bank loans that are due BRRAE-—FREMBRE
for repayment after one year but SRAE B IR RITEFRED

contain a repayment on demand clause  H(REBEETHE)
(shown under current liabilities) - 60,955
166,356 218,099

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the respective loan agreements.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are
denominated in RMB except for RMB6,361,000 (2015:
RMB6,099,000) which is denominated in USD.

The Group’s bank loans of RMB121,361,000 (2015:
RMB156,099,000) carry fixed interest rate ranging from
4.35% to 5.50% (2015: 4.79% to 5.61%) per annum and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
bank loans of RMB44,995,000 (2015: RMB62,000,000) carry
floating interest rates ranging from 5.46% to 5.94% (2015:
5.22% to 7.68%) per annum, thus exposing the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2016, the secured bank loans were
secured by (i) the pledge of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and 10% paid up capital of an associate of the
Group; (ii) the corporate guarantees given by the Company
and a subsidiary of Peking University and an independent
third party.

i EEER %ﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ KW P oI 2 A RT
BREHHE -

BrLAEJTEME 2 KB AR %6,361,000
T(ZZE—HF : AR%6,099,0007T)
N REBEZRTERZEEAEAAR
MEHE -

KEBZRTERARK121,361,000
7c<_sf—£¢ : AR % 156,099,000
TN T435EE550B(=ZF—H
F:NFA4I9EES61E) 2ETEF
MEEE - EAIEZIS%IEH“J?TE%J
RRER  AEBZ2RTERARE
44,995,0007z(_§—£¢ AR
62,000,0007T ) & T F5.46[E £ 5.94F

C— R :5.22FBF7.688) 2%
FRRFE - At REBAZIRER
EFERR -

RZZBE—RF+-A=+—H FHEH
RITEFAATREER  ((AEEZ
ME BEMRBREVEERAEH
— A B E R F10% SR AR (i)
ARERAL KR EH) — B AR —
FRUE =TT RONEEER -
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. RIERIE

The following are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities
recognised by the Group.

Allowance for
doubtful trade

AT RAEEE R
KREfE -

VEERB(EE)

and other Allowance for  Available-for-sale
receivables inventories financial assets
E SR AL
EFHEZ MREE
RERHE FERE HMBEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT AREFT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 R-E-R%—A-AH (2,623) (392) - (3,015)
Credit to profit or loss for STAREERFISER
the year (note 12) (Fsx12) (6,916) - = (6,916)
Charge to other REMEERETR
comprehensive income - - 9,697 9,697
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RE+ZA
1 January 2016 Zt-AR=E—F
—A-H (9,539) (392) 9,697 (234)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR (Fi36)
(note 36) - - 8,632 8,632
Credit to profit or loss for STAREE RS EE
the year (note 12) (HzE12) (1,341) - - (1,341)
Credit to other STARME ARG
comprehensive income - - (16,713) (16,713)
At 31 December 2016 RIZ-—R%F
+-A=+—H (10,880) (392) 1,616 (9,656)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for statement of financial position purpose:

SR TSR R 2 IR AR TR A R (35 1R)
DHTEAT :

2016 2015

—E-RF —TRF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥TR AREF T

Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 1,616 9,697
Deferred tax assets REHIEEE (11,272) (9,931)
(9,656) (234)
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32. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32. EERIE (&)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB169,096,000 (2015: RMB171,315,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of total RMB162,191,000 (2015: RMB169,472,000)
that will expire within 2021 (2015: 2020). Other tax losses

RBEBHER  AEBHKRBAZH
EEEAARK169,006,000L (= F
—hF: AR¥171,3150007T) © A
SR AR T o B 5 AR BE T8RI R 2R
wABE - MY EREREMRERIEE
E o ARERBHERRRBEARE
162,191,000 (ZE—HF : ARK

may be carried forward indefinitely. 169,472,0007T) * H R =T = —F

(ZE—RF: ZZE-FTF)2RHH-
F At 50 TE 5 18 A A MR IR B4 RE o

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A&
Number of shares Amount
& Ex

Promoters Promoters

shares  H shares

BEARD HiR

‘000 ‘000 RMB'000

T T ARETTL

H shares Total

shares

BRARS HIR air

Total

RMB'000 | RMB000
ARBTL ARETT

Registered, issued and Bl 2BTRER
fully paid:
Shares of RMB0.10

(2015: RMBO.10) each

SREEARE010T2 KR
(ZZ-1%F : ARE0.107T)

At 1 January 2015, W=Z-n%—f—-AH"

31 December 2015and ~ —E-FEF-A=+-ARK

1 January 2016 —Z-%—f-H 700,000 484,800 1,184,800 70,000 43,480 118,480
Issued of shares BIRG - 96,960 96,960 - 9,696 9,696
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+-A=+-H 700,000 581,760 1,281,760 70,000 58,176 128,176

On 17 June 2016, the Group entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place up to 96,960,000
new H shares at placing price of HK$0.99 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.85) per share. The transactions have
been completed on 11 July 2016 and the premium of
the issue of shares amounted to RMB72,246,000, net of
share issue expense of RMB815,000, was credited to the
Company’s share premium account.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

MRZE—RFRAT+tH KEEHE—
AR ELLI L —HRERZE - Uik
EEEETR0IETL(EE ANARE
0.857T ) Bt & 5% 96,960,000 % FTHA
REBRZFE—"EFtA+—HEKK
RMmETREZEARKET2,246,0007T
(MprEETEHAARKS15,0007T) © 5
AR R Z R EER

AEBcERNEE B RERERAEERE
WIFERE  URBEBBLESkER
LB 3 B R R AR fE [ %
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash
and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium, non-controlling
interests, retained profits and other reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2015, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio
at the lower end of the range 0.1 to 0.3, in order to secure
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB509,341,000 (2015: RMB313,760,000), which exceed
total debt of RMB166,356,000 (2015: RMB218,099,000).
Accordingly, there was no net debt at 31 December 2016
and 2015 and calculation of debt-to-equity ratio at 31
December 2016 and 2015 is not meaningful.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Company receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2016, 45%
(2015: 41%) of the total promoters and H shares were in
public hands.

33. BRA&(&)

AEEZERLIIREERNEH ° Kﬁ
B E R E ARSI U R BB
HREREEZRR ﬁ%%uﬂ%°%
MEBAAREAER  AREXGHAR
BEXNER - BT - RERND
EEMENR BERREEBRLEERE
PURR & o

AEBAABERELREEER
BRI RZRERH FRRBERTE
EHFBANEFRBERREERREE
EY:tE - -BESBEaMARDED
(BN A ~ Bt a8 - JFEREa - R
Biad R EMmERE)

M
H\
m B

o

L

RBE_T-—RF+-_A=+—HLLF
B AEBES-RBEE_T—1F
TZA=T—BUEFEZRE BH#
FABEREENR0IE0IHERN IR
EIKE - BRAGIERANERRE -

RZZ—R"F+ZA=+—R0 BHEk
ReEEYWAARES09,341,00070(=
T—hHF : AR#¥313,760,0007T) ' R
HAR®166,356,0007T (Z T — R4 :
AR #218,099,0007T) 2 B #B%E - &
o RZE—ARFER_FT—RHF+_-A
—+—BUYESSERFE  MiE=
T NER-—E—FRE+-_F=+—H
ZEEESEETEEE o

AT AHERRE R LT /AT EF
B ME—RINE TR IR AR T %’é,ﬁ&h
NEFRETDREND Z225% > AR

B ABKRG AP E LIS %tﬁim%i
BREEM CEZERNERRE - WE
BRAARIRNEAN—ERE25% 2 TR
fﬁ)?'_'E © E@—é_/\g"f——ﬂ :+_E| ’
EEBERARG MHR Z245% (ZF—H
F:MN%)BHARFFR °
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34.

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries, net of
accumulated impairment losses

Investments in associates

Deposits paid for potential investment

Current assets

Inventories

Due from subsidiaries

Due from associates

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Non-pledged time deposit with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Due to shareholders

Due to related parties
Due to subsidiaries

NET ASSETS

Share capital
Reserves (note 34(b))

TOTAL EQUITY

NI JINLEI
ReE:?
Director

EF

Statement of financial position of the Company

FRBEE
WE -~ BB R

BB 2
Bt A
B A A2 0K

WEEREXNZES

RBEE

T8

R T ;

EWW““ E

BN R E%&

H fth & Y kIR

SH B EB={EA
ERAEHFR

RekRFEY

RBAE
E%&ﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ
FEA B R K
EH@@AiM
L Pl

BEFRE
AR
fr& #55 (B 5E34(b))

BRES

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2017
and are signed on its behalf by:

AlZIE - Hk

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited ~Annual Report 2016

KRR 2 BRRERHEEE

ENNCIPA S O
2016 2015
—E-RE¥ —h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTF T ARETT
7,771 5,352
176,534 138,029
415,150 400,000
400 1,000
599,855 544,381
185 185
194,854 188,633
3,640 3,448
8,852 1,487
1,234 1,150
64,964 24,443
273,729 219,346
14,075 13,504
824 872
3,464 860
118,719 118,497
137,082 133,733
736,502 629,994
128,176 118,480
608,326 511,514
736,502 629,994

R-E—+HE=fA-+_HEE=S
SHERBATATRAEESE :

ZHANG WANZHONG
REF

Director

EF
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 January 2015
Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016

Issued of shares

Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 December 2016

35. RESERVES
(@) Group

A\_F-1F-A—-H
REE2AREAE

RZE-1E
TZA=+-Bk
—2-7"5-A-H

Bk

TEERENGER

RZE—F
+-A=+-H

3. ARFZMBRARRHEERED

(#]|)
(b) AATZHEDH
Investment
Capital Reserve  revaluation Retained
reserve funds reserve profits Total
BAGE REEE REEMRHE ey GH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT  ARETT  ARBTR
371,720 76,766 27,386 40,944 522,816
- - (27,386) 16,084 (11,302)
377,720 76,766 - 57,028 511,514
72,246 - - - 72,246
- - - 24,566 24,566
449,966 76,766 - 81,594 608,326
35. f#fE
(a) #*&

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

AEEZ HHESERARDRE
EMERREAERED

5I) o

VAN
=
=

==
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35. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company and the

Group represents the aggregate of:

share premium totalled RMB446,885,000
arising from issue of new shares;

the waiver of an amount of RMB1,654,000
recorded as part of issuance expenses for
the listing of the Company’s H shares on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2000
(the “Listing”) payable to an unrelated party
who had provided services to the Company
during the Listing pursuant to prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC; and

the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting
from debt restructuring of Beida Jade
Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
transferred in accordance with prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC.

35. f##E(&E)

(b) REUHERAR
(i) BXGHE

RRARRAEBEENFHEE
NHBIEZ A

—  BOHRELERBAR
446,885,000 7T 2 I&

D fE

— BEPERITZEE
A RER REedra
BHBRR ZEZEZF+
AR FaIZER £
(TEmDEFHAAQF
R RIS 2 JER 5 e
AR % 1,654,000 7T
BHEITIEH &

— BREPRERITZEHE
EUPS 97 Im L e % /N
MEBARILARE RERF
BB R ER D BRA A
B EAEE 2 )F W
ANE#1,427,0007T °
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35. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)
(ii)

(iii)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Reserve funds

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve. In accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC and
articles of association of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (collectively
referred to the “PRC entities”), the PRC entities
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit
after tax, after offsetting any prior years’ losses,
to the statutory surplus reserve. When the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches
50% of the PRC entities’ registered share
capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be used to
offset prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new shares
to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholding or by increasing the par value of the
shares currently held by them, provided that the
remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve
after such issue is not less than 25% of share
capital. The PRC entities may transfer an amount
from their profit after tax to the discretionary
surplus reserve approved by the shareholders. The
discretionary surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses of the PRC entities and
to distribute to shareholders in the form of bonus
issue.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 4(e) to the financial statements.

35. & (&)
fRfEMEE R AR ()

(b)
(ii)

(iii)

HEES
FEECBREEITABLRE
SREERHBATES - BE
FELERRERARARQR]
MER R EMA S Z KB
ARA(ATHEBHHER])
ZHBERMA - PREE
AR EL Bl 18 i F) (B S5 I A
THEEEER)  EI10%
EETERBRFEE - ZEER
HEHEEIPREE MK
I50% B - ) — FIRE
RIEVE - EFRBERB
AREENEFEEBIE(E
B) - NARBRRERE R
B& £ {51 1) A% 3R 2% 1T 3T AR sk iR
BIEMBRRER ARG Z
EEERERA - EE@ER
TREERBBHEBHRETGE
DHRIEARZ25% - PR EEE
AEBEHEcEaRE RN E
BEEERRLEZEEREL
i  TERBEENT AE
KETEEE AEFER
8 - WAL IR 5 X R AR R K
%;50

Ex#E
EXFEERELSINES
MBEHRREENMAELE
R o ZRBERUMBHRRME
Ae)FE G TR REIE °
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35. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Investment revaluation reserve

The i
the ¢

nvestment revaluation reserve comprises
umulative net change in the fair value of

available-for-sale financial assets held at the

end of the reporting period and is dealt with in

accordance with the accounting policy in note

4(n)(ii) to the financial statements.

(v) Othe

r reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the

aggregate of:

The equity-settled share-based payments
of RMB10,969,000 recognised upon
transfer of equity interests in a subsidiary
of the Company from certain of its original
shareholders to a director and certain
employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose
from the decrease in non-controlling
interest of RMB4,617,000 (being the
proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of PWC Winery,
LLC) and RMB3,034,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD475,000), which arose
on the acquisition of additional 25% equity
interests in PWC Winery, LLC during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

35. f##E(&E)

(b)

Annual Report 2016

REMEER AR ()
(v) REE(HE

(v)

BREEGHFRERNREH
ABBZARLENHEE
RTFERFAEHFE - AR
AR5 S 75 ¥R 3R B R 4(n) i) BT
oG RREE

Hithfe#
AEBEMFEEE T2

NEmEEZR®D
BEBARARE
10,969,000 Jt * f£ &
E-T—-F+=H8
=+—HALEFERAR
A B AR EERES
FRIEREEEAEE
—REERATEER
TR °

AR # 1,583,000 2
Z' o TRREER
725 AR #4,617,000
7t (B0 PWC Winery,
LCFEERAMEBEZ
LB EE) B AR
3,034,000 7t ( #8 & R
#49475,000% 70 ) 2 %
BOEREBEE—_Z—=
F+-_A=+—HBI1
FE# — FWEPWC
Winery, LLC 25% & %
FFEEAE ©
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35. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(o)

Profit appropriations

Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’
articles of association, the net profit after tax as
reported in the PRC statutory financial statements,
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting principles
and regulations, can only be distributed as dividends
after allowance has been made for the following:

(i)  Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

(i) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (b)(ii)
above.

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

In January 2016, the Group acquired a 100%
equity interest in Ningbo Xuanbao Sailin Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Xuanbao”) which
held 39% equity interests in Ningbo Jade Bird Venture
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Jade Bird VC"),
an associate of the Group, at a consideration of
RMB23,400,000 from a connected party of the Group.
Ningbo Xuanbao was engaged in investment in unlisted
PRC enterprises or growing entities during the year.

In October 2016, the Group acquired a 60% equity
interest in Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan”) at
a consideration of RMB1,800,000 from one connected
party of the Group and one independent third party
of the Group. Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan was engaged
in provision of investment management and advisory
services.

35. f#fE (&)

(c)

36. &&

(a)

eyl
RIFFBERRDERTEER 2 HE
ERAA - mRPESRALR
I FEDEE M BHRERMER
BRIZRALR - (2R R T 5B IR
HEBRIERREDIK :

(i) WAEBEFEZRAER(N
B) -

(i) & 4F L 3X(b)(ii) T 80 R 1 &

RERnERME

s BE BT B8 A 7

RZTB—R"F—A  AE@EAE—
ZRAEANEERHFEENREE
BAERAR([EHREFE])100%A
o BRHEREAEEEE QT
EREREFEREERAR([ER
ERAK)39% B - REBEAA
R #23,400,0007T ° E & B F
W EREFBEIE ETRESRIER

=am

B =

RZZ—NRF+A AEER—F
BESR—BBIE=TTHKEILR
BERTREEEERAA (TR
BIEFRT])60%BE - RERA
FE#1,800,0007T It REERTT
RERHREETE RFE AR -
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. S8 RE&RERWE(H)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) WHEMIEB AT (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities R R EIE W 2 AT R B E R
acquired as at the date of acquisition are as follows: BEZAFEIT

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in an associate
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Fair value of equity interest
in Ningbo Jade Bird VC held
before the business combination
Bargain purchase

Total consideration
— satisfied by cash

Net cash outflow arising on
acquisition:

Cash consideration paid

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

ERBEEFE

WmE - BEREE

RS AR 2 HE

AHRHENEEE

Z 5 R E A EGE
Re kR EEY

25 R EAMENFIE
EEHBEEE

IR

REBAGAIEEZ
FREREIRREL
ATE

HEA

BRE
—URE XN

WEBELZRER
HEE

BARENE

BUERERRLEEN

Ningbo
Xuanbao

BRAR
RMB'000
ARBFT

Beijing
Shengxin
Kaiyuan

Lt RERERT
RMB'000
AREBTT

Total

st
RMB'000
ARETT

- 12 12
6,500 5,802 12,302
70,729 = 70,729
= 2,123 2,123
11,097 538 11,635
(30) (3,399) (3,429)
(7,807) (825) (8,632)
80,489 4,251 84,740
(24,150) (1,700) (25,850)
(24,955) - (24,955)
(7,984) (751) (8,735)
23,400 1,800 25,200
23,400 1,800 25,200
(11,097) (538) (11,635)
12,303 1,262 13,565
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The fair value of the trade and other receivables
acquired is RMB2,123,000, of which no amount due
under the contracts and is expected to be uncollectible.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase
of RMB7,984,000 and RMB751,000 in the business
combination of Ningbo Xuanbao and Beijing Shengxin
Kaiyuan, respectively. The business combination results
in a gain on bargain purchase because the vendors
need to dispose of the investments in a short time,
the consideration was based on the book value of the
companies which are similar to the vendors’ original
investment costs.

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2016, Ningbo Xuanbao contributed nil
turnover and a net loss of RMB2,000 to the Group.

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2016, Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan contributed
nil turnover and a net profit of RMB513,000 to the
Group.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2016, the
consolidated turnover and net profit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016 would have been
RMB1,415,837,000 and RMB283,519,000 respectively.
The proforma financial information is for illustrative
purpose only and does not necessarily reflect the
Group's revenue and operating results if the acquisition
has been completed 1 January 2016 and could not
serve as a basis for the forecast of future operation
result.

36. RERERMERME(H)

(a)

W BRI B A B (&)

BREE 5 R EMmEWRIE 2 AF
BEAARM2,123,0007T » EF I
\mEXT 2B EARIE B A A
=

AEEEERHFERLRRERT
MEBE R D RIERZEWE
Wz AR #7,984,0007T M A R ¥
751,0007T - EBEHEBEEK
B REARBEASERNERMHE
AEERE  REDERBEFRL
BEK AU R BIREREE

RUBERREE T —RF+_H
=+—BHH BERHFEALSE
BEHRETLXREFERARYE
2,0007T °

RUBERBREE —T—RFE+_H
=+—BHHE ERBERATA
AEBEGSTLEBNANNARE
513,0007T °

WEBEBEER=_ZE—A~"F— A
—B%4E AAKEEBE_F
—RNE+-A=+—RALEEN
mAEEEBRAENB S B A A
R ¥ 1,415,837,000 7T &2 A R ¥
283,519,0007T © 4= B % & K&
HeE  WIFEERBAEEERK
BEEERZ-_Z—"F—A—HZX
B HYIE T P15 ) W as R4S & %
1B BTEERTERRRGEEE
HyELZE o
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. 422 B & HERMIT(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of (b) HE—REHWEBARZERZ(RAEX
control EEFIRE)

During the year, the Group disposed of 30% FA - AEELEZEMBERA

interests in a 100% subsidiary at a cash consideration 30% s - HEN(ER675,0005%

T (HHERL B AR4,381,000

of USD675,000 (equivalent to approximately
=

RMB4,381,000). The effect of the disposal on the 7C) © i E%IE*VTK ARRE A

EEEFENT

equity attributable to the owners of the Company is as
follows:

RMB’000
AR® TR

Carrying amount of non-controlling B SRR

interests disposed (4,584)
Consideration received from EUCEERERRE

non-controlling interests 4,381
Loss on disposal recognised directly in equity B EAERERN L EERE (203)

37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 37.
On 31 January 2013, the Group has issued a guarantee in
respect of a banking facility made by a bank to an associate
of the Group which expires on 25 March 2023.

MBHER
RZZE—=F—H=+—H0 ' £5£EBE
R ER 1T M A SR B Bt A B HH AV R
TREZFLHER  ZERHR-_ZFZ_=
—AZ+HHEE® -

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not RBEBHR EFVIFTREAEET

consider it probable that a claim will be made against
the Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility drawn down by the associate
of RMB200,000,000 (2015: RMB200,000,000). The Group
has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered
insignificant.

BERERIBERBBTRE - R®EH
R AEEREETZERTZA
EERABEARIRRZME AR
200,000,000 C(ZF—HF : AR
200,000,0007T ) ° 75 B0 48 3t B 75 4%
{%EEMEHEUSU\ EAHENFER
BRAEWMTRE
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

38. BEAREKIE
AEENBEHEEER 2 ERRER
—F :

2016
—B—xE

2015
—E—RF
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBT T

Contracted but not provided for BRT XM AR
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K&ERE 20,207 15,801
Unpaid balance of capital contribution B NG e
to associates and joint ventures PETEZ RIS 156,579 331,274
39. LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. HE&RIE

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

as follows:

Within one year —FN
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EFERF
(BREEEMFE)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its offices and operating premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three
(2015: one to six) years and rentals are fixed over the lease
terms and do not include contingent rentals.

R=Z—RET=A=+—A  BEF
THEE SR ER R 2 BIERE
@B :

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
5,567 4,081
3,542 2,187
9,109 6,268

REBEENFTEAREAREETHE
BREEEMEREN2ES - AIHEMES
—EZF(ZT-RF: —ERF)M
HERAZHE HEE - BAEREEA
B -
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

40. EXBEEATIRS

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2016

(@) In addition to those related party transactions and (a) BEGEVBEBRREMIBOWEZZ
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated ZREANTR S REHIN  AEE
financial statements, the Group had the following PARFE DERERE A TEITAT
transactions with its related parties during the year: R

Sales of electronic fire alarm systems

2016
—E—RE

RMB’000
AR®T T

2015
—ET—AF
RMB’000
ARETIT

and related products to related NEHEE T HHRE
companies controlled by Peking AERBEEESD
University 70 50
Purchase of property, plant and m— KB A A 2 FEFERR
equipment from a non-controlling ERBEYE  BEX
interest of a subsidiary B 29 -
Management fee income from RE—[HEE QRN B
associates U A 3,883 6,133
Rental expenses for office LA & 7 B SR A =R
buildings charged by FHeEH
— a shareholder of the Company —ARA—BRE 2,464 1,560
- a non-controlling interest of ——RAWBARZ
a subsidiary SEFRE IR A 966 =
3,430 1,560
Rental income from an associate e M2 TNAES
WA 109 109
Car rental expense charged by an —EEE R R WE 2 RE
associate HEM= 212 =
Loan interest exepense paid to ST —RHMBARZ
a non-controlling interest of a AR 2 BERAE
subsidiary X 407 -

EEZRA/LMBEEEALZRST)
R—REBBEFET -

The directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions with related parties were conducted in the
usual course of business.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 40. EXBEA LR S (&)

(b) Included in the consolidated statement of financial (b) SGAETBMRAKRBIEATEEBEAL
position are the following balances with related parties: 2 EERR
2016 2015
ZE-ARF —ZE-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Trade receivables from related FEW BRI R Rz 2
companies controlled by Peking BENRE SRR
University 68 65
Due from associates JE Wi Bst 28 R I FIR 64,195 61,848

Due from a related company controlled FEU — % fa b R oA £ 4|
by Peking University Z BB R EIRIA 27 27

Trade payables to a related company  JEff —FR L R A2

controlled by Peking University ZAENRESER 16 16
Due to shareholders FEfT AR R SR IE 848 872
Due to non-controlling interests R ENGIPE 2

of subsidiaries RSB 18,250 9,407

Due to related companies controlled  FE{F ek A E2 4% 4 >
by Peking University B N AR 3,464 860
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

41.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

rRHEEREMN
B = A

Short term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Further details of directors’ and supervisors’
emoluments are included in note 15 to the financial

statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 January 2017, the Group entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place up to 96,960,000
new H shares at placing price of HK$1.43 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.28) per share to not less than six but
not exceeding ten placees. The transactions have been
completed on 6 February 2017. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 11 January 2017 and 6
February 2017.

On 8 March 2017, the Company completed the acquisition
of 40% of the equity interest in Beijing Shengxin Runcheng
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Shengxin
Runcheng”) for a consideration of RMB400,000, which
became an associate of the Group. Beijing Shengxin
Runcheng is principally engaged in asset management. As
the financial information after the end of the reporting
period is not yet available, the Group is unable to quantify
the possible financial effect of this acquisition to the Group.

—RNF+ZA=+—RHIFE

40. EXBEATRZ (&)

41.

(0 AEEIZEEAEME

2015

—T—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARBFT
10,156 7,897
642 569
10,798 8,466

EENEEMe 2E—FRBEER
PR RAR I RES

REHEESE
RZE—+tF—A+—H8  AEEHERER
EREBFIIVEEHZ  WRESESTR
1438 T(HEERHNARK1.287T) AT
PIRRBEINZRTBEREALRESRS
96,960,000 #THR - ZERHE R
T—tFZARNBEK - FBEHRERQ
AIAPAZE—+F—A+—BR=ZT
—tFZARNBZRE -

R-ZZF—tF=A/\B » XRFUKE
AR #400,0007T 7¢ Bk W BB 4b 3R % 15
HREERERAR ([ REEEH])
A0% M HE - W BANEE 2Bt E R E] -
IERBEHARTERETEEEE - AR
BERMERROPBEER HAEZ
HAKEREEB(CZ KRB EHA LA
SEERNPBEE -
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42.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2016 are as follows:

*

Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman)
Development Company Limited

ERESRTHER(ES) RRARAT

Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company

Limited (“Jade Bird Fire Alarm”)

IAERRTENRERNERAR(ERHEN))

Beijing Jade Bird Universal Fire System
Software Service Co., Ltd. (“Fire Software”)

HRBESRTRD AR REARAT
= lESH)

Chuangi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. ("Chuangi

Tourism")
ERREREERAR(EFRE])

Beijing Hengsheng Investment Management
Company Limited

IREERAERARAA

Ningbo Jade Bird VC
EREREIR

Si Chuan Jiu Yuan Intelligent Surveillance
Co., Ltd. ("Sichuan Jiuyuan")

mIAEREEEERATAR(TIIAR])

PWC Winery, LLC

PWC Winery, LLC

Maple Armor Fire Solution Canada Inc.
(“Maple Armor Fire")

Maple Armor Fire Solution Canada Inc.
(IMaple Armor Fire])

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation

A

Cayman Islands/
the PRC
FgkS/H

Hebei, the PRC

PEAL

Beijing, the PRC

ELR

Hunan, the PRC

EHE

Beijing, the PRC

PELR

Ningbo, the PRC
REER

Sichuan, the PRC

)l

The State of Virginia,
the United States

FEEVRDN

(Canada

JIEIN

Paid up capital
HRRA

10,000 ordinary shares of
USD1 each

10,000 BRAE1ZTL
TaR

180,000,000 ordinary
shares of RMB1 each

180,000,000 BRAEBA
RE1T 2Lk

RMB1,000,000

AR%1,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

AR%100,000,0007

RMB2,000,000

AR%2,000,0007

RMB60,000,000
AR%60,000,0007T

RMB8,000,000

AR%8,000,0007T

Members' contributed
capital of
UsD4,200,000

FRE£44,200,000% T

CAD12,000,350

120,000,350/17C

Sichuan Jiuyuan and Maple Armor Fire are accounted for as a

subsidiary by virtue of the Group’s control over it.

TENBLQFE

R-F—A%f-A=f—H AA7
EBHBAARENT

Percentage of
equity interests
BEERZADL
Direct Indirect

E# 5f:
100% =
51% -
- 51%
60% -
55% =
- 70%

- 38%*

- 70%

- 47%*

Principal activities

E3:3 3

Investment holding

AR

Technology research,
development, manufacture
and sale of fire alarm
system products

BORD ZEE @2 A -
R EEREE

Technology research,
development, sale of
software of fire alarm
system products

BB RHEm 2 RIHE -
FE - EEREE

Exploration and
development of travel
and leisure business

ERARES HERER

Provision of investment
management and
advisory services

RERATERBRRS

Investment holding

REZR

Design, manufacture and sale of
fire alarm system,
security and fire
equipment products
EHAS RERAEREER
2Rt EERBE

Production and sales of
wine and related products

PHERARER EERHE

Design, manufacture and sale
of fire alarm system, security
and fire equipment products

HRES  RERAERBER
2&at - EEREE

& P A& KMaple Armor FireE 485 [
$TE 2 PR VE R M B A Rl ERR o
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group.

42. TEHELE (&)
EREBIEHAKE 2 XE EELA
BERETEZZENMB AR -

TRFIINANEE A E AR E
ZHIB AT - BB R EE QR EK
TRE HATH SR

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries
that have NCI material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-
company eliminations.

Jade Bird Fire Alarm

Sichuan Jiuyuan
)l A&
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-AE —F-—AF ZE-RF —EF-—AF

FERER PR 2

% of ownership

interests/voting rights BaERES/
held by NCI REEAAL 49%/49% 49%/49% 62%/62% 62%/62%

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT

AR® T

At 31 December: W+=A=+-8:
Non-current assets FnBEE 307,211 187,955 27,044 27,264
Current assets MENVEE 819,873 679,342 190,715 127,301
Current liabilities REEE (367,908) (385,279) (149,729) (106,814)
Net assets BEFE 759,176 482,018 68,030 47,751
Accumulated NCI BRI 371,844 236,093 41,998 29,479
Year ended 31 December: #Z+=-A=+—H
ILEE .

Revenue Wz 963,588 717,967 242,538 181,436
Profit il 337,159 182,295 20,278 16,689
Total comprehensive FHEHUREE

income 337,159 182,295 20,728 16,689
Profit allocated to NCI DRI RS

> 37 165,141 89,288 12,519 10,303

Dividends paid to NCI B EERER MRS 29,388 19,592 - 2,500
Net cash generated from  E4 HRKEEE v

operating activities BeF8 281,436 134,527 9,604 15,363
Net cash used in AREEES

investing activities B R (124,755) (70,158) (527) (22,226)
Net cash (used in)/ (BR) /EX£8

generated from financing @& /EH) 2

activities HEH5E (64,495) (4,379) 17,380 14,883
Net increase in cash BeLE&EEY

and cash equivalents 1N FEE 92,186 59,990 26,457 8,020
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

% of ownership interests/

Fire Software

HERH

2016

IR R

42. TEMBLE (&)

Chuangi Tourism

E 5 ki
2016
—E-REF

voting rights held by NCI B £
REEBDL 49%/49% 49%/49% 40%/40% 40%/40%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT ARET ARETTT
At 31 December: R+=RA=+-8:
Non-current assets FnBEE 1,273 1,396 217,135 208,308
Current assets REAE 40,724 92,222 156,123 224,014
Current liabilities mEafE (4,234) (5,987) (84,517) (102,505)
Net assets BEFE 37,763 87,631 288,741 329,817
Accumulated NCI ZRET IRl S 18,496 42,922 115,496 131,927
Year ended 31 December: HZ+=A=+—H
LEE:
Revenue g 41,632 30,228 129,201 117,976
Profit vl 30,564 24,647 40,873 33,620
Total comprehensive income %2 E 4 25 4258 30,564 24,647 40,873 33,620
Profit allocated to NCI DT IEERER 2
S 14,970 12,072 16,349 13,448
Dividends paid to NCI BRI ER 2R = = - -
Net cash generated from/ &4 8,/ (BR)
(used in) operating LEES
activities Be 38 14,046 (13,780) 64,595 86,401
Net cash used in investing FARERELE 2
activities BeFE (84) (28) (3,298) (82,404)
Net cash used in financing FRELEEE) 2
activities e FH - - (78,605) (40,591)
Net increase/(decrease) in I & RIRSZ(EY
cash and cash equivalents 310,/ (Fi 2 ) 258 13,962 (13,808) (17,308) (36,594)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —F— "F+_A=+—HILFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 42. T ERBAT(EF)

Maple Armor Fire

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
% of ownership interests/voting rights IR PR 2 A
held by NCI Bm/ REREHL 53%/53% -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
At 31 December: R+=—HA=+—8:
Non-current assets EMEBNEE 34,763 -
Current assets mENE E 57,679 =
Current liabilities mEratE (10,099) =
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (33,926) -
Net assets BEFE 48,417 -
Accumulated NCI ZET I R s 25,621 =
Year ended 31 December: BE+=-A=+—H
LFE:
Revenue Wz = =
Loss fE518 (5,068) =
Total comprehensive income ZHKRAETE (5.068) -
Loss allocated to NCI DB E IR 2 EiE (2,682) =
Dividends paid to NCI BRI = 2 R B = =
Net cash used in operating activitie AR EREE 2IREF5E (7,324) =
Net cash used in investing activities AREE RS 2R E 558 (20,721) =
Net cash generated from EEAREZH
financing activities & FEE 61,454 -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReMREeEEY

N R 33,409 =
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